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&‘ﬁqcbuiﬁﬁ MR TRBR & USITAIH TG UIpfdh T HATerg H wferd & U
ﬁr HTRIRT 8 | TP U IR Ug j1od ORGRI H I & F1I—a1T I &
fESIS 3R BT # AMUH 39d & | SHH ol gd Widhias 49, =i
ATy (SfhT SR ARITTT fa<), e, fasTell, e g, rsiifdeT 3k
THUAUHS & &7 ANl § |

3 S & 919 Ugiferdd Td UTgfad 9 &3 @ dutal, dai, faema faa

oo, 4 putEl, ST R wutEl T TR ST ek

?ﬂﬁvﬁ/qﬂﬁ&ﬁﬁfmﬁzﬁaﬁéﬁawa/ﬁﬁwa%wﬁwaﬁéwﬁ
|

S FAT T TS A # Agiforad v wifiae I FAerd 7 HfaR|
g & B H BRIRT © | 3811 BAdd Sol-IRT § §1.2dh R Y&u T
Rvcd § ga.ca o1 ST e1fre @ 2 | Y WIRAT oRaT uxIel Ud oikdT JdT
(3MMEY U UTH) @ 1994 99 W HATAT 2 AR I7i &1 AT URIel, Neld ol
O, 190 ARBR oIdT U4 olkdl YRIeT H &g &3l Ud qearerdl 9 fafe= ual
R BT fhar g |

S U8l o1 fIHT Ud b Sere Ud A1 3o dfs & fory faers
(fa<T) & w9 # T &M BT &; S_IA 5T @l URIET AR, A Hedd,
mepe | faRve, Bula amfie Yfhar o 7 SR wereers vd A
m‘%ﬁgﬁﬁ Ud IheHc IMSTHE R q;ncflw ST IR faveiyor I &
AETQRId, UHUall, I & JUTed 3R a3 Jiffee, ssoe@s‘d’fsﬁ e,

m@@ﬁ%\”ﬁ W, SIUHUHST ﬁﬂﬁ'cﬂ 3R S (UNITED) RTHar &7 el
|

I8 Il Td Wpfad I A forfies (o) & 91 & fodee & wu o
A BRING €| 98 NI § A+ ik aiRefAe afafd vd aRarer
g Ud AHIeT AMfT & AW © | A12T 81 STgUAUISIRYS H JAffee AfAfd,
A AT HTHAT UR SU—AHfT 3R fAeere! o afffa & seuer 9 8 |
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g S e a+

Jt BHIfA AIET XA, 1997 99 & IR TS DS DI YA SMABRY 2 |
g 1991 # SISITHT | a1forsy Frded € 3iR ditd (0) ureusd # faeeh
faeafdeney § SR Bl | S=iF Rl =aRoT Rig fAvafdeney, ¥k I Tavad]
IR AT M+ fawafdermera, 9rdrel & Taiuared 4 fhar g |

[T & URMG q9 B ERM I8 INRI, SR, RgHS; Bl Ad
fSfas et / Sarge AR T &1 | S8l #Ra H J& [Adh SRl & wu 4
S fhar iR 5 &+ faerg afafafet P T | JIR—T b
TR, S84 7eg U9 WRGR H 70T 9a8 &l IR geer eerd &
w0 ¥ Aften fad ud faem oM, |4 9 & §91eT | S god gy,
JTaYER, WERAR H dHoldex Ud Rofar afoRge & wu 4 & fhar 5| d
JITId 3R TRS BT UBell Afeell doidex MR SIed off | 8 wRd fHat==
IMRINT gRT HI9rs ot fafes iy o1 I RepR fAid gar 2 |

9 Ul AR ¥ TIRATS], ATYeh, WTe el UG A9 Y= & Ug WY
Hel-NIed  (TSTRoT) IR T SYehd MY<h (Ao &); 3Mgh
(ARSI &) o |

a8 A 1 e Al ASTNEd (Foflev) SR w1 ¥E g9 ¢ |
Sl SRh a1 & 3R 3.9, () I ¥ Afa, Afger vd a1a fdard
fomeT, afera (fam), afera (amiT faem) & wu # or fear 8 | S=iF gi &
g@ﬁ%ﬁﬂ%qmwmqgmvﬁaﬁuﬁwﬁﬂﬁmaﬁ

|

S |Yh A (= e, S=a R favmr, Rien #37er, IRd IRaR &
wﬁgﬁmm%‘sﬁ?vqﬁh%w:ﬁﬁ 2020 @ forAToT ¥ wEqul e
TS 2 |

g aoH H USIfoRM Ud UTdhiad i H#ATad | IR dfd iR faxig
AATEHR B HY H HTIRT & |

I8 MRA Ugiferad diaRe fafics (@ririiva) @ 9rs # fAesre @ w9 § i
IR 2 | 98 dRfIve & wiaRe amrfoie Saxerfica afif sik a™ied v
aTR#1 e AT BT T € | 98 IMSUAUIRIRTA H 3iTf$T HH, ezl ol
AT BT T W B |
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Gl S2 SATTE, 2004 99 B AR A< HaT AHRY © | 98 IdH H
USIfol™ 3R UThicres I HATSI & RIS FEANT Y9N & HYh Aed &
9 H BT £ |

UgIfeliM Td uTdias i #A1erd H Fgfh | Ugel, S/ AddR 2016
STeRl 2019 b 7Y H YR gaTard ¥ AR & U 499 & wU § B
frar | 399 Ugdl, a8 fagyr #arerd § SRika off | S/ dlddl § YR
IR IR URY H YRR GATa IR IR | 9Rd & ) ufafAirsd
H 9 B fhar g |

oISl ARM dieisl, 5 faeell @ 9d BT g sagd & s faeel!
faeafderner 3 e O 9 g, et &1 {31 & | 98 faeel gaficr 4
Mes weferee W 2 |

ST faarg 1 F1cle Ufs & g, Sl Us R fager ar sif¥er) o & |
TP AT g & |

g M=ol fager fafies @dieer) @ 9€ # feere @ w0 # ¥ dRRA € |
AdUE H uRAGHT Jedidhd AMfT @ e IR PlURe AMISI®
STRETRI, ReRdr (AIUHaR s Ud) AfAfe ok e 3R ariRsifie
AT & IR | 98 AETAURIRTS # $fifse afifa, draRe amifis
STRETRI AR &R AT HATeH A IR SU—afifd @ 95 € |
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UIfelM Ud WTahids 319 #3916 & dd e f[Aa die (eigsiel) @l
e gt ot ReT ol Aiarery Har b1 6w AT TR B AP 2 |
T TTs T I IfYH b HRIX B SR, S8 IR WRAR H AT~ ugl
R B fhare |

IS U R WRER & A= faamTl & |1 1R -+ &7 e 319 ©
ST Taey 3R YRR HearoT faMT, [T #3Terd, arforsy #arera (faqer
ATIR HBTQRITS) MM | RSS! # Fgad 8 ¥ Ugdl, 98 9Rd AR
& HIHD AR TRMETT f9RT § Fgo da & ©9 § & IR @ el iR
Hecaqol fa9TTT BT | R8T off |

I8 JTSUANIIRUS ¥ 3iifEc Had) P g i1 & |
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Ud. 3R, oA

%‘ﬁw IR, SIF 1 31 JaCAR, 2022 BT 3T FelTdh Ugiierad Reds

(aﬁnﬁama)zﬁg@mﬁaﬂﬁaﬁm@r@muﬁéwzﬁwﬁ
BIIIR FHTT 7, Sifds ULl Ud Ui Ik9 HaTer & 3refie 3ﬁ3ﬂ—§_@ﬁ—6ﬁ
BT TP I TS @dhet B, 5T A9y ®9 F <9 & o Iefotd ugiferaH
Rorda & fafor vd Hares 2 a9 T |

g8 fdca fUarl 9 dafed ONER € U9 SBIH THUINIRTSUHRIR A
vfdsTagfcd THdIY (Groliguddl) fhar €| 7 SiF 9RA &1 b 9@ H8ReT
HUAT YRS § gRITSHRN & freared, Jarad iR WIE § 9T 91
A ST HT ATID I I & |

JMSTAUISRYS & J&d HRIBRI ABN d g faere & wu H 370
9IRS ¥ Ugel, I8 dIURIITS & ATd e fSIIT df SoNf=aT v Hrotaed
(SUSUl) SHIE ® YW e B 98 PHISATIREYR UGSl IISuarg
gRETSTT @ forg Tfeq smgaieivd, Tadiiive ok driefve @ wgw Sem
ST & D BT U A FHIA b 2 |
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gl ani fa=sr IRENED (15.12.2022 & YHTd)
gl g2 sfiarsq IRESIED (22.12.2021 & gHTd)
ol 3o/ qER Y PRGN ARHRI Td gy faered (e 17.06.2022 A 30.10.2022 Th)
st T, IR, oI T BRIBR ANHNI Td yae Faerd  (31.10.2022 1 Y1)
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Pl @ Rud ISPRL
|qar ¥,
IRRERGIT,
sfeaa & <fore ugiferaw Rered fafics

MY HUAT BT QLTS el olal TRIfErd BT oRaT faavvT iR 9 IR ol@l Riefdh & Rl & A1 31 914, 2023
DI A [T 99 & oly HUHI & HRIBGRT & Hae H 1997 1ty RIS Fey IRd PR IET ¢ |

fa<fra afRomre
31 HTe, 2023 I FHTC <7 99 & 1T 3Ueh] Bul @ faxira TROTET @1 gy faIvdrg g9 YR & -

R @ #)
®. 9. faawor 31 9rd, 2023 31 91d, 2022
1 | 9od srad uREuRmEl (qd U9 o) 373759.79 373669.45
e © e YedsTd 58502.71 48572.24
fraa saa uREufrad 315257.08 325097.21
2 | & IR adue aREufmt 29892.89 37107.95
3 | & o uRsuft 5113.85 10310.29
ad aREuRmAT 350263.82 372515.45
4 | dfya il |fed | sfaac 315837.02 325538.41
5 | B IR—aaH <gan 572.08 582.87
6 | @l adEr <gan 33854.72 46394.17
Bl SAATY 350263.82 372515.45
v 3R 'Y @ @ AS
®. 9. faazor 31 9rd, 2023 31 94, 2022
1 | yd 3@l warioE, afe @1 81, |fed gd o 589.83 896.47
HeUBTY \fed Bl Y 10291.21 10827.80
Iafer & fag g =1 (1) — (2) -9701.38 -9931.33
ROL-|| (iRaar R @)
®. 9. faazor 31 9rd, 2023 31 94, 2022
1 | =Fo-n aRAeHT & fog av & SR U< gt 3T N 11987.24
(€ MR W) 9 & fo aifm wfa
2 | TR B TEG 9 B SRME [HAT T KA A 318.33 835.99
I b g afed
1t forsares e
EESICELIE

YRA TRHR (STISIIMS) 7 S B Holl GReTl & T choldh e B YT B @ fad § 7 SaRl, 2004 BT A1 IT=1
TR 5 THTHCT & Fefotd Ugifera Roted (THUIRTR) S99 3R wefotd AT ga Hared & forg ue gadidr
A BT ol foram | deal It &1 SR, i WRA fddr & oty anffes Tfafafel o1 §9eis &7+ &iiR o+
ATR®T B o1t TRl BT IRT IR & oI ded del & ST R 98 Afdd 1R 2, gafery vadieme o
IRET ATYfT ST el a1 fhdl 1 Reafd | Fue & fory ufeRiel & wu H @l 73 off, Wrae: arel
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PHRON ¥ AR IR § el Il & IR Tidb BT SYANT dfqdh del @1 HiHdl H SRR gig Bl
371 U 3 AT TR & forg foham S e 2 |

T, 3feT wefoa ugiforam RaTed faffics (sMSTaIsiRud) &l 7o+ B3ATT H SIS e HaiReH
fofics @1 Ud F8r—Id Ul & w4 H {61 A7 o ST 09.05.2006 del STNT f[AHrd a1 (RsMgsrel) @ goi
AT dTell FeTdd HUl 9 13 |

503 THUHC! &HdT dTel UAURIR & AT &1 RIS aRTd sfiessiel gRT faa aiffa & 8 off 3R
S TAUISRYS B gldac! Bl AHG MM ATSSIE] DI SRR Dbl T AT | faRIamo<r= & 0.3 THTHACT &l
D1 AR Da- &1 AT foar ar o o werdRdioer g1 fo aifva favar wam o | femamdeH (1.03+0.03
THUAS), AR (1.5 THTAC!) Td UTGR (2.5 TAUACH) ¥ hasl bl (191 2015— 2017 & QIRTA GRT BT 737 o7 |
GIAETG 2015 7 2018 B SR AT DI TS |

TAURIR # ®zal dd (4.28 TATHT) ¥R & foly g9RIRT YRA ORER §RT U &f T3 o, 3R a1fie ddrer ud
IERETE (31 TS TH) NI IR IRBR §RT T8 Pl ST &l © |

TRT B HF-TI VETTHT 7 10 HRAX, 2019 BT 7 THUISIR BT X bl FHUT T |

SHRC IR TR Dhiddc BT (ARIIRE) 3R WHIRY & el & gwyU, TAUIRIR H WX S dTel ded dd @l
Jf3p IITd & faTayor & foTU dbfeud Afsdl TR BT YA {haT AT | 25 SN, 2017 BT TS TAUISRTA
3R TeAI® & 414 Tl WSRUT 3IR Haed UR U (e FHsii IR SR fhy 7 | AHsiid & SR UsHId o
AR BT Hd- T Bl 0.75 THTAST SIUTH TS Ped Il I MR AT | TSHIh Bl JMETHAURIRUA gRRT I efold
SUANT & oIy =IATH 50% WSRO &HT 1Y G JAMTRAD & | A 50% HSRUT &7 STaATAd STANT & forg
TSP B U SUTT 8T |

DA AHESH 7 8 TS, 2021 BT IMATAT T Didwc 966 & SR ASTHUISRYA & STTATIDBROT DI FoRT
T &), T STEUTIIsIRUS BT THYISIR Brihd & IRU—| & dgd dadl § JUSId dod dol & ATl 3Nf¥h
aIfoTiTes TTfAfAfErT BT &1 AR <1 T8, T AEUAIRIRUA B [T & foll TAYIRNR & BT 30% AR
TATRS 22T & oY TAUIRNR &THdT BT 20% SUIRT S Bl ITFHANT T T8 |

IMETHYIRNRYS TR AL BT AL B DT Ufhar # § |

faeioang

3MIT HUI = 37U Il DI T I & g AR~ ugdl & 8 | faemamo=/, HTeR §d urgR § THURIR &
31 1S TH & Hde H % 97t ) <) TR 7

1. faemETUT=4 (HSRYT &HAT: 1.33 YHUHT)

fIeIRETIT9 Hd= Pl 2015 H =Te] AT AT o7 | 57 FiGem H T HHTCHE Da U (1.03 TATAS]) 3iR ba+ &l
(0.3 TAUASY) & | Da- T XcfoTd ded dal @ foly & 3R I8 MRT WRGR §RT SUTe] dxil Tt =11 & #_T
ST & | TerdRATgel F AU ARTd ATSTHRUT & TR WR dhas §f (ordT © | Tauiive g1 faemaro=™
317 R uRerer & 7T g fHafiid U A START fhar ST g |

Y & SR dad &1 & oy fet A Hea Rigde Wi g5 iR gauiiive @l faemrarg=q RersRl $I 66
Rrq¥e ST fg 7 |
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9 9§ DI TASIY (@1 wHa geen) Rard 72 &) 73 | TR R 9+ & Ul w6 &) AR fARET iR
Y[l PR TAYIRIR BT 24x7 HTel G fbar a7 | TAIRIR &1 sRgsar YHAfdad o+ & foy R e
TR IRl AN B B SINEiohe FIRE Bl T8 | FaR® I@Ramd Tfafafedf FuiRa srisd & s gar
AT @ 78 | 3mard Reyfd A e & forg T 9910 @9 & ol STSUTHUIRIRUS §RT URIR® AgrIdl
AR R AT ABTRAT & 12t Q1 Afeh f3el ST &1 718 | e &7 S dY e 23 AT ol 971 g3 |

faemEmaTs 9 SRt gfaemsn &1 g
2. TR (WSROT &9 : 1.5 THUHT))

HTAR D+ Giaem TR vasore arF H Refd & | a7 0.75 THTHS! &9l &l &l dd- & |

HTAR DHast &1 BT IR, 2016 B ASIA H AT fHdT AT AT | HTAR & DHawt Y BT W’ B foly TSI=ai=el &
A1 Yeb FHSIT R BEIER fhT T oF | HITAR & oIy Pl del dl Ugell Vel RIose &l 12 7, 2018 &I
A USRI Ua wrepfares 1w ERT o1g el ¥ w9 i farg 7S 3R 19 WS, 2018 B ASTANIRYSA
HTAR H 91 febam 71 |

Y 2022—23 F ARM, HTAR ba T B fFHR, 2022 3R A/, 2023 & ARM FUI SHA I & 3.1 Fforad
ued | WR e a7 2, R USHTe gRT AlS[aT & dct ®f 98l @ d1e oIl 37 2 |

9 99 Pig eIy (BT R gee) Rulc 81 & 718 | TAURIR R Ul & Ual WR &1 SR FRRE 3R
YLl PRe THUISTR BT 24x7 HeTer G fBam 127 | YA &l sRgsdl Gifad o & fory i
g sioraIaTde PR iR 9R 8ld I U=l &I TAT forar 17 | FaR® wevarg Tfafafert HeiRa
BTIHH B STAR AT T TS |

3MSTAUISTRYS 2022 H HIAR H Ul IR TAUISl goic SIBHIRIAT 3R HHIRTIT YRIET ©U I &I T8 o |

AT W ST I Tdheieh| Bl AN B H U & el § TTHT 48 TG BT Bl HHI AT © |
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fai 24.09.2022 &1 HNvaSl—ngandIvar 3N va.va. d& &1 IMETINIRTA ATAIR BT SIRT

3. IR (HSRT & : 2.5 TIYHTY)
9TgR URATSHT & fory IgUT f7el @ uIgR Td # dics il &3 e 916 (HIMsSIdl) & AeH I 179

g YA BT AT BT 7T T | IE MSUAUIRIRUS gRT Fe1fad Fa9 <1 IRATSH & 3R 39 fa™eR, 2018
H =Te] fohar T o |

1] Y & SRT UIGR T A JATUTIDTCA DIl DT R o1 SR T H W ATHIRAT DI Fraar
IS @ | I URER & dT8” A1 AR il IR &7 a1 737 | MSTHUIRIRYS UTgR <1 & §9Y TR Afdfha
P g fRerar 3k el sfareRal gRT axE=T &1 78 2 |

SR UY iR ST AT U0 Wiehi| HE SR 8xe] GarAl @ Ae9d 9 {6y 10 3R Ihadrgdd
fAurfed fy 77 | BRR dfer 919 4U &1 <1 AaRaleiT QO 8 T foraH wde Reekpie, siearerfei ik
FHUfeT ReTAHT 6T B e o |

9 Y DI Teleiy (B FHa geen) RUIE 98l &1 75 | TAYIRIR R Uil & Y&l WR &I IR FRE 3R
gAY WD TEUIRIR &I 24x7 Aerer GiHed fhar war| gadieR &) srdsdr gHfed & & forg
g sIrdiihe R R Bd &I FREl @1 78 | FaR® weRdE Tafatl FaiRa erisd @ AR
AT &Y 7T |
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Afira wWelhe dad &1 g

I b e RN B L LN £ W B 2 - Rl S I 2 M 4 |
09.10.2022 @l ATSTIRIRTA ATAIR H
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M7 £ 8e bdds sl il M
17.03.2023 &I aRVI-| fAwR uRAe=T & fag fy siftrrser & fog
YOS SISUd @ 9T Uh Sl S99 UR IeR

ATST a3 HHATRAT gRT Tae8dl yEdrsT el
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TS THRIRIRUS B gl &1 uRATSHRN o Reafa

urgR, forer Igl, ddics d fgdia avv1 & d8d 2.5 THEHT ¥ S foia Ugiferi Wik

UTgR URATSTT & oy A JAfERrsor & o7y, STEURUIIRUS o FaaR, 2020 H BIATTTSET DI (A TSI B
ST HAT IR DI | HITSYSIE! =1 UG H 22 THRa, 2023 Bl 214.79 Ths YA & foru i oie sifeRgam
ST 1 & 3R S 24 AT, 2023 BT UH H USRI AT TIT € | b AT AIC Silfch 31.05.23 BT DH3MSTSIE! A
TS 83T, & AR 62.5 BRIS SYU B I o 3TATdT 98 BRI SUY ¥ A BT T AT T ST et
2 | SMSTHUIRIRUS §RT BATUSIE! Bl el 160.5 BRIG SYU BT AT (AT TT 7 | BTSS! ST, Igul
@ WAL H 3R US IR Yol Bl A FY I 31R A ATfTb] BT GATIST <1 BT UHAT H 7, Hamgusal
ERT AT 2024 T YA AIE0T B IHE 2 |

Raradurs! T9siid @& oy arem 436 A U&= BT U W06 © | UG- H UHUIGH & oy Al Faefor, HiefeT
3R U UTSUATS AT FdeToT IRT &1 b7 § |

A SAfgc e Bl IIRUGY IR & foIU o9 AoigdR 3R Y Afed & folv ofaeasd oRor || &
Rarell T &1 TR & T S FATe DR HE¥ Yoled! UIeR & w0 H [F1gwh f6a1 141 & | I8 1
2 o UTgR @ Ty aTRuw T fa<ii ay 2023—24 H SIRY BT SITQar |

Fidigre, fSrer SreyR, ifeen A fgdia aRo1 & d8d 4.0 tigad) & Sfoia ugiferad AR

SISV ERT SIUBIAR AT T 81 & 914, 4 THUACT & Bl THUISR JAEY =1 &R & oy
TTERETA H 400 UhS YA o 37T & folg M THUISTRYS §RT Tah 314G 30 RAdaR, 2019 BT AMSUT TRBR
DI IR AT AT AT | TRBR YA TG & Heddh & d1a NS TBR 7 MSTAUIIRYS Pl ASI@ETd,
SN & UIRT U debioddh AT B HHTIHT TATEI Bl FeATs 4l |

IS TAYIRUSA = A9 ol SfSar foffics & Areyd | SXhely e+ fhar iR SUUE 3l & |9
P IR URTEIY & U <19 G111 6] 98d™ &, A A18e o

) e T f&d : I8 &7 Arerkdid & SET g4 SR URIGT 3 S 55 fdhHT gr Rerd &

i) JERPIYR UBTS] : IE & daidiel & SR 1 3R URTGIT | T+ 87 ! §R simerofl <1 & 91 Al @
o Rera 2 |

iii) YESYR UBTS! : IE & AN & IR ¥ IR URTAIT H oI 80 fohfl ¥ Rerd 2|

[T AT AT AT Tl BT JedTdh B & o1y 23 IR 24 Hg, 2023 BT AU 31X FMSUAURIRUS & aNS
NABIRAT BT Tep HYh AISC RT AT T o7 | 79 goi-d gfean fafics (Samgud) = ra Rurc
TR B & 3R UHSIET I & wU H fJded () ot RawrRer o 2 |

R NS TRBR BT ST ifw FTeafd & forg 31 FeTrg 2023 BT &I AT AT B |

. faaR & d8d 1.5 /2.0 THEHE Hralx fa9iy snfefs a3 o Wi dgiferaq s |

17.02.2023 BT FITAITT 21 a1 (Siasdl) 7 HTAR THTEgISUA § THUIRIR iR Hafed giaemaii &
AT @ foru HTaR Werea geMime oiF fafics (Tiuasorsud) 9 gfsas wefoe ugifersm Rorsd
fAfcS (RMETadleIRU) gRT 4 (154.9 UHS) & SEUBYT & IRKAE BT ARl & ol © | TS TAUIRIRYA + 17
AT, 2023 BT TATAROISTA &3 HITAR H 154.90 TS A & WIC MMHR & [Ty TAYAROISTA & A1ef Udh
FHSIT S0 TR gTeR fhU B |
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SIS TA Pl SURIH ASC b o1y [ Fasriar RUIS TAR BR 6T HH HIUT TAT T |

3 gRATSRN & oIy NiTwaR / SIHIIR : fFIHTR # dod I & HSRI & oIy Alee da- & fHfor
& ol SUHR, 911 3§ Teliew HeR @ ot YIUHaTR, HTAR UF UIgR H SHIHF & $HUR HSRIT &b & [Ty
GIQU3TR BT FETIT B BT 4T U4 § |

LIGIE R CNLEGIY

1.

2.

3.

4.

JMSTANIRIRTA BT favaTq &iffee Hushl gRT Ui AeM @ 31afey @ foru fovar ar o s snguadisRya
DT TITYAT, TRATSAT FRVT 3R FATeAT =TRT & 918 H fAIRd SIHBRNI I&TH 6 T8 o |

Jud Slailg A= = gadiemR Harer iR vt UR WAl g =i & folQ 14 TadR, 22 DI ATUAUIRIRYA
TR 3R 15 TIeR, 22 BT TS YHUINRYS [ARTRETIT=H T SIRT BT |

dhae U HITAR H ¥efore Rered ol wR+ H ol & 3R BRI e WR =4l & oy 18 STa™l, 2023 Pl
TeAId UfAfTERT & |rer d8@ AT &1 718 o |

ISR e Tl HSRUT ST URITSTAT BT THIRTT B AR SNSRI Bl GRITSTAT H M TAGISIRTA
P IR & @ISl & foTT SMETaUIRIRUS JMfBTRAT BT ST ARBST JATH BT GINT |

ISRy d, faemeEmua=a da+ uida &= A deng 0 smRe) ufaf+fer

qiffe Ruid 2022—23




sfeus wefora ugifersm Ruoadt fefics

qiffe Rald 2022—23

Wolcomes

Ms. Monica Neukomm

Peinwcipal Depuiy Direcioe
anad
Delogates from Depariment af Energy

INDIAN STRATEGIC PETROLEUM RESERVES LIMITED




sfeaq wefoie ugiferaw Rosd ferfics

- Whith... dl

A b

qiffe Ruid 2022—23




R @R deifrr Rersd fifs (6)

SIS N

3T Feers Heet 31 A1, 2023 BT T < a9 @ forg foredt amafer @t RywrRer 72 v 2 |

SINFIRIEI R

fa<T e 2022—23 & SR B ©IC BT 31 AT, 2023 BT A o< 99 & oIy HUl & Rofed § SaRd $R faar
TATE |

GICIISCACE ]

31 919, 2023 B RAMT & JITAR, 3MYSDT HUT 71 A ST H Dlg TGS ST STAR, Widhd AT TdI-Idhd el
T 8 3R TRTIAR 9SG G | IS TA AT TSl ST T8 & |

GECIR RS LRSI I

IS 71 SIET—uNIe AT BT TS B © | 31 A9, 2023 B RAMT & AR, oikam wWierm |fAfy # F=falad
IBENCINIECE

1. &1 YT H ol TUE, YHRIUITSUASH / e, SguauieiRyd . 3fee
2. A FHIMAAT Al A4, TUF U€ UHY, UHSIT US Ul [/ TGS, sTEUHURIRGe Al
3. gl Se AT, AUHS! @S, THIUITSTASl / Faerd, JAguadiesiRyd L e
4. A 9ut Ryee, |fa, Siemsedl /e, smSuaveRyd e
5. 3 UA. 3R, I, JHIIA. Td Jae faerd, SMeuduismRyd |

UR% a2 §RT 9RT &l T8 8| & | i gV fa<d a¥ & SR AT d8ai &l e iR fafer
IqdT—HHA TS T |
HiIURe AHioe ot (froasmz) afafa

HUHT B Teh WUHIR AT 8 ST U B JadT5E TR SUT 8 | B o 99 B <R HodsiR qfafaforat o
PIs T9T W 81 AT & Fifd B = fUoel N9 A< 99t & SR BIs o el HHIT R |

JTTHIR AT | 31 AT, 2023 b fAAfeTRad 2T 2 o ;

1. g ST SNara, Ul (S, THTVSTHSH / fHderd, SmETaiamRye  SFeTe
2. #1 Ue AR OF, GHLAM. T Jae e, SATSTAURIRYA )

URd S8 §RT 9RT ol T3 d8d| &1 |l &2 8 o< a¥ & SR IR dadl &l §&T 3R
fafdrn srga—« % & T €|
arftfe Re &1 frspd

DU STAFTIH, 2013 BT &RT 92(3) AR GRT 134(3)(T) & ATAR, HUAT F 31 AT, 2023 Tb & dI¥Db R+ Bl Tb
Ifd 379+ devTse TR ¥l B | https://isprlindia.com/annual-report.asp.

9IS @1 45
T T 2022—23 § HUAI & [P HS DI BT I6B g (OB [daRT Al {7 AT -
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1.2 [, 2022

2. 12 317, 2022

3. 18 AdeR, 2022
4. 04 1d%R, 2022

5. 17 9%, 2022

6. 16 A4, 2023

UR% a9 §RT 9RT &l T8 98] & | i gV A< a¥ & SR ARG d8a! &l e iR fafr
IgeE—p H TS T |

AT ® WHY A gRadd

FHIEAT ¥ & SR JaAI Bl UPIa § DI uRacd Tal gan 2 |

HHAIRAT T faazxor

HUN H VAT BIg A HHARI 81 &, oTd Jag § BuHl (FagdHi Biffiel o IR iR qRsifies) Fesmae,
2014 & AT UTST B ATATIH, 2013 & U] & T [4aROT IR DR DI ATTLIHAT ¢ |

Wa A fAQer®l gIRT "y

facT 99 2022—23 & SR BUAI & 9IS H Blg W (2T Tal o |

SIHRaw yqer

FUAl BT FRER ABETT & 70 J9TET SR Jeere Hecaqul € | U & Tl 3 s SIgd Bl Igemd B
3R SIREHT BT HH B & oy IUYTh FERTHD H&H IS B [T BUT & UTT SIRIH Jd&T I © | U1 A

I T SIReH ded Il @l I 3iR HeRoT vd faaer & Hefdra € | A1a Tarere afshard iR gafe 91 da”
JUATHY 1 SIRIHAT BT HH fHaT SIar 2 |

AR gl
¥ & SRM, BN 7 AT AR Goll TIRY T8 T B |
U q4ED I S ®
FHIEATS Ty & SR YUidhTiold T TaeIdid HhifHd FR=iferfad o :
®) HB1IAL Td vy Fowrd - s Tel. 3R, O (31.10.2022 %)
) B3N Ud yed e (iR ovR) - 1 39T SN (17.06.2022 ¥ 30.10.2022 T)
M) GBI T vy e — £ T4, Aol (01.06.2022 )
") T =i srferen — £ MUTR HAR R
) ®Hu AR - g Rredl A (06.06.2023 W)
) PHUAl Afed - i1 316U TAdR (15.05.2023 Th)
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JMSTAUISRYS & i H G PL3M. Ud Uae Faere Bl Bredr T4l e Ugiforad vd urdfae 19 d3red
(TR U Toll) gRT 1A gad a2 € | §a1ail Ud uay e ol FYRh suadisnRyd ars gRT o
S 8 | TR U ol gRT A1 UeH e o 3Ig uiksifie T8 faur Siar 2 | smdvadiemRed 3 fafis
T USR] IR HTIRT 31 AfABRY Tt & & Ardstiieh Sl | ufafrgfis W E |

1 U, 3R, S, G131, Ud YaeT ferep, SMSTaUlsiRye (31.10.2022 W) 3R 4 P1.3MT. Ud UaeT Fqerds Bl ITam
o T a1 SMEUAURIRYE 1S 3R UoilgHd H TRRERS] gIRT STHIGd S+ ISR & i U4 3l &
IR T |

%7 ST SRR, Sl SY GBI & WU H BRI © | GDL3M. /T (Tb-1a), AMSTAUISRYS G.HI3AT. UG Ude
eer®, JMEUAURIRTA & 3STfaR TR UR 1 (17.06.2022 H 30.10.2022 T®) | 2T ST SAR AT A
affRIfRe 1R € iR Sgroi=et # oo AR & ot vd ordf & SR uriRstfies uret v € |

) TEdIUH SMTgSlT, Yd H.H1.37. d yae e (01.06.2022 Tah) ST TGS A HRIFRIRE UR 21, 31 TR,
2019 &I ATl H HATAGd 8 Y 3R e Yd RRERS] §RT Yoigd ¥ rfdrfed Al wd w@l w®
MSTAUISTRYS & A1 H HI3M. UG UeeT feerd & wu H a1 72 |

fa<ig a9 @ 3fq @ik RUId &) aim @ 99 faxiig Refa &1 ywafaa 9 ara wifas aRad= @ik
afragang

Joi¥ ofie | Fafa s & fa<ig 99 vd R @ g & 91t & 91 {6l gaR &1 Aifae aRadd e
I |

e At sreTeral a1 eI gR1 uka f6y v we@yef ve wifas smewt &1 <R su @)
are], Reafar SR wfasy §f Ul & Hara &1 yATfad Har @

FIRITAT AT =TTl AT AR §RT VAT DI Heayul Ud Hifad 3reer uikd =& fohar ar f5=d wigsy 4
HAd IS WR 3R B & Farer= HIfad 81 |

HE® / GYad SeH / GEAarh dufi

S AAIH, 2013 & UG & Ted DU & UTH Bl Geh / FIad SeM / FEAN HuAl 78 & |
EECIR RIS ED

Fenfre T udien -

IRA & RIS Ud AeleraTiRiedd (AIsysi) 7 HH TG 3MTSTe U HUl (150029), 1207, [ fawor fafesT,
19, HRAT e AR, 775 fAeel—110001 BT HUN & IS QRIS & WU H Fg<h fBa1 8, s uwgd
fhar & 31 974, 2023 BT FATK AT 9 & oIy HUT & WAl R I RUIS (IFIE—dT) | TRIRYRS] Bl YT
Rure 4 HAifafde oramRiere &1 fewuforT 3R I6 1R Yaee &l SR IJa8—H1 & $U H He 1 2 |
eSSl gIRT YRS oTradie :

faxira v 31 A4, 2023 & 1T BUT & A< fIGROT BT BUT IATIH, 2013 BT TRT 143 (6) (V) & T8 AT U
TSI §RT YR oRATIRIET b1 715 | AT U Yol o JAMGUAUISIRUS & oI fqavor iR 9= &1 08.09.2023 & ATEH
9 frfaRad fewfort < € |

aiffe Ruld 2022—23 @




(6) <o R Yelfrm Rersd fifies
TR
ISPRL

$. HATA U4 IG—RE@Td &I & - Iy 2021—22 & 1Y 3iif$e & TR HUT gRT QY MY 3Meard & dTa9g,
U/ & Rl 3l TS UH 0 &1 WRUTg & Fel IR & Fdg 7 SWIee At AIcs fdISccd 3ih
ST (QMSAITSIE) BT T HUT §RT WRA WRBR / TRITNTSTAG, TSHIE 3R TadRIvel & T 1f3r o1
HRT &1 BT TS o |

. od dd BT Ad@T—SET - q¥ 2021—22 & IMSC & IRM HUT gRT 3T MY AT & qrasje, fa<ia
faRoTl # $7e ok & 7Y ATSATLSIS BT 1A &1 AR T3 oY |

M THYIRIRYS HISH & fewforIl & Sy qaTe dRars S |

afaarerii= d@r—udiar -

9§ & SR, YAl & drs 7 HE™ Yol US TAINITCH, HU- Afedi, 106, A8RA Alfhad, §—4, HaeI—50,

AIYS—201301, IR U BT HU & Al okdl Wierehl & WU 4 {+geh fbar o | faxiig av 2022—23 & forg

HUHT IFAFTIH, 2013 BT RT 204 B YTTHTT IR ISP T8d 9491¢ TV 941 & ded Aady difse o1 & forg

FHU A dErieret gRT & T Rurd 39 RUIE & A1 Hold € (e d—9) | IRRURG! & oy o

RIETh] Bl RIS H DIg AT T8l o |

ATTd orET—adeEr

AR T TIRT 148 & S H, DU DI fH¥Al AR TEIHR | AT & 19 RDISf DI oIGT— Y& BRI &

3MITIEHT & & |

Suit veror, Henfra) sraenyor AR fageh yor ey 3k <

HUT o1 fIemRaeTH, HTAR 3IR TR dasl bl aTe R 4AT © | Holl ARET Ud U] FHeer & Haer §

THTRIT B & fol§ HUHl & UTH B T T2l & |

Y & SR BU DI 1,454.56 G U DI fA a1 U 8 | §HD STATdT, S U1 TaaT D Tifaferdr

& 10 ol TR el Sfafe & TR X4,782.39 WG &1 42 JaT 6T SUANT fhar € |

arraR® fa<ia fr=or

HIHI & I FHIETRNA 1afY & SR faxiig fexoi & dew & uafw enidRe i =T & |

HrIvRId R A SATsH 3 AHAH

BRI R AR & A9 SATSH & YT HUHT SIRT Slensd Y& & | BUHT & U HrRIRT W AfRel &

A Idied @ v vd A SR 9 S A7 IS A & forg g N o &, o arivera R

Afatral &1 A It ([, fvy v framo) sferfeas, 2013 # fifed |l ugqall & wnfie f&ar T & |

HUHT 7 I AR B Ted dRed Rerd AMRT & 789 H FafET UTaer=l &7 T BT 2 | e

Y & SR, B BT I ARAFTTH & T2d BIS RIwrd ura 181 g3 |

qIS &I edid

IS, 39! AT iR Afthra Feerdl & uee= &1 siiuaRe a1fie qie AEUAUIRIRYA & dre gRT

3rgHIfed 9 Ueei Jeide Tfa & AR fhar T g |

oEr WEsl g grErere! o R

T a9 & SR, BT AT, 2013 B IRT 143(12) & TET AT WD §RT GIRERIS] B HIg Tl

qferd T B TE R |
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€IIRT 186 & dad K uNl, TRfeAl a1 faen &1 faaxer

Y 2022—23 ® SR MSUAURIRTS §RT BIg 0T ol (a1 737 AT 9T 81 fohar 747 | Hu+l =1 arforsad wx
PRI H BUAC! / ATACT USHHROT JHATOTIH YT 6’ & oTg THRIIC, TASIGCI3—260 (ST HTfeahvoT)
P UeT H 50,000 / — DU BT §Ioil &1 & | DU gRT FRAT I T BY 50,000 / — B Ths! & RIet droil <1 T
o |

HUHT 7 YRR W & e Fa e AR AR & forg Su fHaerds, SIvHsil, HiTaR & ueT H 1,45,000 / —
T B TS ARG 71 2 |

AT TEYIIRYA §RT fa®14 IR gHudg oS AR &l fagivax anfefe &= @ 9w 25 &1 yraum=l
$ ded H 9EgRl IR A9RIl & T 2006 & HRUT T 8 9] IUHIVT U9 RARICl & ol &
T | $.100.80 B B §f~s Wied S Tuer u= fear w2 |

e v SRITR

1 GO Ul ST el U ey e, JASUHUIIRUd, A, AuddisRye 3R Hu+l Hied,
JAMETHYIRNRUS BT FaGbId UTRHMD & I, NATgSIdl Bl Tai &I gfayfd, Mefgsidl | U JaM,
MRS SIAT BT AR A fHY Y 2>, FURT BT ! IR SR TP WA o | STAUT BT FAF 3R ITHIT
(UrdiE) Hafdd uell & AT o F—< FIH™ & AT HH H BId 8 AR 3T ol & IR W BId & 3R Udhfd #
Wiferes e 8l & |

Afarerfl A9a1 & YTaEr=l &1 Ut

SRITYC 3T HFIAT Ashe I 311t fear gIRT MEiRa ARErerdl AFe! BT Bl §IRT IUidT yTerd T S
=

Aol & ScarelRicg &1 faaxer

ST o ST SIfSIfH, 2013 BT IRT 134 & SYURT (3) @ T$ (1) B A8 MAAD 8, 3MUD! HU! BT D
HEdl $9@ gRT 94T HRdl & IR gie axal & fdh

(@) fOcT 9¥ & fog arftes oRaT TR =1 H, A fere | Haferd T TCIdRoT & |1 1] olEid
HITHT BT AT fhaT 7T &;

@) el 71 O AEie Aot g § dei SHeT RaR T AT 7 vd U ol fog € ok wradserd
TR Y 8 ST 31 A7, 2023 BT BT & AT T IH aY & oIy HUHI & o™ Td BT & IR H FeI Ua
et TR Igd e @ foly T Td Ud |aHE &

@@  Bu B gRHURTET BT GReAT TAT TS UG I MfAfHarstt @ bt Ud Sffd @ forg dur

AT, 2013 & TTaETl & ATAR QLD §RT @i & YT Repre! & RET & oIy FYfaa vd

AT AT SR T B

et =1 31 A9, 2023 BT AT fad a9 & forg “Had U™ SR WR ofEl GuR far &;

) ) AN DI D TG bl STguTer G el @ forg fAaere | Wi gomferan qar &l g 3R
Iz {3 G yonforat uate € aom omdl & | M R TR &

4 d
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31 A4, 2023 B R & JFAR, AMYH BUAl & Fqwd Fed d Ul ddbifeld IR HRIUD Fasd AR Th
qUichTieTeh 41,31, Ud Ude fFaere el € foaept faaxor =i faam = &

1. 27 Ut oiF (SIMTEUA— 00675922) AfRIA, THITUIUSUAG— 1edel (FRfth 20.01.2022 | gwT)
2. # qIOT He O (SIMET - 09746472) TUH, THAIIGSTAS / Feeres, STEvadiemye

(FrIfRF 17.02.2023 | ¥wT)
3. gl P <8 I (SIATSUH - 09831741), TUH TS THY, TH3NY US Uil / fHIqeras,

(FIfRF 21.12.2022 | g¥T)
4. GHAT ST MO (SITSTA— 08504560), AMAH TATEDHR, THINUIUSUAGI (22.12.2021 I gfth)
5. g5 a9l Ry=gT, (S187M$UH - 09825811), A4, 3RMg Sl / Fawrd (PR 15.12.2022 | J4T)
6. & Tel. AR. I (SIATST - 08505199), Y.L T Yael ey (FRYRh 31.10.2022 A F4T)

01 3MWd, 2022 & 4915 f=faRaa fAeee IETafeRya @ dis o fAe9e <12 <8 v :

- A TErdiUE SNTEST, G BRIGRT AfHNI Ud Uy feerd (FE1 01.06.2022)

. 81 39T SRR, Y& SHRIGR] IUHRI Ud vdy fawrd (3R 99R) (17.06.2022 | 30.10.2022 )
. gH AR IS, SI0Y U4 UHY, UHRIYT Ud Teoll — Mqerd (11.10.2022 9 21.11.2022 )

.o g #ifar, iR |t &k o<l FeedRr —aers (A1 26.09.2022)

. ST 9+ JgE PISNI, AfHd, RnssEl / ewrd (FA 30.11.2022)

a A WO N -

eI fer
YD HUT BT FIGH FSel IR IRBR, USTTIH Td WIdhicd 19 A qAT ddf ST f[Adh a8 o urd
HeIdT ATGR iR AL BT B TR Sch HRAT 2 |

ol U QeI Jedl @ IR 9
(= sharaa) (Tat 3R i)
IRERED H.H1.31. Uq yae Fqere
(13T : 08504560) (SI3TST : 08505199)
a1 : 26.09.23
e« 78 et

qiffe Ruld 2022—23




sfeua Eefoa ugiferayw Ruat ferfies

74\
1O,

ISPRL

(BrgerTa—I)

qIe affifaa 3R 9IS & doa! &1 faaxer vd ATl gRT 91T o+ dTell doad] &) T -
RECIR REIRSI IR

<IT wleT afAfa | fa<i 9 2022—23 # §1 d5@ @ |
31 JMACER, 2022 DI AT RATIRIET AT BT o H fwre o SR s TaR 7 -

A 9. ae qeAH faxr adf 202223 #
SuRerd
1. | g afd=R g9re 3yeges 1
2. | g 23 larsa q 1
3. | s Uel. 3R, oA NESS! 1

3 {1, 2023 BT AT SRATILIET G B 96b § fevre ) SuRerfd s UeR 2 :

9 4. e qe fa o 202223 4
Sufterd
1| 0 gdior 4el @eolr Jreget 1
2. | g FIfeEn e <A RES) 1
3. | g se sardd NiEaalt 1
4. | sl gat R, S NERS 1
PRUNCT AHTTS ITR&IRIE (HoHanR) |fif -
i I 2022—23 & SR HGHAR AR B BIE d3F MRN8 T8 |
e dsd -
HU $ s Fee A FfaRad faavor & srgaR fa<ia av 2022—23 # B8 6@ @ -
1. 02 S[H, 2022

2. 12 3, 2022

3. 18 AdqsR, 2022

4. 04 FdeR, 2022

5. 17 FdeR, 2022

6. 16 AT, 2023
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fa<ia gt 2022—23 # AFT A arell 91 B FeHT @ oy ATl @ SuRefa &1 fagwor fF=gaR 2

=z v |
9 Ye@l I "
L. i Yol o9 (20.01.2022 | UHTA) aTeet 6
2. 1 TATOT Hel WO (17.02.2023 F F4TET) IRENET 1
3. AT BIAT ABT A (21.12.2022 F JHTA) IRENET 1
4. T SO SR (22.12.2021 1 FHT) IRENED 5
5. g aul R47=T (15.12.2022 | Y1) RENED 1
6. i Tel. 3R, i (31.10.2022 ¥ THTE) B3 T yae feerd 3
7. Sf. U9, TA. BISNI (30.11.2022 TH) IRENED 5
8. g2l gfoer 94T (21.11.2022 ) IRENED 3
9. N ST SN (30.10.2022 Th) B Ud Faer fFewd 2
10. | = g8 SNfTarT (26.09.2022 Th) IRERIED N
11. | =0 Tadiud. 3Mgell (01.06.2022 ) &3 Ud yay e Nl
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g 3feuq v e ugiferaw Rured fafiies (‘wuel”) & Fer facihy faavon &1 oiar wer o 8, s
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AEE, | AR O 2016—17 | fawar AT & q8d AT BT I U8l &1 IR
1961 143(3) & (@ 2017-18) | foar B, wr@ifs SMAR UIEA W gBEAT B B9 A
qed ® TS TeRId 8 & 918 | HR fTT IR RIS dfad
2l
@)  &H &S AFHN, IARIHROT R TG PATIEH & IR, ATe 3R HaT &, Jfas [, Heemr) s
T, MIER, fIehl—ax, |1 B, HHT Yo, IAUTE Yo Aled DIy AU GHTIT Tal AT | 7od afeid @,
SUPR 3R BIg D <F S -1 IdTY T DI BISHR (Bl W fJa1e & HROT S+ 1 781 fhar T 8 |
fqarfea somar &1 fqawor
. At &1 A <9 Al | <l Jrafer BIA T8l afs
. P YBR |(@rg xH)| o | fare «fea CIE]
afdr 2 feaofy 2 ar
wefea 21
1. |afg wewr oy wie Rarad| et |11,795.03(31.03.2018 | @M @R -
99 1996 b CEEIG]
RENIGES
3Tt g
2. IR AT, 1961  [JoTidT W] 0.29 focig oy TP —
AT &R 2017—18 TG<H
154 & Td] (ardren)
@ TS @ I e
& dsd
3. CEICEARCIU NN | HURT A | 821.68 |a¥ 2015—16 |q&g BB -
e, 1993 H 2022—23 | SN,
ISEIREIRE
SEL
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viii)

sfeaq wefoie ugiferaw Rosd ferfics

g4 3l T8 SIMBRI, TCIHROT 3R JdET 3PATIG & AR, By o—ad 8l T, W & g H Gol
&1 fopam T o, fOT ey S1fSfaH, 1961 & T8 B R H 99 & SR I & WU § 1fiad a1
gdpe fohar 14T o |

g4 & TS SHBRI R WEIHRI & AR, HUAT 1 R0l AT 3G IURI & YA 7 a1 fheil
FEUTGTAT DI TS b YA H b T8l Bl & | TR, NG S 59 T & UG HUl WR AN el
EId 2 |

B4 I T8 SIMBRI 3R FYCIHIV & ATAR 3R AR ST AfhIRAT & AR TR, BT BT bl
de 7 < AR AT fhdl 31 SRUTRTaT §RT (e e [Shieer Blfvd w18l fdhar T 2 |

HUAl & RDIS BT ST BT T3 3R BH & T8 BRI, TICTHIVT 3R TGEH RIS & AR, HU)
q a¥ & SR BIE AT For TEI T & | TETAR, QY & $H TS & IR HU- IR AR T8l 8
2

gH Tl TS SHPRI 3R WSIHRoT gRT frearfed ufshamsii @ik wu=l & fa<iia AR & 99y < &

3R, &1 Rl axd 8 % SU gRT 9¥ & SR JeTdIld MR W BIg &9 Te1 el TAT & |
TR, 3T & 3 WS B TG U IR AR T2l 81 & |

g & T AFHRI IR WEERU & ATAR, Ul BT DIs FeEdh, FTEARN AT WYh SeH T8 2 |
TSR, 3T & 7 WS B TG S IR AR el 81T & |

&4 & IS SIH®RI 3R WPV & AR, BU - I8 B SR DIg T 61 (071 & | TaJAR, Qe
® N WS B UG HUH IR AT T8l 81 § |

B A1 T8 SIMaRI 3R WDV & AR Sd MY Rble & AR, HU 7 g9 D aR ARMH
AGSIS T AT AN & AAoi~ieh UG (R0 ISUBRVI Hied) & ARFH A 99 el Ser o |
TETAR, AT & 39 WS & YT U IR AR T8I 81 & |

g Q) T3 BRI iR TR & SR SR Wi Y RBIES & AR, U 7 99 & SR IR

AT YR FSdaR (Ui, 37T AT dhfeqsds wU I URATI) BT DIs SMEHT A AT Hsi
e TRl {61 § | ISR, 3R & 9 W & WA HU WR o 78 81d ¢ |

xi) (@) BAR SifET & IR, ART H M AR UR Wi AMMSIST YTl & AR Td SARI STHDHRI Td fawarq

& IR 3R B & T TGN, TR MR FdeH 1RIde & AR U=l & Gad! IR
NGl @ T9 DI TS | HU §RT DI AIETETS! AT HUN IR By GRITTS! a9 & SR Afesd a1 Rare
TE PTG B |

NATTH BT &RT 143 BT BU IRT (12) B T&T BIH TSIEI—4 H §AR §RI g ARBR © U hlg RATS
T T B TS R

T & TE THGN, TEIEHROT U4 Jde FTIe & TR, BU §1]T a9 & SR dTs faRia ©lier
Rreprad ur 81 88 ® |
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xii) (), (@) 3N (1) B SITAR & < TS TGN Td WG B SRR, B Teb Y Hu=it &1 7 | TagaNR,

xiii)

xiv)(<h)

XV)

IY B 3 WS B TG HU TR AN & 81 & |

& &) TS TSN, TEIHRT UG T SPATde & IR, e fdra uiféat & wrer oF—<d Sififeras o
RT 177 AR 188 & AT H &, ST81 AN &I, AR T AT Uret e o1 fderor fa<ii faavor o
gahe [T T § ST o a9 ¢ | (AN MR ol /1, fa<iia faavont & forg Are 23 <)

B B RDIS DI S B 715 AR B4 T 7T STHBRI, TLIBRT U4 Yae T & AR, HUAT &
URT U IMARD IATIRIET UUTTel! 8, BTelifdb, U=l & Aadrd & YTHU &I 94111 & folv sa9&T1
TTIRT 96T DY ATATIHAT 2 |

AT 3o b SIRT U1 P 3dRe 3iifse Ruid wr faar fear 2 iR siffee & dga 9d & forv &4
SYTT PRIATE |

g4 S T8 STMaRI 3R ISRV & AR, BUT F a9 & SR 37 Jd—4. 1311, Td yae a2 iR
U GAfaRId @ AT IRAGE oa H YdeT T 8, I9H 9§ YD DI Udh s SRIdRd [l T 8
fTI®H! AN 21.73 G [§& I (SIS X 1.44 @] &l Frgfess 2, s fag siferfeas a0
€RT 192 & YTGETI BT IJUTeA el fHar A1 2 |

xvi) (@) B & TS AFHR U TEER0 & AAR, HUAI Bl AR R §6 faH, 1934 & a1

45—3TTgU & T8 USiIpd B B ATTLIHT el © | TaJAR, QT & 34 TS Pl UG HUl W)
AN AR 8 & |

(@) DU B RDIS B ST B TS 3R &H T TS SIFBNI, ITCIHROT T JG 3PATIET & AR, HU)

XVii)

xviii)

Xix)

q B1g TR—df T facira a1 R Wi Tfafaftert deanfod T8 &1 € | TeaR, e & 39 9s &
TR HU IR SN &1 8Id ¢ |

(M) 3R (@) B & RDIS B ST DI T3 AR &4 & T3 TGN, TEIHROT UG Je ATIE &
TR, HUT AR R § gRT 997 70 2@t # gRYIT U R e dusr ([femsw) 78 8
3R 71 €1 e & U DI HIRMSHI & | TR, AT & §7 Wl & UG HU+l R AL e 8T 2 |

HU A foRTT 99 IR S qaadt i a9 & SR T °1el el SoRT & |

Y B SR HU & FIATH RATIRIETDI BT BIg ANTIS To (4T AT B | TSR, AW S 59 TS
& TG HU IR AR T8l 81 & |

g A TS IMBHRI Ud TCIHI0 & AR SR RN urd & MR W, 3 dg iR faxig
FURTAT BT agell &I UTERT TRIE! IR I SFIRAT & AT & AR W, i f[qavor & ey
I SIMGRY, Fe9d Ao iR Yaed ISR @ SR Ud - ATIAIel &7 FHd= &R+ aTel |red)
B! BRI S & JMMUR WR, TAR &1 H o W1 781 31171 2, 51 SR g4 fazara 81 131 & & afffee
RUIS &1 AR DI Big W AEAUT AFREAT HiSE 2 S fb SU gore I3 Bl TR, 3701 A&l
SARTRAT BT YRT PR 3 FeTq o1 © DU, ofd d oIl UF Bl GG I TP a¥ B 3afd & HIaR <
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L) e R deiferm Rered Rifies

B & | BTeifh, BANI SIMGRI & AR I8 U Bl 9 &I JIgRIdT HI ARATdT 8l & | &9
3T BEd & b gaRY R afffse Rurd o aRikg dd & Toaf UR 3MenRd g iR &9 7 a1 ®Ig TR
0 € 3R 7 & P e < & b 9o 2fie & IRRG | Ud a9 &Y afy & AR 3 arell
SAGIRYT HUN §RT HATK HR &1 ST |

xx) (@) 3R (@) & AFTAR &H &I T THHRI TG TICIHIV & AR, DIANT HHITh ITRGTIE AT B
&1RT 135 & ATFe 99 & QR DUl IR AN T8l BId & | TR, 3T & 59 TS b UG Husl
R AN el BT & |

xxi) ST & 3 WS & dgd RUIfET Hu TR AN 721 2 |

YTE ATolTE Us HU- & forg
qres ABISC T
Y B USITHRT H=AT: 001009TH

BXIIER
(@.TH. 3MTSITR)

RIEEIN

AR AT 005125

JSIBMET: 23005125BHANKS2483

T 8 feeed!
fa=Tep: 11 Jellg, 2023
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31 9T, 2023 & GaT 99 @ forv sfeus Wefva deiforaw Rudd fafics & fa<ha faavon wx
Wda wWigdl o1 g9 [y a1 Ruld &1 “sgea-io—d1"

HuY Srferfre, 2013 (‘BifSf’) Y gRT 143 3 SU-9RT 3 @ s (i) ® dgd ATaRk® fa<ia A=
R Ruid

AT 31 |1, 2023 I FATK 99 & oIy HIAT & fa<ig fIaRoN & Fad H U oIl URIeTo & A1 I R I
gfeus ¥ 2fore dgiferaw Rored fafiics (@uh) @1 fa<ig faaron & Sefera sriaRe faxira fg=mit &1 orar
T fohaT B |

iaRa® fa<ha fFraaon & fog usee &1 SR

PUAT BT gag faxig RuiféT AMGS] R aRe M=o & MER WR idRe fa<ig FRI=vr wenfua &<d iR
Y G & oy RTRIER 7, SuHl R SIRT fby 71 faxirg RAifdsr wR anidRe fa<iiar ol & erara’ier #
S T AT H AR FRIF0T & 3Maedd gchl IR f[I9R oxd 8T | SFICT 3% AIcs Yhrsced 3ith e
(“amsHwRE”) 34 forwaTRal # gatw daRe faxira Fa=vl &1 fSogH, Haad iR IERETT oMfHe § o
D ATIR S JARIT 3R A FATA DI GHAREd 3 & forg uwrdl S7 § B o I8 o, [ Ut &
DI FCIHAT R Ui, AR & Ted MMaeIH [Aeaw=11 i STeR ST THI IR IR ST 2 |

aEr wigdl o TR

FARNT FOTERT B9R JiifSe @ MR R faxiig fJaxrol & e # Sueil & MidRe fa<iia FRa=ell uR U I o
BT ® | B 319 3fffee facia Ruifé R srfaRe faxia fAg=mon & sfffse w mES¥ Are (‘Arfesi= Are”)
3IR JMMEHIRMTE FRT SN 3iTFET IR AFDI & JITAR a1 IR ARTH B a7 143 (10) & TEa FiRa arm
T, 3RS I A0 @1 oRaoiar & forg oy A1 b, QI 3fdRe <l ==l &1 carosien o)
ML B © IR Sl IRAR |4l TR HeIH §RT SIRI fhY S & | S Al 3R ARTGeA Al & forg
IS & b &9 AP SMTTIHARN BT UTel= BN 3R 39 IR H I 3Mearad U o)+ & foIv AT 94919
3R 3iffeT X o @ foia Ruifé R gaia *nidRe faxig o7 wnfud siiR 991y @1 747 o7 &R 91 VA
fRi=oT Y UhR & ATl & YITd G - HaTferd 8Id @ |

AR 3fifse # fa<iar RarféT wR araRe i fi=ror gormretl &1 gaiear ik S9! uRare g9 aeiierd & ar
# 3iffec 1ed U oA @ forg uforanalt &1 fsarest enfiat 7 | faxia Raifdsr wr eniaRes faxira fera=rmom @ g
SRgTONIET ¥ fa<ia RUIfST wR eiaRe faxia =0T & Tt UTed &=AT, 39 SIRGH BT 3Mdherd BT AT 2
ST Ud UBR B AU HAGIRI AR &, Jedidh SIIRgH & R R 3fdRE FEa0 & feors iR gReme
THTERITCTT T IRIETT 3R Heid BT | Al TTg YA dremiierds & Fory iR iR axcll 8, s ki
fJeRot @1 AFR & Tora faaver & SIRaA &1 3MdHe A &, 18 98 dEee] a1 IS & HROT 8, I o]
TieTeh B fofg iR R e 2
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TART fagara € & foxirg RAiféT o wust o srfaRe faxia fFi=or gormell &R 89RO e ™ & forg
3R &I HR & oIy FAR §RT UTK T 7Y IEmoNie |ied gaie iR SUYad & |

fa<fra faazon @& G 4 saR« fa<fra fazon &1 arerd

fa<ia RAféT wR e Su=l o1 aridRen faxia ferazror faxiia Ruifds o1 favaaiadr amd dR R i d@ia
B T8 ufhar & | faxira RuféT R ot & sraRe fa<ia fr=ror # 9 Nfaat ik uferard wnfae € <7 (1) Rafs
P IERETT 3 [T 8, ST ST faavor #, Susil &7 FuRT & of=ed 3iR a1 BT Aeid IR e wu 3 g2
2; (2) ST AL Y &R {34 IR IR Wigd oi@r Rigidl & SaR i faaren o qarl &1 srgAfa
T B foy T9—<F 3Mavad ®U A Tof fhY O €, iR Sul & Wt iR o dael Hu & y&ee g
feret & UTIaRel & TR By S 8 €, 3fiR (3) Uil &l |URT & Hfdraa rfeRrgor, IudnT a1 fFue @t
RIGATH AT FHI U YT o & G H I AL U™ dx Sl fa<iig fdarol iR Agcayol g9rd STel Aebhdl
2 |

fa<ig faavon @ da+ A snaRs® fa<ia o &) fafea dwg

faxir faaron R arfaRe faxir fFri=vn @ sfaf-ifed ARl & &Ron, foRaH el Td &1 |- a1 3o &
TR UdE Bl JAARIGS DHRAT AMAS &, FAHT BT T ThTIdhR0T Silfeh FfS IT GRATEIET B BRI Aol
Tofd faaRoT 81 Aehd & 31N SHhT UdT F81 T Sl Fahdl 2 | 59 AfaRad, 9rdy srafdai 3 gefdra fa<ha
fJarol & Hev o oridRep faxiia =0T & el 1 JedieT & STgA SIRas & 31l 2 o faxig Ruifér w
3ffaRe faxirg fFrior erdl # uRadd & PIROT AT 81 Hebel B, AT g fob =Ml AT Ufeharsii & srurer &l
R e Adhar g |

Sfad faar

& 1 T8 ISR AR WETHIUT B JTAR 3R TR AT B MER R 31 714, 2023 $I Fr=faRaa
HHSIRAT BT U B TS -

(i) ®u A e AftreRal g1 fAaiRa g9a @ Hiar &R arear™ R 98 fear 8 |

(i) uREuRmEl & faw), SHARAT &1 1w g™, HHar ufayfd, wulky, 97 &k SuaHvr 3k
I Y B 92 @ A STa /a9 fores & forg o8 ifa =i 2

(iii) DU §RT (TP ATedR & A1egq 4) fHT 1Y wdeor 4 8 Al qaig 13, e U grRT
AHera o3 B AMaTISaAr 2 |

TP IR HHGRY faxiir faa=on & MR R AR =0T # 1 a1 St &1 Jare §; 39 ave 6 s

T DY S GUTIT © b U0 & a1fies faxirg faaron &) |Arf) & Tofd did I AT A8l ST T 3frar

FHI UR SGT T ol AT ST AT |
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TAR TSN H, a0 AFG S @ Sl &I ITA TR HWR T GG AN & FIfdd g9mal &l
BISHY, U & U I UHR & Al H, 37 9T f[Jaxol & ded # fa<ig RuiféT R ya uai< sraRks®
o< foior yomrefl & ofR faxia RUIfdT w59 dRe & siaRe fa<ig FRIF0T 31 @79, 2023 T U1 &1 |
Jarferd 81 I8 o, S “3faRed faxiy M=o @ oIEmRie R ARfeed Ale # a1 1Y idRe g0 &
3L Tehl WR faaR HRd g HUl gRT 1fud fa<ia Rafér arest wR aaRe = s&iege siin
IS UDhISced 3t SFeAT” §RT 9IRI faeii RUIT & 3R o= yrdt o |

EAR ERT A &1 T3 HIfId SAGR IR &9 faaR f&ar g iR axgira &1 MuiRor axe SwRiad # Rard o 2,
BUT ¥ 31 AT, 2023 B AR (JaR0N H SR TS wRieror & T g AMHT 3R GG HAGR] Bl BU &
fa<irg faron &1 g9R R & ywifad &1 dxell © |

YT 3MollG Us HUHl
qres ABISC T
Y B TSIThRT H=AT: 001009T

THRIER
(@ .TH. 3MTTTR)

AEER

HEHdT H&AT 005125

JEIASU: 23005125BHANKS2483

RI: 718 faeel
fa=Tep: 11 JlTg, 2023
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31 A1d 2023 & GETE 9 @ forv sfeua & fora ugiferaw Rued ferfies & fa<iia faawor wr s+
Jrferfra, 2013 & aRT 143(6) () @ T8d AR & TS AR wETA@T wWas o fewaforat

DU ST, 2013 (STAIH) & Tad FeiRd fa<ia RAifdT ei@ & AR 31 A1 2023 BT FAT a9
% forg gfeaq wefvre ugiforam Rodw fafice & o< e GOR &”A1 BU+T & gaee & fTReR © |
SITAFRIA @1 91RT 139 (5) & Ted R & Fb3d Yd FeTelal WRieTd gRT F1gwh de+eh oam wierd, 9RT & dgd
FeITRE e wier & Adl & FITHR 0 ol YRIET & AR TR ATATIH DI IR 143 & T8 A< fdaron
R M h R B folg TR 2 | STRIEH a1 &R 143(10) | VAT 3998 §RT 11 Jollg 2023 @1 3iffee Rard &
AT 3 o T 9T AT B |

9, R & 9% T ARTeIET WRIeTd &1 3R 9, AT BT &RT 143(6)(T) @ T8 31 AT 2023 Bl
AT a9 & forg e wefre ugifermm Rurdw fafice & faxia vl &1 W& <iffee fovar 7| 98 ®e
3iffee qefies oiar uRieTd] & BIHBISN BTSN ddb Ugd @ (991 Wa= wY F {61 11 8 3R I8 97 U |
AT <IET Tt R HU B O TBaTs AR BB odidh RHIS o Ta-raid Sfid adb HfHd ¢ |

3T R ST & MR WR, H M BT aRT 143(6)(d1) & d5a Fr=ferRad Agayol Al IR TbreT
ST AT S #) &9 H MY 3IR 1 W) o 3 faxiig fqaron o7 d5ar |Hst &I |erd 31k |afed aiifee
RTe &= & oy emawara € |

&, ravedl WX fewforat
31 9T 2023 &1 FHTd 99 D forv o 3ix g1fsr &1 faawor
o

GdTell Ud YERETd gd: T13,693.03 IlE

AT R WA (37 US TH) @i & oIy U= §IRT T 717 T13,693.03 TR & I BT €RT 2(13) & It
H, IRT ARBR / THRIUINSTASH, TSP AR /AT TaURIVE Il A7 /Il Tl & [9og Farrd
HUHT ST, 2013 3R SIS TUH 01 & URT 32 B AT SMSTHAURIRTS & UAIRIUS &l Siad fohar
TATE |

I 2021—22 B ST & IR HUAT gRT AT MY AMLARIA & FIA9E, IR TRBR A U1 /U1 IR & faog
3NUSTH Y Bl ARUTS B Fel TR & Hag H STICYC 3i[h dIcs fBISceH 3 AT (SMSHILIME) Bl
IR/ B §RT THITUTS TG, TSITHSNRIT UG TAYRIIUS bl AT 8l Bl TS o |

9. fa<ia Rerfar ux fewforat
31 9T1d 2023 A& doi ¥ 3fie
ufRy

I | HUfkT: ¥5113.85 G
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IS TAYIRNRUS R IARBR P 3R H B I P WGRIE 3R faehY | FefSrd oI B 8T 2 | SMSTAURIRYS =
319+ Gl H 3014333.38 HIfgdh S &l ol Dl Hod T5,32,397.96 TR I © | IMSTHURIRYS §RT Hed el
BT @IS /AT IR A B erRa—SiRaT e fhar T B |

Iy 2021—22 & ST & IR BUAl §RT Y Y IMATAT & drdsja, oI fdaron § s9& odidd @& forg
SITSRAYATE DI 7Y T8I 7T TS o |

$d Ud ARd B
fraa® vd AgradEr tige &) 3 9

BEITER
. . ==
afRTe dEmaar AeIfes, g4
f&=1T: 08 Rdex 2023
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L) e R deiferm Rered Rifies

BTH Uq IR—3
dfearerii= dwEr—afiar Ruid

o fa<far asf 31.03.2023 & forw
[ul A=, 2013 B GRT 204(1) IR HUN (TEIDHI BifdADT B Fgfh dom wRsifi®) e,
2014 & 99 H=T 9 & IrgUTe H]

Har 4,
AR,

sfea et ueiferad Rored ferfies
301 Tcs ¢ Awex

TRIRT T, TR TS,

3 faeei—110001

7 3feaq e ugiforaa Roed fafids (s9a dguzard “du+l” &8l T &) §RI dN] deTid
UGl & JgUTed IR ™8 BURE AR & UleW @l Afgd $iffse fhar € CIN No-
U63023DL2004G0I1126973 Af@Terdl olRATONIET 39 dRg W JArfrd fdhar ar or e g6 3fd aine
3ITeRYT / Hifdfdes SUTer BT el BR AR I UR U 1Y <h B BT SleIdl AR o7 |

ARIATTA S—UNIe & SR DU DI 9fedl, IS, i< GRADI, BTH TAT SR Ret iR H#l
ERT XY Y 3= Rbrel & AR FAUF AR HHl, 3dD AABIRAT, Toict qeim uifdiha ufafifeal grr gear
HRATS T8 LA & AR R T 89 [dagRT I8 J(d B & [P AR AAGAR HFA1 1 31 AT, 2023 Bl
FATK T a9 BT HaAR PR+ ATl AW —URIET A & IR A<l eildg AlAfSed Hei b1 Sure fhar &
3R A1 B Bl H I dre Afshar qei Jgurear o fdeMM & el a¥iel Ud gaaueard Jfed R+ &

GREZCARERIRID S

B9 31 AT, 2023 BT FAT o<1 98 B BUAT §RT Y T I, BTG, BRI GRADT, B dAT STRIS Rew
3R HHIN gRT W Y 31T Rapref &7 gRleror fferRad uraenmii & 4R faar &

(i)  Hr= SrfSfeH, 2013 (BrfSfa®) iR S sfdfa g9y 7Y f=aw;

(i) "feIfT |faeT (AfFrme) S, 1956 (TAMIRIRY') 3R SHa@ Jfaiid a1y 7Y F+1;

(iii)  fHeTaTTR rfarferas, 1996 IR S il 94T 7Y faferae e $u Aoy

(iv) o=l ga1 uee arfafrm, 1999 iR faael ucer faer, facer & geuet fer dem qredt anforisaes oit @
AT T @ AT I1¢ Y 129 qert fafrs; e gl

(v) R ufofa vd fafema a1 «ifdfm, 1992 & ofaeia fafzd frferRaa fafeem ik feemfader —
(@) wRAE gfrfa vd Al ars (-1 &1 AU ARUE 3R Shailer) faf1z™, 2011: SR &1
(@) W g iR Al 91 (a1 AR & fme) faf s, 1992: dRf 181
(M) AR gL &R fAfH 91 (4T &1 HET 3R TeheIa_oT Aaeaehdiy) faf s, 2018: @R] 181
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@) WRAE g &k i 918 (F9anT ie f[Aded Ao iR HHar) Wid TR Ilol)
feemfacen, 2021: ARY T8

(®) U AT 3R FEe & A1 IR & Hae H AR Afnfa ok fafrra 91 (gas et &ik
IR EXATCARYT Toiel & folv IVRER) fafras, 1993;

@)  wRdE gfofa iR fafrra 91 (3f9act 2Rt & srgdiag 8F) fafea, 2021: @, 1

(®) wRd gl iR Al are (aforgferl o1 gekig) fafm, 2018: ARY 18T

(vi) 3= o fafer -
) Ucifersw srfSfaH, 1934;
i) YR fapies srfafaH, 1884
i) PriRerd WR Al &1 A Salted R, Ny iRk fawo), srfSfeas 2013
(vii) TR BT
i) STeT (YT fHamor dorr =T srferfas, 1974
i) ATy (FrguoT FramRer qoIr i) SrferfeRE, 1981
iii) TITaRoT (HReTon) IrfSfH, 1986
iv) WARATS 3R 31 U (Meerd 3R HHIR Haer) 94, 2016
EH BU GIRT 3T AT AATIAT & ST ST 5 DU §IRT 5 T3 JOMSRAT TAT TF 8 HUAT 3R
I ARG §RT 37 Y et o fagars fpar 2 |
g+ frfaRad & e st & AT rguTer & A uteror faar 2
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e / @l / IR/ gﬂé*ﬁmw -
q§ & 3fd F Fhd b 7,150.39 7,100.95
Y B BT H IFHADROT
Y & SR SFRIBROT
fger™ / &k / IR/ g faRl
Y & 3fd H TR
ffaa @'s 7,150.39 7,100.95
re: urgueTse & oy SRy FARTR MR WR SIfmrfRa fovam e 2, safory o8 srfdaer e =8t fhar o <& 2|
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facha faaren &1 91 819 arell fewfrn

feoofl 9§, 3.1 — T

g T H
P 31 A, 2023 31 AT, 2022
P AR P ITEAR
ka5 =
feoofl 6. 3.2 — 3= faha uR¥ufeaar -
oreg TN
P 31 HATd, 2023 31 ¥, 2022
P ATAR P ITAR
R S 689.80 690.05
TR TR W AN AT FAfed, (ol THdaxT & 99E) 74.64 74.64
AT ST (‘1?'[ aRydgar & arer Tdh 9§ q (‘ﬂ'fa—cﬁ)* 12,432.97
[z 442.45 am@ &1 Afsta s wfa 2 20,244.92
(fa<irr @ 2021—22 & foIg 7 509.85 @)
* iR ST IRRN & fqaver & forg Are dwar 31 (xvi) <
TRl & FegRerar AWl & iU Soa Irierd fReell & Uy o/ T 5,000.46 5,000.46
[[e Hw&T 31 (xxxxii) <]
T’ BRI AN, IgUT & T ST BN 410.84
BHAIRAT Bl 3R 3.06 -
Bl 18,611.77 26,010.07
Al 9T 4 IMDR_GURT p——
fravor 31 A1, 2023 31 WTd, 2022
D IR P ITAR
HH o TieH (FeaiRor ad 2018—19) 14.16 14.16
3IHA <o Yed (RefRor 9§ 2019—20) 15.71 15.71
$HHH o Tew (FeIiRer a9 2020-21) 38.13 38.13
P o Tied (FeIiRor ad 2021—22) 104.01 104.01
$IHH ST wed (MemRor 9 2022—23) 728.39 728.38
TP ST WIed (FEIiRor a9 2023—24) 86.10 -
Ex 986.50 900.39
feuoft 4. 5 — =1 R—adwa aR"ufaan p—
31 HId, 2023 31 ATd, 2022
faraeom B ITAR P AR
(cruferga aR=NRE &FTd WR 38 41 Y)
fedra a=or aRaTsTr fA sifdmrger & forg Senged @t i Yot 9,823.55 9,819.38
Yo TR0 URATSAT A IMERIEeT THgHgoteyd &I 3R Yol 200.00 -
gded g 271.07 378.11
B 10,294.62 10,197.49
feuoht . 6 — FHd iR THd g g A
8 31 HId, 2023 31 ATd, 2022
B ITAR P AR
¥ 2w : _
RS 248.76 2,252.84
¥o feuifore &
[rE S (T BN TP DI Jol aRUFTT & qre) i i
!;&E G';; (;n?%%)ﬁ AERL I G IR 1,635.00 667.20
dPg AV :
SRS - 1.55
e 1,883.76 2,921.59
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feoofl fasha faavon &1 fewar a9q €

sfeaq wefoie ugiferaw Rosd ferfics

feuoh 5. 7 — d9 <l SWiaq & 3T EChE
R 31 HId, 2023 31 91d, 2022
B IATAR D ATAR
e
feuoh 6. 8 — =1 facha uR¥ufeaan E——
31 HId, 2023 31 91, 2022
faazor D IR D IR
(afRenfera amTa W SRIRfEa W Sirar 2)
TAURITe & U (BN IS UH @) 746.46 1,250.62
TIIRATS | T (31 U€ UH & 37eral) 1.40 49.44
TR HegRerdl A & folU YRd IRGR / THNAITol & 91y - 1,864.08
IO [AIe F@T 31 (xxxxiii) 4]
USAIG A aell AT uRETe iR o @ 170.91 1,337.33
fISTell ufval & AT Y& ST IR SUTfid &rel 19.35 17.83
HHATRAT BT I AH 4.02 3.78
HHATRIT BT 37 5.95 -
SuIista fa=r faer aRare= ama 170.24
RIS | U IR (qd—aRAST @/ =)o 1) 314.15 -
Bl 1,432.48 4,523.08
feuofl 5. 9 — =1 gdu= uRufeaad -
g T H
fraeor 31 9, 2023 31 91d, 2022
D IITER P ITER
(3rg=Rra 3resT AT SIrdT 8)
Fed T B [ @ for THIRAITS & a¥gel arg 1,159.35
THTRYIUS & a¥el I (31) 5 1.89
MRS | axen I = 0.01 0.16
Amyfefarar 1 1R 232.03 8.78
e wd 1,197.36 1,204.82
SIS Hfse ur= 368.21 490.62
B 1,797.61 2,865.62
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feuoll 9. 10 — =R goft

EUCEE]

31 94, 2023 ® IUR

31 W€, 2022 & IR

faazor IR B R WRT B i3
RiKCI| RiEC]
sfdad) TR gsi
(@) wrferpd 3,832,560,000 | 383,256.00 | 3,832,560,000 | 383,256.00
310 /— YA®d & Sfqac] IR ,832,560, ,256. ,832,560, ,256.
(@) frfa, sifew ok gofa: uew
210/~ 9% B 3RFS IR 3,790,054,670 | 379,005.47 | 3,790,054,670| 379,005.47

feaforat
() sfeadY Ry & W &1 e -

fawor 31 |19, 2023 @ IER | 31 AMd, 2022 B ITAR
210/— UUP P Sfddel IR
URMAS Y 3,790,054,670 3,775,874,670
SR fhT 17 e - 14,180,000
U 9IE B MY IR - .
i Oy 3,790,054,670 3,790,054,670
(ii) sfesT Ut & U I
31 W, 2023 @ 3MYER__| 31 Hd, 2022 © AR
ARSI BT ATH aiRa e | B S | giRe ok | I B w9
BT % BT %
210/— UA® & 3iddcl IR
a1 ST fdem dis, 78 faeetl 3R 3,790,054,670 100% | 3,790,054,670 100%
SNID AR
Gl 3,790,054,670 100% | 3,790,054,670 100%
(i) 5% @ 3AfSrd VIR @A Tl AIRGRDI BT fqavor -
_ 31 HId, 2023 @ IR | 31 A1, 2022 & ITUR
BT % BT %
210/— TP B 3ac! I
el SE faer 918, 8 foeel 8k 3,790,054,670 100% | 3,790,054,670 100%
SID_AIAd
o 3,790,054,670 100% | 3,790,054,670 100%
(iv) e REfesT de
qY¥ 2022—23 P 3T H YHICY §RT W& TV IRR
YHIER BT A U @ G| FA VI BT | T B IRMA
% q<cld %
U SO e 9 3,790,054,670 100% Nl
q¥ 2021—22 B IF H YEICIT gRT ¥ U IR
TR HT A IR B ERT| FA IR FT | T D IR
% q<lld %
SEESCINBCCANECIS 3,790,054,670 100% 0.38%

(v) sfdl RT A g AR, mefiead ik ey

FHU & T St Rl @ daet U Aol 7 Rt Ui e 210 TS @1 © IR Tah IR W U 79 A7 I wahan 7 | R @
gREHTI @t Rfi 3§ ) PR ar®l, 7 g1 a1 33t @) Heem & orgurd § U @) A9 IRAIRRN B 9T A & ghaR

B |

(Vi) g 13 & JT9R fisd uig aul & s@fr & fag

() FHE F TA U BT T A (STe) & AR QO ORE WA fhy YRR @Y ol F=AT |
(@) I MR B AEH W R TRE A YA S wU A AT TR B I B Fl A2 SR
(1) 3RRF Td APRIT & o A Fol WEAT AT A TS |

Gk
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facha faavon &1 9T 89 drell fewfran

sfeaq wefoie ugiferaw Rosd ferfics

feaofl . 11 — = sfaad)

oarg TN
31 9, 2023 31 9, 2022
faaxor $ IR B ITER
yfaenRd 3 &1 Sqed -
fUsel a9 & @Al | Y I BT ST A 14T (53,467.07) (43,535.66)
crgie ifa ar gd srafdr @ Ffeat § uRad= . -
SR T Y 3fad IR W WU 55l - (0.07)
o/ (1) a9 & ferg (9,701.38) (9,931.33)
el (63,168.45) (53,467.06)
Al &A1 12.1 Ye<T <Y -
g T H
fravur 31 A1, 2023 31 #Td, 2022
P IATER P ITEAR
Y 554.71 558.72
E] 554.71 558.72
fewoft €. 122 s fachar dgand -
g T H
I — 31 9T, 2023 31 #Td, 2022
P ITER P ITER
Myfcferri / HfaereRl & ST/ 59 17.73 7.73
Bl 17.73 7.73
dic W1 12.3 UT9ET -
oarg TN
31 AT, 2023 31 9, 2022
faazor B TR B ITER
HHANY I B foTT graem
() THEBRI BIS 10.91
(@) g 5.51
@l - 16.42
feooft 4. 13.1 SuY
org T H
I — 31 91, 2023 31 91, 2022
P IATER AR
Heftra el & For
Ll -
fewofl |, 13.2 @UR I¥aAg -
g T H
fqeoT 31 91, 2023 31 91, 2022
P IATER P ITIAR
geel Ay 3.77 3.49
] 3.77 3.49
feuofl . 14 IR 2IAY ——
fyavor 31 9, 2023 31 9, 2022
D ATUR D ATAR
i) R SeHi SR oy SeHl Bl Bel g A 204.41 224.87
i) &1 SeEl @ ITelal SFAR] B Gl gHrE AR R BIT ITH 1,687.20 1,300.63
Ei 1,891.61 1,525.50
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facha faaren &1 w01 819 arell fewPri

AR I AT e ) Iggt

WA o) 29 fafsr @ frefalea saftrt & fow serm — fag adf 202223 e T H
faazor 198 ¥ F9 1—2 ¥ 2-3 g 3 9% 4 e Eac|
(i) THTETHS 204.41 0.00 0.00 0.00 204.41
(i) s 1,687.06 0 0.14 0.00 1,687.20
(iii) farfed < f—gAosreng - - - -
(iv) farfea <a if¥r — s - - - -
ATYR_ IIAT G5 A
AT B < falr & FrefaRad saftrl @ fav germ — fo ad 202122 g TN
faavor 198 ¥ F9 1—2 qf 2—-3 g% 3 9% 9 e Eac]
(i) vTHTHS 224.87 0.00 0 0 224.87
(i) 3r 1,300.49 0.14 0 0 1,300.63
(iii) faarfea <o RT—gAUHTAS - - - - -
(iv) faarfed <o <fr — a1 - - - -
o™ T A
s A 2 N el 22 S RS RS A K M G G Rl 2022-23 2021-22
(@) IS T 9§ F ofd # forelr Y smyfiferat B gwrar Aw A
Heter 203.96 224.87
TS 0.45 0
(@) wEepl, oY R Feww e fawra I, 2006 (2006 T 27), B ART 16 & 0 0
e # TIER gRT YIaE @1 T @rel & IR, wrer # a9 @ 9w
it 1 fPY TT YA BT AR TS ol a9 B AR,
(M A # < @1 @y & fow <3 iR <9 @ @ A 0 0
YA (ST qra fovar 721 ® dfed a8 & aRM fad T 9 ™)
oifthd e, o SR A e Rar Affrm, 2006; & ded Ffde
1T Bl e 99T
(&) IRl <ot vd <u =S & R IR uAE 0.45 0

T 98 & o H; SR

(S) Arsm!, Wile te AIfST™ &) URT 23 & ded IeM b AIRFRM, 2006 & d8d Bkl
AFY Y BT SRAPT B Iexd B oy, S [ T, 99 T6 IR <7 &1l aed
Y ST BT I T fBAT S 8, 99 9@ P @l a1 /R SR 9 @ aut H o

< BT
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feuoll 9. 15 =g facha Sdgarg

AT I H
- 31 9, 2023 31 H1d, 2022
P IATHAR P AR
=g
TSIUHRIRA @l <7 [Are A& 31(iv) <] 4,776.01
IRT WRBR / THTHIVSST (TeATd) &l <7 [Aie dem 31 (iv) <] - 2,223.99
e =T & oy TRG RER / TS F e 21,000.00 21,000.00
TR | B T o IS U7 1 & foTy WRT IRBR / THITHGIS | Tw 37 1,807.64 5,454.83
3Myfiiamatell / SdaRi | S 986.26 878.41
e 23,793.90 34,333.24
dle H&AT 16.1 HIGETT -
g T H
fraor 31 9Td, 2023 31 ATd, 2022
P ITAR P ITAR
HHANT ™ B T Trae=
(@) STADTI BT ThaIDRYI 0.38
(@) I=gd 0.01
Bl 0.39
feoofl &, 16.2 31 adu Sudarg
g I H
fyavu 31 91d, 2023 31 914, 2022
P ITAR P ITAR
e gapr 119.09 97.36
HRA TRER / THAGASH BT <7 (@2 I B [Qsh) B 1,160.41
TRT TSR/ TAAGCTS DT 4 / IR ARG (F2a daf e iR TIeiRiie) B, 5529
Tod IR fieell § SMl a1 & folU 9RT IRAR / THRATAST & B 5,000.46 5,000.46
TR BT HEIREIAT A [Fle AT < 31 (xxxxii)]
TR AR Al R @ forg < [Are dwm < 31 (xxxxiii)] = 1,864.08
ARG TRDR / THAGTTSN Pl < (TG SNTRAET SRATTH) 140.68 89.04
IRA WRHR / TRITHIGTS BT 38 (BT /37 B T AT 3R IF W CISIH) 2,013.55 2,155.02
TaiRATe faemaToRg B e 97.28 97.28
FILA A & forg Sl 7 damid & U ST -9 8g 410.84 -
HRT WRBR / TGS 3 ey
SRR & UIGUCAE HIAS B oy THCErga TR Bl <7 Wiy 49.44
HRA IR B < 3N TS TH 7 (TSIal ar) 170.91
HRT WRBR B T (U RATH ST 150.58 -
= 12.61 12.61
del 8,165.44 10,531.55
feuoft 5. 17.1 GdATa A XIoRg
g I/
31 9Td, 2023 B | 31 |, 2022 B
faaeon qHT a% AT a
Aar &1 frafa
USITRIRT & uRarer 3 — =1 fder arefl ama 170.24
ERT]_oRG
THIRGUS & gRETed 3 35.57
A 205.81

feoofl 9. 17.2 — =1 ™

g T H
Fra<ur 31 Wrd, 2023 &I | 31 wrd, 2022 H

e 9% e 99
fasrell Swufall & |rer YRe S R AT 21.50 19.80
F ST IR =TT 42.04 41.57
MRS | 3rga™ &1 uRenes (fgefa ==om) 314.15 832.78
ufxy, GIF 3R TR Bl I W A 0.01 -
REACE] 6.31 -
3THT T Rbs TR =arel 0.01 2.32
EAIR) 384.02 896.47
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feuoll 9. 18 — FJoagr™ 3k uReneq wd

ARG TH
P 31 W, 2023 31 W, 2022
P ITEAR P IATAR
HoIgrd 9,510.76 9,463.82
St X (elIoTeles ofs) &1 aReie 432.38 533.03
FH — RT THR W NGSTH &I & w § Il (S8 TIH—116) (15.11) (15.08)
3E Yugr AR uReneq g 9,928.03 9,981.77
feoofl w.19 o @ra@ g T
fyaxor 31 W, 2023 31 W, 2022
P ITAR P AR
ST el R &S 41.12 41.36
P — IR WWHR F A TS U4 9 & ®U § aqel (S YUa—116) (29.74) (29.77)
35 foa «@ra 11.38 11.59
=
i W1 20.1 GdTeld U4 YEREE dg p—
P 31 9, 2023 31 H1d, 2022
D IITHR D ITER
3 Us tH g
SUAST g 167.08 311.47
A s 3,890.66 3,941.00
ugT o 282.80 229.02
SR IS EIN 99.47 64.00
NEIGERSIE] 216.47 178.13
AT Ud EREg 565.54 445.81
ERI BT @ 6.10 8.13
EABRINERIR 753.29 257.63
Eapicpicaien| 67.03 36.68
TERIR] AEReIdT A faRmEueT & forg e (Ale | 31 (xxxii) <) 22.96 1,864.08
SNENRGE] 3.23 1.69
AT T 24.53 16.60
gHOT Uq Ufrefor 23.20 2.39
qre- foxmr e 138.40 121.74
[EEEIRE 1,358.96 1,507.96
BISHBIUT Yoh 103.52 127.86
SHeIRe wfaer ud 3 1,992.73 2,753.75
THTAS SISV 3T TS UH &Y 237.87 94.91
yffgRe W e 369.38 289.49
afdre Jernfed 152.52 108.52
JRef Poh 1,911.41 1,205.75
HTE Yot /AR Yo 210.28 -
sRa ugl faara 42.70 50.35
TRl 1,052.90 1,137.02
Bl 13,693.03 14,753.98
fada =axo1 & fog favga aeriar R (SWwerR) =3 314.15 832.78
Bl 314.15 832.78

Are : o ¥ 202122 H 3 US UH I BT SURIH AW gRT ¥ {6y U 2 i & 3meR wR fhar = 2|

IR W ATHIT ASC BT STANT fHAT T B RAifh oRIThT ATTeddR H HIg 31T I AR A= @rar et

T ST B |
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e g 20.2 - fafqg =

o™ TH
31 H1d, 2023 31 91, 2022
EER D ITAR P AR
I Aefed =g - 1.65
T ) A BT g @ F Sre - 0.01
e 35.57 -
FHuRT, T iR SUGRY BT 92 W H SeM W B 2.08
HA 37.65 1.66
feuofl &1 21 - URAY AW dFHI—33 © ded sUIvd @& Udhd eyl
oreg T H
feufy faazor 31 H1d, 2023 &1 | 31 HAMA, 2022 B
AT 98 B A< 99 'q
ufd IR 3y
(i) |yqa
3T TRURGT B 9§ & forg ™ / (816) (9,701.38) (9,931.33)
IHRIT AT IRRT Y AR He=T 3,790,054,670 3,785,664,697
i IR RER 10.00 10.00
fFRaR dare & g eR 81 — ga (0.26) (0.26)
(i) | IIRd
3fdad) IRRYRBI B 9§ B forg o / (81) (9,701.38) (9,931.33)
IHRT IR B ARG AT — qgebd b o1y 3,790,054,670 3,785,664,697
R IR RER e ) 10.00 10.00
fARAR Heme | ufd 2R A — dgad (0.26) (0.26)

22.1 q—cﬁ

HUFGT (TR G AFDT) Fee (99, 2019 3R Huf=al (TR ot A=) fgeia denes 99, 2019 &

HRIH A HIURS AT & HATd (MCA) - $8 Tud—116 Jel & ®U # Ao fhar & ST Aig[er 92 S qud 17 &

Y H UE AR 3 TR B STE ofdl 7 | $€ YTH—116 UST & fory U doid e ofivy STahrs e Aiser Uer vl

gl

(i) | 13, 2019 | FATEY, HUAI =1 HNAT YT Hehwo fAfST BT SUANRT Bl §Y € UTH—116 B WU H 310 Uel &

T STUITT B | UET ST T AR ATIe &1 IRIG H Iigeiicl SUR &R BT SUANT B BT U< 2N Ug & Y|

@ AT Hod IR AT ST 8 SR SUANT &1 HURT BT HR Ug BT <3dT iR W fhran & axraR i R /=]

& TS B, URMTD STde B TR W TSl Sl Joisd I § ArgaT, Ife I 87 | U=l + 3IeT 2019 B (70 AaeSa

(100% SERERE) TSI G BT YT § | $HD ITATAT, U + frferRRad T wag fmar & —

(i) HUN A T AT TRl B B 5 PIE gy B, a1 IuH A 2, URMS amded & faf 'R U ver, I
QAT 31 AT, 2019 BT £ YT 17 & IR U R GG foam 17 |

(i) ST UTH—116 B Ui & WU H AHT TIAT & 31 e & forg Aieh ] 2T & 1 U8l §S UUH 17 & ©U Pl
N B dTel U & B H Uga Fa7 T o |

(i) g R o1 R 3mde & IR & 12 HEI9 & HIaR I B 91 T91 81 Sl 8, S8 F 9 & Ugi &
W H @I AT |

FUN T A | FaET ug P Fawer H yaw et 2 | R sy & Ted Rl ok et 9% oed 3 @raer T8

Kl

SMNoreies 4 & forg Aecayet et 1 fyavor Fergar & —

(@) | 37 Tag 9 & forg 30 af @ 7@l (14.05.2038 Th) & fory fawmE@mTUEeH UId g3e & AT gavel faemEmceH

(e Tt 31 (xvi) <) |

(@) | 104.73 Tds 4 & fory 50 I @t 3@l (26.01.2060 Tdh) & oy HTAR AL i &3 & A egaer HraR |

33.0066 Uhs & I dec &5 Afed Y (e | 31 (xvi) <) |

() | 20 aut & 3r@fer (101.815 Ths) B o7 Beited NS &= fAET 1S (HATSYSIE) & ST AT 28.05.2030 Th

3iR 36.775 U 18.12.2031 Th) UG H 138.57 Udrg fH &l 31X |

() | Fics oieifires & fdem a1 (KIADB) & &1 15 99 & 37afd & foTy @rawelr 14.11.2032 (dd)) TSR ¥ 37.35 Uhs

I P R |
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(ii)

(ii)

(i)

(iv)

(v)

o SR BIfY @ @ faaver & ar=adr gt afd a1 SuAT @ e @ i

R ARg H

2022-23 2021-22
— MU &l Ned 3l ST & SfUdR & w9 ¥ Yollpd BT 1T & EIE] o], e
— SN & ¥HR R ug &I qrmar ¥ ghg IR 0.26
— HUET ST & feR ¥ gfg W A=y ur< § 15.11 15.08
— MU &l Ned IR AT U Jeder™ 417.27 517.95
— o Sfiferee W = 41.08 41.36
— gfgeld SR ) 7.94% 7.94%
— ISl Yed A 44.85 44.85

g & e ST & AIfeR &1 faavor sfafifea aREuRm™T @ o gRT vel & wu A fregar
Imrafora fovar a2 -

R Ag H
gREufy it bl i sfada Jeaer 3 98 A
31 5rd, 2023 % 31 9, 2023 TS 31 914, 2023 TF
ST &7 IBR 13270.09 2031.55 11238.54

31 T4, 2023 BT U™ &l 5 01 AV, 2019 A Tgel U 12698.11 AT & Yg g8+ Jod U &of (Y Y R ug
e €, f578 01 31ie, 2019 BT (S€ UTH 116 & HIATIT UR) SUIRT & IMHR H YA b 77 o7 |

IS & FHd) 9fgals & A &l faavor, R FUN U2 & ®U H SOR $Ra) B, Afdhd ug &1 9eIRAl & #7rg §
Referd =18t 81d &

gRad=a ofsr Jram

IR ST YT Sl Ueb $SaRT UR [iR HRaT & AT Sliol <adl & A9 H M 819 & oY Ueb &% 2 ST J1R ooy
ORI T8l T ST & | =T ST 31T & ST9IR, ol faf=1 aRTae el Uie &I ] &l &, ST fhelt
SR AT T (HUAYH HaR AT fe & uferera anfe wR menRe aRuder) wR menRa w&f € ofiR o ar g1 # Arerer
T 8 MR oot < & A H 2nfier T8 F |

fawar 3k wwifa faweu

HU B IS bl FILRAT § hdel GRATAT B o1 Tard= U= o & o1y favdR fdded onfie & | du=i e U &
IS M W 3MHeT el © [ 1 IR fAdedl &1 ST S 3fed 8 81k IRl & srearay R I8 gifded
BHRAT 6 a1 I8 fAdhed BT ST T S & a1 781, 396 =07 # uRReIfl # e Ayt 95ra 8, greifd,

STET HU BT FIKIR TR & oI Uahed 39 © 31 39 %8 & U @I 1de H U FANTITETSA &1 T0MT & S o
e |

AR YT BT MR

BIS AR Hou B TRE TE 2 |
ftag ug 1 onfl I B €

IS Aftiag veT TE & O o gH BT R |

AF—dbaciaet TR 1ot & forg 9fass 31 e oot Yoo dfdaear & 419 iR 31 A1E, 2019 BT ol a1 B
AT H 1 3B, 2019 TP & RATT A IAIT AT, S G2 HU | & B AT B 1Y Il YA & I Hod Dl
WM FRA & HRUT B | §8 UGH—116 DI MITIHT & MTAR aiia a1l # ge iR vyl & forw ufoagari &
IEHR & HRYT Bl [ foIg U - AS & STTAR ATIETNG FHIED DI AN Bl & foY JA1 5 |
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(vi)

S AP & AN B A Y & oY R qd ™ H AL 11.38 g $uY (fUset av : 11,59 oRg $UY) ([eUET 3MR
e 3 3iR fad anTa # gfE) 3 56.19 R S (Usel ¥ SuAT 56.44 A1) 3MR BT, T, Il iR
=1 gt H B0 44.85 oG (ATl Y 44.85 TR BT BT BT 37TS 2 |

22.2

I RAH IAY, TS RAS HuRTAT 3R aferagarg (S0 @A de s fag uraem =2 fear 1 2)

faaor

(®) smHfBT® qaTRA

% 93,414.22 9T (s I : 243,364.05 I@) &1 AR FUN & 965 <@ & FoT & w9 A R T8 3T T |
o e & —

) faergueTH # @ iR A= [T gRT e @ faafad AT %11,795.03 AT (fUwel 99 - 211,794.95 AT )

@) SHIRI §RT X80,752.13 G (fUSel 99 : 31,112.88 TE) & faarfed <74l Bl MY NI fAfi=T A1gel W Iw o T8
IRATSTTRT & HROT WIRS 6 &1 121, Raas fore #Arer anfdge feegmet iR Soa =amarerd & 9w difdd 2 |

) YIY IR B [Jarfed AT 274.64 G (Uoel ¥ 274.64 ME) | U - T HR & fAd18 & FHRIE & g deiics
TRBR GIRT SRR DR T TSI BT AT IO & | HUA B IR HIg <IN T8l & AR BT 1 FIeT IR & o7y
X74.64 TG B TaA GGl @ Raetds Re a1feret IRR 31 § 3R I8 AMell A $Hicd Soa <Ry & AHe
a2 |

) AR faer SIfreRT (UrgR) T faarfad AT =410.84 @ (fUreen v g=) a1, 43 iR fafay &= e forg wmer
e WSl & |He @ifdd 2 | Gt ST TS AN ¥ 821.68 A, fH & 2410.84 A (50% 1) 37l
RGN & UTRT o1 oy & 7T & |

g) HTER H uTsueTsd & Hee H {qarfad AT 2381.58 g (fUoarr 9y x381.58) RS1aa o1y A1et [Tl =amimer, #TdR &
et Sfad E |

(@) i Hulky — 9 I (sl af 2 9=)

(1) goh uferagaran

1. ol @ R Fefed 89 arel 2 srgaet @t srgATa IR iR TR 1 & forg war 7E @) g Hrar # fawar gfy
22,950.38 g (rerell 99 =) |

2. UTGR # 214.79 Uds A & forg YA 1feRrevr & forg g Sifcm wToie S1feRIemT TRaR §RT SN &1 718 & ORI e
22 THRERT 2023 BT YfA & AT & RN YoIRTd TG did & ot & arg Seaw= 8 |

() 31 gftegdaId — IR & folg $aMSya @1 Y U SR & folg *544.21 o”g (fUsel a¥  3[=1) TATHS oleUd &7,
HTAR # =ZRT 1 fORaR & forg dae ero iR Heaferd gfaemeif & forg SuwmeR |
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sfeua Eefoa ugiferayw Ruat ferfies

(i)

sfeaa wefore deiferaw Rucd fafids
facha faaron &1 w0r 819 arel fewfora

feoofl 9. 23 : G4fSd ueg A+

3T UUH 24 & IUR Wefta wiféar &1 < N fear @

farazor

wefta Al & <@k

e P faawor Sdfora gal &1 A

RS TS T IE e arS (@TeMgSEn) T Ul 7 100% it a1ika @1 g8 2|

W YEe dIfHe (HTAd) [ 1. 5 U AR, S, T SRIGN SfeR! vd gd e, sTEuaienRud (31.10.2022 9)
2. 1 31o1d TR, SU & BRIGRI SN Ud yaer fFaere (1R 99R) (17.06.2022 9 30.10.2022 %)
3. #ff T STEST, T BRIGN AN Td Jae e, ASTAURIRUA (01.06.2022 )
4. 30 o, Rig, geu fag ofen, srsvademge
5. 31 3TV AR, B AT, AMEUAYIIRTA (15.05.2023 TDH)
6. g Rredl AIEN, Sul Az, SMSUATIsRYe (06.06.2023 %)
feere wed (=)

%%%%%%

o

© N oA WN
od o« od o

Yol i, 31edel (20.01.2022 )

TdioT 7ol Wor, FRed (17.02.2023 ¥)
PIFEY A e, aed (21.12.2022 W)
g3 sNarag, Mo (22.12.2021 9)

gt Rier, feere (15.12.2022 9)

gfefer wTe, e (11.10.2022 & 21.11.2022 dF)

s %‘[‘rﬁﬂm freer® (03.11.2021 W 26.09.2022 )
Sf. TaiId Aigd BRI, ewd (03.11.2021 ¥ 30.11.2022 TH)
ElHcRE]
Sudl uiRsife 31 |4, 2023 BI 31 |, 2022 Bl
[T 99 3q ¥ 99 8q
RIESIRECRGS 83.98 47.29
Hroman* 84.77 93.90
Ho Afga* 85.56 72.39
Exql 254.31 213.58
*HERT gt BUl W T Sfie el @ R W
# SIRIH AT H 9 FT 3™ 7 A Tel © | 86,251 /—({Uwer av g) ?
Haft & dde § smaR SffRM & oguR, a¥ & IRM WA U9 SUGRU eIaRd |
Huly, §4F 3R SUSRYT 4 fasl ) fa=ar 31 ATd, 2023 Bt 31 rd, 2022 @I
T 99 2q W 99 'q
oM AT, JgeT 2.04 BEl
B 2.04 0.00
"Ry, G4 3R SUGRUT BT IR 31 AT, 2023 Bt 31 T, 2022 I
AT a9 Bg ** [T s B **
A TN, geT 0.79 SEl
g aferer e 0.66 SEl
Ha 1.44 0.00
** HURT & BRIORY B [ IR 981 & AR WDV & 0T |
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sfeaq wefoie ugiferaw Rosd ferfics

sfeaa Ve dciformy Rudd fafids

facha faazon &1 90T 819 arell fewfrn

31 91, 2023 @1 31 9, 2022 Y
T 9% B T s g
(ii)| IR® FUN_ (ANMLIE)
IRR} BT 3T /IR JATAG If3T - 1,418.00
NS BT = B uRIgR 25.20 21.78
B9 | & @al b forw 3rgar 314.15 804.87
JMAESI B IR ¥ fhar a1 e 0.25 0.16
feiir =Ro1 & foIg ovrgeh orga™ @l arsdl - 1.46
weftra wifdat & e serr af¥n (arE TH)
31 9, 2023 @I 31 9d, 2022 Y
T 99 2q W 99 'q
(i)| T ysgm @iffs
I TR SIS 1 Ve, AR, O, G RIS AR vd yaer e, 0.63
ST ¥ g foar sigm '
(GICEE:D)
31 9Td, 2023 &1 31 91, 2022 &I
T 99 2g T 99 Bq
(ii)| aR®_®uN @)
I@! 3R ¥ By U T & forg Mt | aygelt A 0.01 0.16
g &) 9t & Ay NS @1 <7 25.20 21.78
=R |1 & oy ure 3rgam™ 314.15 -

feoofl 9. 24 : s Rulfew

1. BN IR WRPR & AYE Tl G d ¥eRI 7 HSRoT UREURRT & fFmior qem vl gkt

BT WERETd T BT B, 39 Vel WUfHe W< AT Sl © |
AMiferes a1 dr] T8l © R®ifs SN & T JETeT AR b 9IR |

feoofl 4. 25 : fa<ia Susxr

gft & AR fa<ia Suaor

1) ¥EeF § I8 Mhe (BT & {6 Thal T Thal god, 3 aad A< aREURR, 37 191, Jfearafd o

IR =Y acHT= fa=ig <garet ©

I e BT 3MHeT ST T& I & TRTHIT TR fHar S 2 |

2) focfry aR¥ufRrat qen Sadrel & Sfed g o1 9 R # wnfid favar Siar & 579 W forad &1 s2g@ uell &
7y fHd) IdaT GIa8R F 3MeH—yar fhar Sirdr 2, Ryara feed) ey ar uRgara= o & |

3)  fUd Yo WR @ e H S UGB AR A BIAT R |
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sfeua Eefoa ugiferayw Ruat ferfies

sfeaa Ve dciforma Rusd fafids
facha faazon &1 90T 819 arell fewfrn

feuofl 9. 26 — fa<ia wiRay yeea Se3d sk Afern

1) fa<ira o aR®

HUT B T 39 = R @ faxig SiRadl ¥ SR BRell © ¢ SToTR SRa™, o7 SIRaH 3R dRefdl SIRgH | BU-l bl
Il Biebd AT qToTRI T SR BT AFAT ST 3R $9e =7 Jasi= WR Gwifad gfidel Jmdl ®l 8 HR1 © |
FU B Y HTIfAe IR SIRGH =TS &R SIREH © | 317 U8 TH & @ SildIed & gIRT (e & aferg I8 fhel A arafas st
R SREH & [P 3 el 2 |

BU BT H AT TAATAT 3§ RATIR TAT = AT SR GRETT ST MMAA 2 | 3 oI <Iq1aii Pl & Seed U & JaTel bl
fra—armor 5 | S 1 g7 o aREufl 3 o e, o= foRiia aREuRR iR Fhdl /Faal g enfid © i1 e srarei
9 e € |

A H U 50D AP ATIR AU TAT A1 81 A1 Aol &%, fa=l g fafma =i & wafda qroR Sifes |fed faxi
SEYH B SUANT I B dTel {61 foxiia Siigd & uss 3§ 7181 © | RS Jaee Husi gq Sfod fOxirg SiRes emad afd &
AT 37 SIREAT & Fde B R St 2 1

2) 9T9TR SifgH

IR SiRgH YT SIRaw 8 Siet {6l facig ogus & Sfd Jea a1 s & od) Jars # IR qedi § gRacd & HRo
IAR—TGE B & | IR eI H I TR B SIRGH MAS B & : ol G SAIRIH, STl &R SIIRGH 1R 3 o SIIREH | JIofR
SREH gRT YT fa<ig oiguii # seoT d2IT SR, ST, AT, den g faxiiyg forad nfid g € | el ga1 Siiew a8 Siilem
BraT & STet freh faiar oraus & Sfad e a1 wias & @<l yare 7 fadeh g1 <= # uRad= & wRor SarR—dagrd e 8 | &rs
R SIRH g8 SIReH BIdT & S8l fhdl foRig oRgus & Iferd Jeu a1 wfaw & el JaTe § dofR 16l &)1 7 Rade & HRoT
TAR—=1Gd I & | ITA A Bu=t & fa<i ol fohsd) Wifere IR SiRas & Fae § T2 2 |

3) SR SNfgH

TEDh B SUR SIRIA BT Y&eH T ATIR 3hTs gRT TTSh 0T SIRIH Teei= o Fefid du= &1 wnfia =i, ufshamaii ger
i1 & 31l e I 2 | foredl Ime e a1 SR T[ura 1 M @IS fITeiyor R STeTRd BIdT 8 SR 911 U8 i o
ot ©u b R &) Sl € | 9308 | BIE AR wre T8 R |

4) TReraT SiReH

B R & HH B 1o SIRIH & IR SaYdd Bl © | BT AU Thal SaRADHT Bl Jde TRP HUH I JcHrafe)
FOlf TR Ugd §TY IE@d §U AT 2 |

=1 &) T AT 31 AT, 2023 & AFAR AecdqU! fa<iiy <aarsil &1 Aidarad uRydadrsi & Hag § &RT Sl 8 :

RIICEE:
faazor 199 4 &9 12398 2438 4adqafd o
T AR 1,891.61 - - - 1,891.61
I iy <gan 23,793.90 17.10 0.27 - 23,811.27
el 25,685.51 17.10 0.27 - 25,702.88
i &) TS arferaT 31 AT, 2022 & AR AedqUl fRIG qarei @ Aidarae uRudadrel & g § IR g9 ©

(em@ 2 )
faazor 199 4 &9 1—2 g9 s A 1 O s |
T AR 1,525.50 - - - 1,525.50
= Ay <gand 34,333.24 6.90 0.83 - 34,340.97
o 35,858.74 6.90 0.83 - 35,866.47
feweft . 27 : gofivra gde=
FO B Goft e B See

=R 1 & T8d — Yoil # 3] aRaT & forg T 3fFadt gon oikR o w1 3fdadl Rerd enfiet & | $u- & Yoit wderd &1 merfie

IeeY IRYRS I BT AfAHTH HIAT 2 |

=RV | fIR & T8d — HTAR 7 =R01 1 fawaR & fog 313 srferwreor & forg gofl &1 Jee MR TSR 4 Sad & Jred 9 fhar
ST / THSITETgS |

=R 11 IRATST & d8d — 3 SIfRreer & forg 4ol &1 yee Sidies & w1eas 3 Siieliens / UHairdiool g_T fhar S er 2 |
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sfeaq wefoie ugiferaw Rosd ferfics

sfeaa w2foe dciferaw Ruxd fafics
facha faazon &1 9T 89 arell fewforaT

e er 28 : Al gar ¥ YidH (Yaded 3IT$ UH3IR)

o T H

F— 31 A, 2023 ®I 31 A, 2022 &I

g a8 Bq I a9 'q
RIE] 6.72 6.98
AT IR Harsil & foy eras 4,775.67 29.93
Bl 4,782.39 36.91

e e 29 ;- fagsh gor A My

Girck&

fya=oT 31 H{T1d, 2023 &I 31 A, 2022 &I

waIw 99 ?q T 98 ®q
TeAd 9§ W 1,454.56 Ny

AT AT 30 : HHANY dTH UbhcIdRol

() IRNT A€l qHD 19 D FTAR T YL ThdIbRvT faaror (S vow 19)

$. U ERT U B T3 AR 7o & fog Fratfoa vegRae araael & arefiag fear @ @:

Irafey 31.03.2023 d& 31.03.2022 d&
YT Bl X T av 7.50% uf av 7.25%
999 gfg ) 10.00% wfdT ad 10.00% W aF
TEIRT JMEYTATH 2012—14 JMSYTATH 2012—14
=iy @Y ST <X 0 0
Rt = @f ad) 5.00% wfcr atf 500% wfcr af

Jrafer 31.03.2023 TF 31.03.2022 TF
A HATgRT B 31y 60 wTel 60 wTcl
o 3ifer meRdT EHRY I 3ifer ameRT SEHRY I
Ffga arafer 5 ATl Y Har 5 ATl &Y Har
AR JATgRy ©® am™ 15 /26* qa* fwell Jar (ad) | 15 /26* qa1* fwell Jar (ad) |

TG AR RGN & HRT STeal
FPpa ® ™

SWRIB & [Tl By Hfd

SRID & [al By Hfed

RIE

X 2000000

X 2000000

T, A QIar (U A, 2013 B gy

I & ITAR 3Tel 99 F SR ram) -

SEIES 31.03.2023 d% (o uiv®) 31.03.2022 d&
T I (g 3rafd)* 1,402 2824
R g <uar (Sredrferd) X9,22,854 % 5,50,532
Eagicunll X9,24,256 X5,51,356

TIET BR 1 ATqegehal 81 & |

Are— BUA T HHATRAT BT 77 TG & oy I & SR TANSH I IS THH ol 8 | 0 Bl =g <1 & 938, TagRae Togue &
IRIR 31.03.2023 P 9,24,256 / —, 31.03.2023 B UANTS! U U=G! ITbIH S B AT . 12,14,340.24 / —, SAMTY HHARI o & feTq BIg
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sfeua Eefoa ugiferayw Ruat ferfies

sfeas ®2foa dgiferaw Ruad fafics
facha faazon &1 wrr 819 aref fewfr

(i) IR AW AFD 19 D IAAR TS THSIHRY fqarvT (S vUH 19)

$. HUN gRT ¥ @1 13 3R 7o & fag Frafoa gegRae ararei o ariisg fear @ @

Jrafer 31.03.2023 d® 31.03.2022 H
BT P T afT av 7.50% ufer I 7.25%
999 gfg 10.00% ufT I 10.00% wfar a¥
BECEGI JAMETYYH 2012—14 JMETYEYH 2012—14
ol @7 ST <) 0 0
Rt T @Ry ad) 500% Wfcr af 5.00% ufe a9

@ YA am

arafer 31.03.2023 T 31.03.2022 IF
AR aTgiT @ 3y 60 ST 60 STct
EGE] B & R @ AR FHUA & R @ SER
AR ARGy ) ar 1,/30% qa* gfedl o der 1,/30% qa=* gfear o A
e TR o SWGHAR, B & F709 & fF | SWROuR, U @ 1l & e
TR W AT SWGHAR, GO & 770 & oefF | SWRIeER, U @ fmt & srefie

. g SFar (*Hul fSfE, 2013 @ A 1 P FTAR 3T 99 F SfErd am) ¢

Irqfer

31.03.2023 d (0 Iv®)

31.03.2022 d&

A ST (T srafe)* 52,852 37,577
W gaHE <uar (Sredrford) % 14,43,615 % 10,90,606
ksl T X14,96,467 X11,28,183

Are— HU T BHANRAT BT T SFTHI TAHAIBRT & oI T & SR TAMSHT T ATHT THAHROT AT off & | T & BT oA
SR & Raas dHifehes Jedid & STJHR 31.03.2023 Bl T14,96,467 /— | 31.03.2023 BT TAANTSHI THE 3MADBTEN ThaIHRYT AToiT Ay P1
QY T21,34,663.27 B, SHARTY HHARY AN & oI IS HTGRIT vl &1 STTagdavd el & |

feuofl |, 31 — 3= fewPra

31 3=y fewforai

(i)

faarg @ fawm™ & @=a e v AR

HU = AT 99 2012—13 9 2016—17 & fory faare 9 favary iferf ™, 2020 & d&d o™ U1 T o1 ofR gd o auf # X 663.47 ARI &
T 5T ST T B | ART &1 FARTHROT - QT 7127 8 92 99 & SR fa9RT §IRT Hu=—5 SN {61 717 B, Bodwd |l Ul &l 8
PR T g |

AR 99 2016—17 3R FeiRor o 2017—18 & U, Gt AT . S T AMSE W 1.5 TS IW g 32 8, 5 1 H 9§ BIS 78 &
IR RT ST TH 5 @ STTeild # A B AT iR 7 2 &, T U MY H ATl Bl TG B <l & AR 3T BIg HRaTS el el
2 S1raT faMmT gIRT ART < S Al 2 |

Wm—da}mwmqfv:—

fREIRoT 9 2018—19 @ folT U BT ANT 29,310 / — &RT 154 & A& 3MAHR AGT WX WS < VT ¥ | TSN 7 &I1RT 143(3) & A= SMSL SN
e € iR SMSUAUIRIRYS &, S Ma¥ & RaeiTh ML (31die) & et 1ilel & dad |

feiRor ad 2022—23 & foQ 4,210 /— $UT B AT AR ST R R@E T W@ &, 9@ MG PIRT gRT a7 143(1) {316
02.03.2023 & ded T R TIRI 1 BT 127 2 | SMSTAURIRGS «1 R <1Raet fohar 2 <ifh |l 71 fawn § smaax Rest @t
AIRARAT H U IR bR TTerdll g2 | I8 A Wit g1 SE0a & ol f$e 1 Al < # Awear & &R & o Redt 3 g faan
T | JMSTHYIRIRYS R 4 IS o ATF—W1e] HedTd SITHRI & UM 1 GIR ITRIS BT AT 4 7L DI I (AT ST b |
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sfeaq wefoie ugiferaw Rosd ferfics

sfeaq w2foe dciferaw Rusd fafics
facha faazon &1 wrr 819 areflt fewfr

(ii) (@)

WA g8 2ifaet RSTd Bl TRT TRBR DI 3R F PRENSIT & B H Sl & UTgR, HTAR iR fIemameeTd & 0 el uR 3@m 13
2| foemeETuees # S @ BT START TadIiIve §1RT 1+ AT & forg faar Simam € ofR & It @ |ufkl 98 @R ¥ Tauiied &
T # B | HTAR H Hae U BT STIRT TeAId gRT AMSTAUIRIRYS & A1 FHsi & T8d U+ Wi & ded dal & HeRo & fory fawan
ST |

S TAUIRIRYS o faxii fIeRv1 # dedl et Bl oIaT—SIRT 81 fhaT ST ]8T &, Hael ded dal BI Al BT AT BT i1 e & W1l &
Ared ¥ frar mar | a7 af 202021 @ $iffSe & SR NTSTSN W WG AR T ARATAT {37 17 o Fed df & ofdad &
R 3R YIPi H SICYl & UPHCIHRY & Hag H UgIforad gd Wi 19 HaTer AEUUIeiRUd & @Idl ®I. Hu+ + 01 fAFaR
2021 BT THATHIUSTAG Bl T fogay 59 Wy H dedl Ial & ofdad Bl I@—viRkdl AR SLT BT AR B 8 SIDHRI AT off
THIATNT ST BT SR 3 off Treiferd & |

O 9 202122 & YR ST & IR SMSTAYISTRYS 7 HIYSH DI ML o 2 {5 foRivs FegadRr’ @l 77 Ewians & afify
v 9vq W AR Hf | METAURIRTe = SlaTRIen AMfT $T 39 LA A 37T SHRrT 3R Harery & fen—foder 7, #3rera 3
WA & SEid & Fael 7 TS AT Suael TRIY Fed dol BT HeR AR SMSTAURIRYS Bl HITSH BT Jedidh Hve & e
foa | smEuedieRue ¥ Aol o U3 foraas ufshar & an # STaR) €1 8 |iav a8 ifTd Refd & oRkgied & Hae § wRd & a6
Td HETCIET UNIeTdh BT BT IR THEIET 8] S UIgalTs 3 faive &1 Helre o @ fofg |

FHUA 7 HART T Tl HER & Bael A9 &Y T AMIHS fIaRT BT GeATAT BT ST I & i o gl |red faam T e |

YR G¥OR — D Aidel

31 9, 2023 | 31 9, 2022 B

faazor (== TH H) (== THA W)
Ea=] BT AT Wi (Fderd RUId & IgER) (F) 3,010,938.75 4,213,678.99
SIS — a¥ & SR SR ¢

e @ 9 @ R (@)

FIR Ruré & ER arafdd () -
S — HTAR # dad ¢ H étc_: o (4) 3,394.63 -
P — ¥ B IRE [/ exAaRd () - 1,198,816.99
¥ B FAIRG W ARG A S AFAR Y& A (F+T+E)—(S) 3,014,333.38 3,014,862.00
Y P TG TR AR § ot AT (FdeTds Rl & TAR) 3,016,903.67 3,010,938.75
(HTR & da- U H 3,394.63 HIfgd 7 & Ss¥eld dlwd)

UsHld — s ATl
31 #rd, 2023 ®1| 31 5, 2022 B

faaor (T gEdY W) (AT T W)
Ea] BT AT Wie (@ders Rud & 1gaR) (@) 3,512.61 517,387.96
SIS — ¥ & SR U

oM & a1 & ogaR (@) 433,099.00

ARR RAE & rgaR arafds (1) 422,602.24
HH — ¥ B IR S/ Exaiand (8) 3,394.63 -
P — 9§ & IR TSR gIRT RRIHIART () - 510,767.87
¥ B FAIRG W IRAMNS ATHT F AFAR Y& A (F+T)—(F+T) 422,720.22 6,620.09
Y oI AT TR AR § ol AT (FdeTdr RUIE & ER) 421,775.48 3,512.61
(3,394.63 Mg e & ST Wi P BISH)

e : P I BIE 81, WHR IR ATE S| WIR B |
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R @R deifrr Rersd fifs (6)

TR
ISPRL
3R W agifean Read fafics
facia faazon &1 9T @19 arell fewfr
arg T H
ARA WHR /RIS & I (Feal dd AJSH) 2022-23 2021-22
Al @I FOIA § 4R ABR / TASIUIGAST BT <7 /a9 I 84.61 4,182.15
TS : — 9 @ SR P dof B g I qf N 3
TS — &7, 31 WIfqat 3R AT - 1,258.94
HEY —UT Fedl del (BXIaRYT &1 E) (FATeRE 3R 31 &1 wfed) N )
T B AR - 356.02
g — ﬁ%ﬁm/@&ﬁ'@l’q‘ﬁﬁ P AT BT TS T _ 5,000.46
HeTY — JMEUAUISTRUS & TeRiRil HeRerdl Hiel & fofy Rl o1 & U # fawrfora i 84.61 84.61
A B 3T F R IRBR / THNYITTST BT <F /Aoy IR
dIe : 31 A, 2022 TAT 31 AH 2023 Th IR WRBR / THAGCASH BT T/ qM=il A <af3
IR AT | T S a1 AR Bt 2

Al : P I Big 81, WHR I ATE S| WIR 3 |

(i)=&

O a9 202122 & TP ST B IR, FMETHANRUSA = HTSYH BT LT AT 27 o FIENTHT 3Mh ACE B3y ATt i3
(TSHIGRTTE) &1 ‘fIRINE HellgdR AT @1 17 THAIISN | aROT —| & 31 US TH 3T & oldidT TR ol QT | TR AR 31R
RO & oY qE—uRAST @ &1 o@id | TagR, MMETAURIRTS o AEAIGATE HT Th U3 fergar v wv w3 Aift 2|
SRS ¥ AT FATEBR BT 7T 37 TP BN DI I 81 T8 © AR SMATIF @i / YR STEATRATE Bl T & AFHY Dl
ST | STERATIATE ¥ IR W7 B T, DU = TRU—| & 31T T UH ST SR Fafde 311 U wH @i ol o 3R g1 famor (Are e
20.1 H) 3R Herdell fIaRor # 3ifthRIe BT SN T & i o fUeel auf # fasar oy o |

(iii)

() TROT Il :-

1. IRT & BT AFHSS 7T 27 T, 2018 BT UTgR—fgei, Bl (2.5 TATACT) MR FEIRATS T (4.0 THTHEY) H AT s dait
#F T I B oy IR 6.5 THTACT HSRYT Gl #1 e & forg dgifie wo < € 81 R <1 wefre ugifersm
Rored (TdieiR) & forg waftia River dige 9 (Terdivs) $iR urgvetrs & fFmior enfie 8 | dfave So& # 08.07.2021 &1 fifidy
HrS # SMETATISIRUA & aRvT—fe<i T URATSTT BT Hol &1 778 off |

2. FERArS URATSHT & oy i arrded & forg amae e ARHR &I IRgd fHar 17 o, Udh T YuHans wderr Rurd
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A el wa, 78 Reet -110 001
Pankaj Jain Government of India
Secretary : Ministry of Pelroleum and Matural Gas
gl Shastr Bhawan, New Delhi - 110 001
Ted. : 011-23383501, 011-23383562
Fax : 011-23070723
E-mail | sec.png@nic.in
November 29, 2023
Dear Shareholders,

It is with immense pleasure that | present. on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Indian Strategic Petroleum Reserves Limited [ISPRL], the Annual Report for the financial
year 2022-23,

Our Company has been dedicated to fulfilling the government’s commitment to
ensuring energy security for India through the establishment of Strategic Petroleum
Reserves [SPR]. Existing capacity ol established SPR is 5.33 MMT, at three locations: one
in the State of Andhra Pradesh at Vishakhapatnam &two in the State of Kamataka at
Mangalore & Padur.

Against the backdrop of ongoing global economic uncertainty, geopolitical crisis,
demand recovery post pandemic and a surge in international crude and gas prices, the
significance of the strategic petroleum reserves is only gaining further salience. Its role, in
providing a buffer against supply disruptions cannot be overstated. In November 2021, for
instance, parallel and in consultation with other major global energy consumers, India had
agreed to release crude oil from its SPR to dampen inflationary pressures,

Additionally, your Company's growth has been propelled by Government's
approval for partial commercialization in July 2021, This strategic shift positions ISPRL
to leverage opportunities that partial commercialization has brought into ISPRL's foray,

Towards development of strategic reserves of 2.5 MMT at Padur, Kamataka under
phase-[1. 1 am happy to share that there has been considerable progress in acquisition of
land. Abu Dhabi National Oil Company [ADNOC] has been actively utilizing the
Mangalore Cavern and it has been filled with Upper Zakum grade crude oil during Dec
2022 and March 2023,

Subsequent, post signing of MOU on 17" July 2020, between the U.S. Department
of Energy and the India’s Ministry of Petroleum and Natural Gas for cooperation on
Strategic Petroleum Reserves, an Annual Action Plan was finalized. Under the MOU, a
senior US delegation of Strategic Reserves DOE [Department of Energy] visited ISPRL
office at Noida and ISPRL facilities at Vishakhapatnam on 14th and 15th Nov 2022, The
best operational practices for caverns were exchanged and shared. | have also had the
opportunity to visit DoE’s Big Hill SPR site in Texas in Sepiember 2022.

New business initiatives remain at the core of our Company s sirategic outlook for
enhancing the Country’s energy security. ISPRL is now in pursuit to explore additional
land for construction of SPR under Phase | extension at Mangalore. The proposal for
acquisition of land by ISPRL from Mangalore Special Economic Zone Limited [MSEZL]
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has been approved and ISPRL has signed an Mol with MSEZL on 17th March 2023,
Detail feasibility report study contract has been awarded to EIL who were also the PMC in
the Phase | of SPR’s.

After a visit of a team from ISPRL to Oman in Feb 2023, an Mol has been executed
between ISRPL and Oman Tanking Terminal Company [OTTCO] on 25th June 2023 for
carrying out feasibility studies for ISPRL’s participation in phasel of the Ras Markaz crude
storage project by way of either equity partnership or leasing storage space.

Our Company has judiciously followed standards and protocols for Health Safety
& Environment [HSE] at all the three strategic reserves and there was nil Loss time
Accident [LTA] during the operations, In the ever-increasing Environment, Social and
Governance [ESG] consciousness, it is noteworthy that Effluent Treatment Plants [ETP].
designed with Zero discharge beyond terminal boundary are actively operational at all the
sites. The total treated water is being utilized for internal consumption like use for Water
curtain tunnels, Firefighting purpose and Green belt development within the terminal
premises and thus ensuring Zero discharge outside the terminal boundary. Ever since the
SPRs has been commissioned and dedicated to the nation on 10™ February 2019, they have
been operational round the clock. 24X7. [ extend my compliments to ISPRL team spread
across Noida, Vizag, Mangalore, Padur and Bhubaneswar for their unrelented efforts in
ensuring smooth and safe operations:

I am also happy to note that ISPRL is compliant with all applicable provisions of
the Companies Act 2013. Your Company accords the highest importance to transparency,
accountability and equity in all faceis of its operation.

| want lo take this opportunity to acknowledge and express my gratitude o
esteemed shareholders, my colleagues on the Board of Directors and to all other
stakeholders for their valuable cooperation, unstinted support and trust on the Company.

| am also thankful for the wholehearted support received from OIDB, our parent
company and Ministry of Petroleum & Natural Gas, other Ministries, Department.

Regulatory authorities and Agencies of the Govemnment of India and the various State
Governments.

Our success would also not have been possible without the team of ISPRL.
Wishing ISPRL all the very best!
Jai Hind!

[Pankai Jain]
Chairman, ISPRL
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CHAIRMAN

&

SHRI PANKAJ JAIN

Shri Pankaj Jain, serves as Secretary to the Government of India in the
Ministry of Petroleum and Natural Gas. He has wide-ranging, extensive
experience in governance as well as design and execution of policy across
the National and State Governments. This has encompassed the domains of
oil and natural gas, financial services (banking and institutional finance),
industries, power, information technology, livelihoods and MSMEs.

Mr. Jain has extensive Board experience as Chairman / Director on the Board
of companies in the Petroleum and Natural Gas Sector, Banks, Development
Finance Institutions, Insurance Companies, Non-Banking Finance
Companies, a Guarantee Company and Regulatory/Supervisory Bodies.

DIRECTOR

a

SHRI PRAVEEN MAL KHANOOJA

Shri Praveen M. Khanooja is currently posted as Additional Secretary in the
Ministry of Petroleum & Natural Gas. He is a B. Tech in Chemical Engineering
and M. Tech in Management & Systems. He belongs to 1994 batch of Indian
Audit & Accounts Service (IA&AS) and has worked in various capacities in
Defence Audit, Railways Audit, State Government Accounts & Audit at many
field and Headquarters' postings.

He has also earlier served as Director (Finance) for the Department of
Revenue and Central Board of Excise & Customs; Expert in the State Audit
Institution, Sultanate of Oman, Muscat, Additional DG in the Central
Economic Intelligence Bureau and DG of Petroleum Planning & Analysis Cell
on various deputation and secondment assignments. He has conducted
Compliance and Performance Audits of FAO, Rome; WIPO, Geneva, WTO,
Spain; GFMD Geneva, and UNITAID Geneva.

Heisalsoserving as director on the Board of Oil and Natural Gas Corporation
Limited (ONGC). He is a member of Nomination & Remuneration
Committee and Project Appraisal and Review Committee in ONGC. Heis also
the chairperson of Audit Committee, Sub-Committee on HR matters &
Committee of Directorsin ISPRL.
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MS. KAMINI CHAUHAN RATAN

Ms. Kamini Chauhan Ratan, is an IAS Officer from 1997 batch U.P. Cadre. She
isa Commerce Graduate from JDMCin 1991 as Topper in Delhi University in
B. Com (P) Course. She has also done her LLB from Chaudhary Charan Singh
University, Meerut and LLM from Bhoj Open University, Bhopal.

She had been Sub Divisional/ Joint Magistrate of Agra, Ayodhya, Lucknow
during initial years of service. She has worked as Chief Development Officer
in Meerut & initiated several development activities in the District. On Inter-
State Cadre deputation, she served MP Govt. and handled Mahila Vitt Evam
Vikas Nigam, MP in the capacity of its Managing Director. She has served as
Collector & District Magistrate in Sultanpur, Bulandshahr, Saharanpur. She
was the first Lady Collector & DM of Baghpat and Meerut. She has received
National Award for the best District Electoral Officer by the Election
Commission of India.

She was the HoD in UP Govt. in the capacity of Commissioner, Food Safety &
Drug Administration; Inspector General (Registration) and Commissioner of
Stamps; Commissioner (Commercial Taxes); Commissioner (Entertainment
Tax).

She has been the First Lady Inspector General (Registration) and
Commissioner of Stamps, U.P. and Commissioner of Commercial Taxes, U.P.
She has served as Secretary, Department of Women & Child Development,
Secretary (Finance), Secretary (Rural Development) in the State of U.P. She
has also assisted Chief Secretary of U.P. as the Principal Staff Officer to Chief
Secretary, U.P.

She has worked as Joint Secretary (Higher Education), Department of Higher
Education, Ministry of Education, Gol and has played a key-role in the
formulation of National Education Policy, 2020.

She is currently working as Additional Secretary & Financial Aduviser,
Ministry of Petroleum & Natural Gas.

Sheis also serving as director on the Board of Bharat Petroleum Corporation
Limited (BPCL). She is member of Corporate Social Responsibility
Committee and Nomination & Remuneration Committee in BPCL. Sheisalso
member of Audit Committee, Committee of Directorsin ISPRL.
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MS. ESHA SRIVASTAVA

Ms. Esha Srivastava, belongs to the Indian Foreign Service Officer of 2004
Batch. She is currently posted as the Joint Secretary of the International
Cooperation Division of the Ministry of Petroleum & Natural Gas.

Prior to her appointment to the Ministry of Petroleum & Natural Gas, she
served as Deputy Chief of Mission in the Indian Embassy in Thimphu from
November 2016 toJanuary 2019. Before that, she was posted in the Ministry of
External Affairs. She has also served in High Commission of India in Colombo,
and in the Embassy of India, Paris and the Permanent Delegation of India to
UNESCO.

Ms. Srivastava, an alumnus of Lady Shri Ram College, New Delhi, holds a M. Phil
Degree in Political Science from Delhi University. She is also a Gold Medalist
from Delhi University.

She is married to Shri Kartik Pande, who is also an Indian Foreign Service
Officer. She has two kids.

She is also serving as director on the Board of ONGC Videsh Limited (OVL). She
is Chairpersonin Project Appraisal Committee and member of Corporate Social
Responsibility, Sustainability (CSR&S) Committee and Nomination &
Remuneration Committee in OVL. She is member of Audit Committee,
Corporate Social Responsibility Committee and Sub-Committee on HR matters
in ISPRL.

DIRECTOR

MS. VARSHA SINHA

Ms Varsha Sinha, Secretary, Oil Industry Development Board (OIDB), Ministry
of Petroleum and Natural Gas is a Joint Secretary level officer of Central
Secretariat Service. During her career of more than two and half decades, she
has held various positions in Government of India.

She has extensive experience of working in Govt. of India with various
departments viz. Department of Health and Family Welfare, Ministry of
Culture, Ministry of Commerce (Directorate General of Foreign Trade) etc.
Before joining OIDB, she was working as Joint Secretary, Department of
Personneland Training, Govt. of India and was handling important portfolios.

Sheisalso member of Audit Committeein ISPRL.
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CEO & MD
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SHRI L.R. JAIN

Shri L. R. Jain has taken over as CEO&MD of Indian Strategic Petroleum
Reserves Limited (ISPRL) on 31" October'2022, a special purpose vehicle of
OIDB, under Ministry of Petroleum & Natural Gas, specially created for
constructing and operating Strategic petroleum Reserves for the country.

He is a Mechanical Engineer from BITS Pilani with Executive MBA (PGEMP)
from SPJIMR and is having about three and half decades of vast experience in
execution of projects, Operations and Procurement in BPCL, a flagship
Maharatna Company of India.

Prior to his posting as CEO&MD, ISPRL, he was heading the Engineering and
Projects (E&P) entity of BPCL's Marketing Division. He also concurrently held
position of the Director of IHB, a Joint Venture of IOCL, HPCL & BPCL formed for
Kandla-Gorakhpur LPG Pipeline project.

He also held various other leadership positions in BPCL viz. Chief Procurement
Officer and Head Pipeline Entity.
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER & MANAGING DIRECTOR
Shri L. R. Jain

COMPANY SECRETARY

Shri Arun Talwar

STATUTORY AUDITORS
Parsad Azad & Co.

Chartered Accountants

SECRETARIAL AUDITORS
PG & ASSOCIATES,

Company Secretaries

BANKERS
Union Bank of India
M-41, Connaught Circus,
New Delhi-110 001

REGISTERED OFFICE
301, World Trade Centre, 3" Floor, Babar Road, New Delhi-110 001
Phone No. : 011-23412278

ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICE
OIDB Bhawan, 3" Floor, Plot No.2, Sector-73, Noida-201301, U.P.
Phone No. : 91-120-2594661, Fax No. 91-120-2594643
Website : www.isprlindia.com

Email : ispri@isprlindia.com
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To,

DIRECTOR’S REPORT

The Shareholders,
Indian Strategic Petroleum Reserves Limited

The Board of Directors of your Company is pleased to present the 19" Annual Report on the working of the Company for
the Financial Year ended 31" March, 2023, together with the Audited Statement of Accounts and Auditor's Report
thereon.

FINANCIAL RESULTS

The Highlights of the Financial Results of your Company for the Financial Year ended 31" March, 2023 are as under:

T inlLakh

SI.No. Particulars 31" March, 2023 31" March, 2022
1 | Gross Fixed Assets (Tangible & Intangible) 373759.79 373669.45
Less :- Accumulated Depreciation 58502.71 48572.24

Net Fixed Assets 315257.08 325097.21

2 | Total Non-Current Assets 29892.89 37107.95
3 | Total Current Assets 5113.85 10310.29
Total Assets 350263.82 372515.45

4 | Total Equities including accumulated Losses 315837.02 325538.41
5 | Total Non-current Liabilities 572.08 582.87
6 | Total Current Liabilities 33854.72 46394.17
Total Liabilities 350263.82 372515.45

Items of Profit and Loss Account

SI.No. Particulars 31" March, 2023 31" March, 2022
1 | Total Incomes including prior period adjustments, if any 589.83 896.47

2 | Total Expenses including Depreciation 10291.21 10827.80
Net Loss for the period (1) - (2) -9701.38 -9931.33

Phase-Il (Receipts and Expenditure)

including provisions for payable

SI.No. Particulars 31" March, 2023 31" March, 2022

1 | Total Grant received during the year for Phase-Il project NIL 11987.24
(on net basis) including Advance for land

2 | Total Expenditure incurred during the year under Phase-Il 318.33 835.99

PERFORMANCE OVERVIEW

PREAMBLE:

Government of India (Gol), in the interest of meeting the strategic objective of the country’s energy security, decided on

7" January, 2004 to build Strategic Petroleum Reserves (SPRs) of 5 MMT at three locations and form a Special Purpose

Vehicle (SPV) to build and operate the strategic crude oil reserves. As India is heavily dependent on import of crude oil, to

support the economic activities for growth and to meet the energy needs of its citizens, these SPRs were envisaged to
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ISPRL

serve as buffer to deal with any situation of supply chain disruptions, especially due to external reasons. In
circumstances, the buffer stock of crude oil could be used to partially absorb an abnormal spike in the global oil prices.

The SPV, Indian Strategic Petroleum Reserves Limited (ISPRL) was formed initially as a subsidiary of Indian Oil
Corporation Limited, which w.e.f. 09.05.2006, became a wholly owned subsidiary of Qil Industry Development Board
(Oo1DB).

The initial Cost of construction of SPR’s of 5.03 MMT capacity was funded by OIDB and equivalent amount of equity of
ISPRL was transferred to OIDB. Additional cavern of capacity of 0.3 MMT was constructed at Vishakhapatnam which was
funded by HPCL. The construction of caverns at Vizag (1.03+0.03 MMT), Mangalore (1.5 MMT) and Padur (2.5 MMT) was
completed during 2015-2017. The facilities were commissioned during 2015 to 2018.

Funds forfilling of crude (4.28 MMT) in the SPR’s were provided by Gol and also the Annual Operations and Maintenance
(O&M) costis being borne by Gol.

Hon’ble Prime Minister of India dedicated these SPR’s to Nation on 10" February, 2019.

In line with directions of Cabinet committee on Infrastructure (CCl) and CCEA, endeavours were made to explore
alternative models for financing the part cost of crude oil to be filled in SPR’s. On 25" January, 2017, a definitive
agreement was signed on Oil storage and management between ISPRLand ADNOC. As per the agreement, ADNOC filled
up cavern A of Mangalore with 0.75 MMT of DAS grade crude oil. ADNOC is required to maintain minimum 50% of
storage capacity for strategic use by ISPRL. Remaining 50% storage capacity will be available with ADNOC for commercial
use.

Union Cabinet approved the commercialization of ISPRL during a Cabinet meeting held on 8" July, 2021 by allowing ISPRL
to undertake partial commercial activities with the crude stored in caverns under Phase-| of SPR program by allowing
ISPRLto use 30% of SPR capacity for renting and 20% of SPR capacity for trading purpose.

ISPRLisinthe process ofimplementing commercialization mandate.
HIGHLIGHTS:

Your company has taken various initiatives in furtherance of its objectives. The highlights with regards to O& M of SPR’s at
Vizag, Mangalore and Padur are given below :

1. Visakhapatnam (Storage Capacity:1.33 MMT)

The Visakhapatnam Cavern was commissioned in 2015. The facility has two compartments Cavern A (1.03 MMT) and
Cavern B (0.3 MMT). Cavern A is for Strategic crude oil and is filled by funds made available by the Government of India.
HPCL has taken cavern B on proportionate cost sharing basis. This is being regularly used by HPCL for its refinery
operations at Visakhapatnam.

During the year there were total thirty crude shipment receipts for cavern B and sixty-six shipments were released to
Vizag refinery of HPCL.

No LTA (Loss time accident) was reported this year. 24/7 operations of SPR’s were ensured by continuously monitoring
and replenishing water curtain levels over the SPR’s. Hydrogeological monitoring of boreholes logs across the station
was carried to ensure integrity of SPR’s. Preventive maintenance activities were conducted as per schedule. Two Mock
drills were conducted by ISPRL with Mutual aid members and Statuatory authorities in order to keep preparedness to
handle emergencies. Intelligence Bureau (IB) inspection of the facility was completed in March, 23.
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View of the aboveground facilities at Visakhapatnam

2. Mangalore (Storage Capacity: 1.5 MMT)

The Mangalore Cavern facility is located in the Mangalore SEZ area. The facility has two caverns of 0.75 MMT capacity
each.

Mangalore Cavern B was commissioned in the month of October, 2016. For filling cavern A of Mangalore an Agreement
was signed with ADNOC. First VLCC shipment of Crude oil for Mangalore was flagged off from Abu Dhabi on 12" May,
2018 by Hon'ble Minister of Petroleum and Natural Gas and received at ISPRL Mangalore on 19" May, 2018.

During the year 2022-23, Mangalore Cavern A has been filled with 3.1 million BBLS of Upper Zakum grade Crude Oil
during December, 2022 and March, 2023 which has been brought by ADNOC after replacing the existing crude.

No LTA (Loss time accident) was reported this year. 24/7 operations of SPR's were ensured by continuously monitoring
and replenishing water curtain levels over the SPR's. For ensuring integrity of SPR's regular Hydrogeological monitoring
and sampling of water from bore holes was carried. Preventive maintenance activities were conducted as per schedule.

LPG bullet decommissioning & commissioning was done safely for the first time in ISPRL Mangalore in 2022.

With water harvesting techniques implemented at site have resulted in annual net reduction in water bill of approx.
Rs 48 lakhs.
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Visit of CMD-IOCL Shri S.M. Vaidya to ISPRL Mangalore on 24.09.2022

3. Padur (Storage Capacity: 2.5 MMT)

For the Padur project, 179 acres of land was acquired through Karnataka Industrial Area Development Board (KIADB) in
Padur village of Udupi District. This is the largest project executed by ISPRL and was commissioned in December, 2018.

During the current year Padur team provided support to the local authorities in firefighting by promptly responding to
emergency calls. Seven fire calls were attended outside the plant premises. Timely response by ISPRL Padur team has been
appreciated by the Local bodies and District Authorities.

Dewatering pump & ETP pond pump platform modifications jobs were undertaken through in-house resources and were
successfully executed. Major overhauling of Fire water engine pump completed which involved Shaft replacement,
overhauling and coupling replacement work.

No LTA (Loss time accident) was reported this year. 24/7 operations of SPR's were ensured by continuously monitoring and
replenishing water curtain levels over the SPR's. Hydrogeological and bore holes monitoring was carried to ensure integrity
of SPR's. Preventive maintenance activities were conducted as per schedule.
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View of underground strategic cavern

Visit of Hon'ble Minister of State MoP&NG Shri Rameshwar Teli
at ISPRL Mangalore on 09.10.2022
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Swachhata Pakhwada rally by Noida HO employees
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Swachhata Pakhwada rally by Noida HO employees

Yoga Day celebration
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STATUS OF ONGOING PROJECTS OF ISPRL
I. 2.5MMTSTRATEGIC PETROLEUM RESERVES UNDER PHASE-11 AT PADUR, DISTRICT UDUPI, KARNATAKA

For land acquisition for Padur project, ISPRL submitted requirement of acquiring land to KIADB in November, 2020.
KIADB has issued final gazette notification for 214.79 Acres Padur land 22™ February, 2023 and the same has been
published in press on 24" March, 2023. A Demand note from KIADB for payment of Rs 62.5 crore over & above 98 crores
already paid as advance was received on 31.05.2023. Total amount of Rs.160.5 crore has been paid by ISPRL to KIADB.
KIADB in consultation with DC, Udupiis in the process of Finalization of R&R package and compensation to landowners,
Land is expected to be acquired by March, 2024 by KIADB.

Providing encumbrance free land is a condition precedent for concessionaire agreement. Marine Survey, Modelling &
offshore pipeline route survey has been completed for SPM at Padur.

M/s Deloitte Toche has been appointed as Transactional Advisor for RFP preparation and Legal Advisor M/s AZB Partner
for preparing concessionaire agreement of Phase-Il required for PPP model. It is anticipated that RFP for Padur shall be
floated infinancial year 2023-24.

4.0 MMT STRATEGICPETROLEUM RESERVES UNDER PHASE-II AT CHANDIKHOL, DISTRICT JAJPUR, ODISHA

After completion of DFR studies by EIL, an application by ISPRL for allocation of 400 acres of land at Chandikhol was
submitted to Govt. of Odisha on 30" September, 2019 for setting up SPR facilities of 4 MMT capacity. The Govt. of Odisha
after evaluation of the land application, advised ISPRL to explore possibility of an alternative location near Chandikhol,
Odisha.

ISPRL through M/s Engineers India Limited carried out desktop studies and reviewed satellite images and identified
three possible locations near Paradeep, these sites are:

i) Sidha GumphaHill: The areais located south east of Chandikholand about 55 km from Paradeep

ii)  Balrampur Hill: The area is located north of Chandikhol and about 87 km from Paradeep near ox bow bend of
Brahmani Riverand

iii)  Rahadpur Hill: This area is located north of Chandikhol and about 80 km from Paradeep.

Ajoint site visit of EIL & ISPRL senior officials was made on 23" and 24™ May, 2023 to evaluate all the three possible sites.
M/s Engineers India Limited (EIL) has submitted their report and have recommended option (i) as a preferred location.

The report has been forwarded to Govt. of Odisha on 31% July, 2023 for their final consent.
. 1.5/2.0 MMT STRATEGIC PETROLEUM RESERVES UNDER PHASE-I EXTN. AT MANGALORE SPECIALECONOMICZONE

Delegated Invested Board (DIB) on 17.02.2023 has approved proposal for Acquisition of land (154.9 Acres) by Indian
Strategic Petroleum Reserve Limited (ISPRL) from Mangalore Special Economic Zone Limited (MSEZL) for construction
of SPR and associated facilities at Mangalore MSEZL. ISPRL has signed an MoU with MSEZL on 17" March, 2023 for plot
size of 154.90 Acres land at MSEZL area Mangalore.

EILhas beenawarded the job to carry out detail feasibility report for the above site.

PFR/DFR's for new projects: Also it is proposed to carry out DFR studies for construction of Salt Caverns for crude oil
storage at Bikaner, PFR for strategic reserves at Bina and PFR for above ground storage tank at Mangalore and Padur.
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General Highlights

1. Thematic Audit of ISPRL was carried out by CAG for a period of five months wherein detailed information since inception
of ISPRL, project phase and operations phase were provided.

2. USDOE delegate visited ISPRLHO on 14" November, 22 and ISPRL Vishakhapatnam on 15" November, 22 for discussions
on cooperation on SPR operations and practices.

3. Meeting with ADNOC delegates was held on 18" January, 2023 to expedite the filling of strategic reserve in Cavern A
Mangalore and discussion on taxationissue.

4. Visit of ISPRL officials to Raz Markaz OMAN for reviewing the OTTCO crude oil storage terminal project and exploring the
participation of ISPRLin OTTCO's project.

U.S. Delegates from DOE at ISPRL, Vizag Cavern Portal Area
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ISPRL

DIVIDEND
Your Board of Directors does not recommend any Dividend for the Financial Year ended 31" March, 2023.
TRANSFER TO RESERVES

The losses made during the financial year 2022-23 have been transferred to the reserves of the Company for the financial
yearended 31" March, 2023.

PUBLIC DEPOSITS

Your Company has not invited, accepted or renewed any fixed deposit from the public as on
31" March, 2023 and accordingly there is no principal or interest outstanding in respect thereof.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Board has constituted the Audit Committee. The Audit Committee comprised of the following Directors as on
31" March, 2023:

1.  Shri Praveen Mal Khanooja, AS, MoP&NG/Director, ISPRL : Chairman
2. Ms. Kamini Chauhan Ratan, AS&FA, MoP&NG/Director, ISPRL : Member
3. Ms. Esha Srivastava, OSD (IC), MoP&NG/Director, ISPRL : Member
4, Ms. Varsha Sinha, Secretary, OIDB/Director, ISPRL : Member
5. Shri L. R. Jain, CEO & MD, ISPRL : Member

The number and dates of the meetings held during the financial year indicating the number of meetings attended by
each director is given at Annexure-A.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR) COMMITTEE

The company has a CSR Policy which is available on the website of the Company. The Company has not spent any money on
CSR activities during the year as the company has not made any profit during the preceding three financial years.
The CSR Committee comprised of the following Directors as on 31" March, 2023:

1. Ms. Esha Srivastava, OSD (IC), MoP&NG/Director, ISPRL : Chairperson

2. ShriL.R. Jain, CEO & MD, ISPRL : Member

The number and dates of the meetings held during the financial year indicating the number of meetings attended by
each director is given at Annexure-A.

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

Pursuant to Section 92(3) and Section 134(3)(a) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company has placed a copy of the Annual
Return as of 31" March, 2023 on its website at
https://www.isprlindia.com/downloads/annual-reports/Form_MGT_7_ISPRL_22-23.pdf

MEETINGS OF THEBOARD

The Board of Directors of the Company met six times in the financial year 2022-23 as per the following details:
2" June, 2022

12" August, 2022

18" October, 2022

04" November, 2022

17" November, 2022
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6. 16" March, 2023

The number and dates of the meetings held during the financial year indicating the number of meetings attended by each
directoris given at Annexure-A.

CHANGE IN THE NATURE OF BUSINESS
Duringthe year under review, there have been no changesin the nature of business.
PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES

The Company has no employee in respect of whom the Statement under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read
with Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules 2014, is required to be furnished.

DECLARATION BY THE INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS
There were no Independent Directors on the Board of the Company during the financial year 2022-23.
RISK MANAGEMENT

Effective risk management is critical for the continued success of the Company. The Company has a risk management policy
to identify risk associated with the Company operations and to take appropriate corrective steps to minimize the risks. The
major risks associated with Company are related to crude oil receipt and storage and delivery. These risks are mitigated by
adopting standard operating procedures and adequate insurance cover.

SHARE CAPITAL
During the year, the Company has notissued Equity Share Capital.
KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

The following were the Whole-time Key Managerial Personnel during the year under review:

a) CEO & Managing Director - Shri L. R. Jain (w.e.f. 31.10.2022)

b) CEO & Managing Director - Shri Ajay Dashore (w.e.f. 17.06.2022
(Additional Charge) till 30.10.2022)

c) CEO & Managing Director - Shri H.P.S. Ahuja (till 01.06.2022)

d) Chief Financial Officer - Shri Gopeshwar Kumar Singh

e) Company Secretary - Ms. Shilpi Mohanty (w.e.f. 06.06.2023)

f)  Company Secretary - Shri Arun Talwar (till 15.05.2023)

REMUNERATION

All Directors on the Board of ISPRL are ex-officio directors nominated by Ministry of Petroleum and Natural Gas (MoP&NG)
except CEO & MD. CEO & MD is appointed by the ISPRL Board. No remuneration is paid to ex-officio director nominated by
MoP&NG. Other officers working at various key positionsin ISPRL are on deputation from oil sector PSUs.

Shri L. R. Jain, CEO & MD, ISPRL (w.e.f. 31.10.2022) and the remuneration paid to CEO & MD is as per the terms & conditions
of hisemployment approved by ISPRLBoard and Shareholdersin AGM.

Shri Ajay Dashore, who serves as Dy. CEQ/ Head (Tech.), ISPRL was on Additional Charge of CEO & MD, ISPRL (w.e.f.
17.06.2022 till 30.10.2022). Shri Ajay Dashore is on deputation from ONGC and receives remuneration according to the
terms & conditions of hisemployment with ONGC.
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ISPRL

Shri HPS Ahuja, ex- CEO & MD (till 01.06.2022) who was on deputation from ONGC got superannuated from ONGC on
31" October, 2019 and continued with ISPRLas CEO & MD on the terms and conditions approved by the Board and in AGM by
Shareholders.

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS AFFECTING FINANCIAL POSITION BETWEEN THE END OF THE FINANCIALYEAR
AND DATE OF THE REPORT

There are no material changes which have occurred subsequent to the close of financial year of the Company to which the
Balance Sheetrelates and the date of the report.

DETAILS OF SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR COURTS OR TRIBUNALS IMPACTING
THE GOING CONCERN STATUS AND COMPANY'S OPERATIONS IN FUTURE

No significant and material orders were passed by the Regulators or Courts or Tribunals impacting the going concern status
and company's operationsin future.

SUBSIDIARY/JOINT VENTURES/ASSOCIATE COMPANIES

The Company is not having any Subsidiary/Joint Ventures/Associate Companies under the provisions of the Companies Act,
2013.

AUDITORS
STATUTORY AUDIT:

The Comptroller & Auditor General of India (C&AG) has appointed M/s Prasad Azad & Co. (DE0029), 1207, Surya Kiran
Building, 19, Kasturba Gandhi Marg, New Delhi- 110001 as Statutory Auditors of the Company, who have submitted their
report on the accounts of the Company for the Financial Year ended 31" March, 2023 (Annexure-B). The observations of
Statutory Auditorsin their report to the Shareholders and the Management's reply on the same is attached as Annexure-C.

Supplementary audit by CAG:

Supplementary audit conducted by C&AG under Section 143 (6) (a) of the Companies Act, 2013 of the Financial Statements
of the Company for the Financial Year 31" March, 2023. C&AG has given following comments vide letter date 08.09.2023
(Annexure-D) on the Financial Statements of ISPRL;

a. Presentation of Operation & Maintenance expenses:- Despite an assurance given by company during the audit for the
year 2021-22, the opinion of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAl) regarding the correct presentation of
offsetting of 0&M expenditure against the receivable / received amount from Government of India / MoP&NG, ADNOC
and HPCL was not sought by the company.

b. Accounting of Crude Oil:- Despite an assurance given by the company during the audit for the year 2021-22, the opinion
of the ICAlfor accounting of the same in the financial statements was not sought.

ISPRL will be taking adequate action in line with comments of CAG.
SECRETARIALAUDIT:

During the year, the Board of the Company had appointed M/s PG & Associates, Company Secretaries, 106, Mahagun
Morpheus, E-4, Sector-50, Noida-201301, Uttar Pradesh, as Secretarial Auditors of the Company to carry out Secretarial
Audit under the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules framed thereunder, for the financial
year 2022-23. The Report given by Secretarial Auditors is annexed to this report as (Annexure-E). The Auditors Report to the
Shareholders does not contain any qualification.
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COSTAUDIT

In terms of Section 148 of the Act, the Company is not required to have the audit of its cost records conducted by a Cost
Accountant.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT AND EXPORTS AND FOREIGN
EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO

The Company has commissioned Visakhapatnam, Mangalore and Padur caverns. The Company has no information to be
published regarding conservation of energy and technology absorption.

The Company has foreign currency receipt of Rs.1,454.56 lakhs during the year. Also, it has utilized foreign exchange for its
business activities aggregating to Rs. 4,782.39 lakhs during the period under review.

INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS

The Company has in place adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements during the period
under review.

PREVENTION OF SEXUALHARASSMENT AT WORKPLACE

The Company has a zero tolerance for sexual harassment of women at work place. The Company has also a policy for
Prohibition and Prevention of Sexual Harassment of Women at workplace and matters connected therewith or incidental
thereto covering all the aspects as contained in “The Sexual Harassment of Women at the Workplace (Prevention,
Prohibition & Redressal) Act, 2013. The Company has complied with provisions relating to the constitution of Internal
Complaints Committee under the said Act. During the year under review, the Company did not receive any complaint under
the said Act.

BOARD EVALUATION

The formal annual evaluation of the performance of the Board, its Committees and of individual directors has been carried
out as perthe Board Performance Evaluation Policy approved by the Board of ISPRL.

REPORTING OF FRAUDS BY AUDITORS

During the year under review, there have been no instances of fraud reported by Auditors under Section 143 (12) of the
CompaniesAct, 2013.

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS UNDER SECTION 186

No loan was given or investments were made by ISPRL during the year 2022-23. The Company has given BG of Rs 50,000/~ in
favor of ACCT, LGSTO-260 (GST Authorities) for obtaining KST/CST Registration Certificate from Commercial Tax Office. The
BG was given against FD pledged by Company amounting to Rs. 50,000/-.

The Company has pledged FD of Rs 1,45,000/- in favor of Deputy Director, DMG, Mangalore towards financial assurance
related to stone mines contract.

Bond Cum Legal undertaking has been given by ISPRL to Development Commissioner, MSEZ Mangalore amounting to
X100.80 crore with respect to benefits of exemptions, drawback, cess and concessions availed on account of goods and
services in terms of provisions of rule 25 of Special Economic Zones Rules 2006.
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

All related party transactions were limited to payment of managerial remuneration to CEO & MD, ISPRL, CFO, ISPRL and
Company Secretary, ISPRL, Reimbursement of expenses to OIDB, Grant receivable from OIDB, Expenditure incurred on
behalf of OIDB, Sale and transfer of Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE) to KMPs. The transactions with the related parties
areinthe ordinary course of business and are on Arm's Length basis and are not material in nature.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE PROVISIONS OF SECRETARIALSTANDARDS

The applicable Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India have been duly complied by the
Company.

DIRECTORS RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

As required under clause (c) of sub-section (3) Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013, your Board of Directors of the

Company hereby state and confirm:

(@) That in preparation of Annual Accounts for the financial year, the applicable Accounting Standards have been
followed along with the proper explanations relating to material departures;

(b)  That Directors have selected the accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company as on
31" March, 2023 and of the Profit and Loss of the Company for that year;

(c) That Directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for
preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

(d)  That the Directors have prepared the Accounts for the Financial Year ended 31% March, 2023 on a “going concern”
basis.

(e) That the Directors have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and

that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.
BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Your Board of Directors comprises of five part-time Non-Executive Directors and one full-time CEO & MD as on 31" March,

2023 details are given below:

Shri Pankaj Jain (DIN - 00675922), Secretary, MoP&NG — Chairman(w.e.f. 20.01.2022);
2. Shri Praveen Mal Khanooja (DIN - 09746472), Additional Secretary, MoP&NG-Director

(appointment w.e.f. 17.02.2023);
3.  Ms. Kamini Chauhan Ratan (DIN - 09831741), Additional Secretary & Financial Adviser, MOP&NG —

Director (appointment w.e.f. 21.12.2022);
4.  Ms. Esha Srivastava (DIN - 08504560), OSD (IC), MoP&NG — Director (w.e.f. 22.12.2021)

5.  Ms. Varsha Sinha (DIN - 09825811), Secretary, OIDB - Director (appointment w.e.f. 15.12.2022);
6.  ShriL. R.Jain (DIN - 08505199), CEO & MD (appointment w.e.f. 31.10.2022).
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Following Directors ceased to be Directors on the Board of ISPRL after 01* April, 2022:

Shri HPS Ahuja, CEO & MD (cessation 01.06.2022)

Shri Ajay Dashore, CEO & MD (Additional Charge) (w.e.f. 17.06.2022 till 30.10.2022)
Ms. Yatinder Prasad, JS& FA, MoP&NG- Director (w.e.f. 11.10.2022 till 21.11.2022)
Shri Gudey Srinivas, AS&FA, MoP&NG - Director (cessation 26.09.2022)

Shri Navneet Mohan Kothari, Secretary, OIDB - Director (cessation 30.11.2022)

A A
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Forand on behalf of the Board.

Sd/- sd/-
(EshaSrivastava) (L.R.Jain)
Director CEO & MD
(DIN# 08504560) (DIN#08505199)

Date: 26.09.2023

Place: New Delhi
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Annexure-|

Details of the meeting of the Board Committees and Board and number of meetings attended by the Directors:

AUDIT COMMITTEE:

The Audit Committee held two meetingin the financial year 2022-23.

The Director's attendance at the Audit Committee meeting held on 31" October, 2022 is as follows:

Sl. No. Members Designation No. of meetings attended
in FY 2022-23
1. Ms. Yatinder Prasad Chairman 1
2. Ms. Esha Srivastava Member 1
3. Shri L. R. Jain Member 1

The Director's attendances at the Audit Committee meeting held on 3" March, 2023 is as follows:

Sl. No. Members Designation No. of meetings attended
in FY 2022-23
1. Shri Parveen Mal Khanooja Chairman 1
2. Ms. Kamini Chauhan Ratan Member 1
3. Ms. Esha Srivastava Member 1
4, Shri L. R. Jain Member 1

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR) COMMITTEE:

No meeting held during the FY 2022-23.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS:

The Board of Directors of the Company held six meetings in the financial year 2022-23 as per the following details:

o v A W R

2" June, 2022

12" August, 2022
18" October, 2022
04" November, 2022
17" November, 2022
16" March, 2023
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Details of Directors attendance for the Board meetings attended in the FY 2022-23 as follows:

Sl. No. Name of Directors Designation | No. of Board Meetings
attended during the

Financial Year 2022-23
1. Shri Pankaj Jain (w.e.f. 20.01.2022) Chairman 6
2. Shri Parveen Mal Khanooja (w.e.f. 17.02.2023) Director 1
3. Ms. Kamini Chauhan Ratan (w.e.f. 21.12.2022) Director 1
4. Ms. Esha Srivastava (w.e.f. 22.12.2021) Director 5
5. Ms. Varsha Sinha (w.e.f. 15.12.2022) Director 1
6. Shri L. R. Jain (w.e.f. 31.10.2022) CEO & MD 3
7. Dr. N. M. Kothari (till 30.11.2022) Director 5
8. Ms. Yatinder Prasad (till 21.11.2022) Director 3
9. Shri Ajay Dashore (till 30.10.2022) CEO & MD 2
10. |Shri Gudey Srinivas (till 26.09.2022) Director Nil
11. |ShriH P S Ahuja (till 01.06.2022) CEO & MD Nil

ANNUAL REPORT 2022-23




@ INDIAN STRATEGIC PETROLEUM RESERVES LIMITED

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To,
The Members of
Indian Strategic Petroleum Reserves Limited

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Indian Strategic Petroleum Reserves Limited (“the
Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31" March, 2023, the Statement of Profit and Loss, the statement of
Changes in Equity and the statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid financial
statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a
true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards (“the IND AS”) specified under section 133 of the
Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and accounting principles generally acceptedin
India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31" March, 2023, its loss, changes in equity and its cash flows for the
yearended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the Act.
Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“the ICAI”) together with the ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act, and the Rules thereunder, and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that
the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Emphasis of Matter

1. We draw your attention to Note No. 31(ii)(a) to the financial statements wherein the Company has explained that
due to pending clarification / advise from the MoPNG against assurance given to C&AG during their supplementary
audit of FY 2020-21 for seeking clarifications from MoPNG on the matter and further assurance given by the
Company to C&AG during their supplementary audit of FY 2021-2022 for obtaining expert advisory opinion from
ICAl regarding treatment of accounting of value of crude oil quantity, crude oil transactions and its inventory in the
books of account and financial statements, however, the Company has preferred not to seek expert advisory
opinion from the ICAIL. The Company has not included the same in its books of account and financial statements for
the FY 2022-23 and has continued to disclose only the quantitative details of crude oil reserves in the Note as in
earlieryears.

2. We draw your attention to Note No. 31(ii)(b) to the financial statements wherein the Company has explained that
due to pending expert advisory opinion from the ICAl against assurance given to C&AG during their supplementary
audit for FY 2021-22 regarding treatment of accounting of O&M Grant for Phase-l and corresponding O&M
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expenses, the Company has continued to offset both on the face of the Statement of Profit & Loss and not
considered in the Cash Flow Statement, asin earlier years.

3. We noted from the minutes of 85" Board Meeting of the Company that the Thematic Audit of the Company was
carried out by C&RAG during the FY 2022-23 and a report was issued by C&AG. The Company explained to us that the
Thematic Audit Report is confidential and cannot be shared till the same is presented in the Parliament and the
financial impact of observations made therein, if any, shall be accounted for on receipt of the Thematic Audit Report
by the Company.

Our opinionis not modified in respect of the above matter.
Information other than the Financial Statements and Auditors' Report thereon

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the Board's Report but does not include the financial statements and our auditor's report
thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing
so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge
obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information;
we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to reportin this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act, with respect to the
preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance,
change in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the Ind AS and other accounting principles generally
accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also
includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of
the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of
appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring
the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial
statementthat give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Board of Directors is responsible for assessing the Company's ability to
continue as agoing concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis
of accounting unless the Board of Directors either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process.
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Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

* |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud
is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

* Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act we are also responsible for expressing our
opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls in place and the operating effectiveness
of such controls.

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by management.

* Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to
ceasetocontinue asagoingconcern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of
the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during
our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thoughtto bear on ourindependence, and where applicable, related safeguards.
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the Central Government

of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the Annexure - A, a statement on the
matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a)

(b)

()

(d)

(e)

(f)

(8)

(h)

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it
appears from our examination of those books.

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, Statement of Changes in Equity and Statement of
Cash Flow dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified under Section 133 of
the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31" March, 2023 taken on
record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31" March, 2023 from being
appointed as a directorin terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company
and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in Annexure - B.

Based on the information and explanations provided by the Company, we state that the remuneration
paid by the Company to its directors during the year under audit is in accordance with provisions of
section 197(16) of the Act.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Reportin accordance with Rule 11 of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us:

i The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its
financial statements - Refer Note 22.2(A) to the financial statements;

ii. The Company did not have any long term contracts including derivative contracts for which
there were any material foreseeable losses - Refer Note 31(xxxix) to the financial statements;

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred, to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company - Refer Note 31(xxxx) to the financial statements.

iv. (@) The Company's Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as
disclosed in the Note No. 31(xxx)(A) to the financial statements, no funds have been advanced
or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or
kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign
entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise,
that the Intermediary shall, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities
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identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”)
or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(b)  The Company's Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as
disclosed in the Note No. 31(xxx)(B) to the financial statements, no funds have been received by
the Company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”),
with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall,
directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any

guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(c) Based on the audit procedures performed that have been considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe
that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as provided under (a) and (b)

above, contain any material mis-statement.

V. To the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the Company has
not declared or paid any dividend during the year, accordingly the provisions of Rule 11(f) is not
applicable.

Vi. As proviso to rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is applicable for the Company

only with effect from 1% April, 2023, reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and
Auditors) Rules, 2014 is not applicable.

3. Asrequired by Section 143(5) of the Act and as per directions issued by Comptroller and Auditor General of India, we
report that:

SL.No.

Directions

Auditor's Replies

(i)

Whether the company has system in place to process
all the accounting transactions through IT system? If
yes, the implications of processing of accounting
transactions outside IT system on the integrity of the
accounts along with the financial implications, if any,
may be stated.

The Company has a system in place to process all the
accounting transactions through IT system except
Billing for sale of Crude Qil, Operating Income from
ADNOC & MRPL, and Rock sale, Fixed Assets Records,
Leave Records, Payroll, Grant Records for which there
is no implication of processing of accounting
transactions outside IT system on the integrity of the
accountsand nofinancial implications observed.

(i)

Whether there is any restructuring of an existing loan
or cases of waiver/write off of debts / loans/ interest
etc. made by a lender to the company due to the
company's inability to repay the loan? If yes, the
financial impact may be stated. Whether such cases
are properly accounted for? (in case, lender is a
Government company, then this direction is also
applicable for statutory auditor of lender company).

There is no case of restructuring of an existing loan or
cases of waiver/write off of debts /loans/interest etc.
made by a lender to the Company due to the
Company'sinability to repay the loan.

ANNUAL REPORT 2022-23




INDIAN STRATEGIC PETROLEUM RESERVES LIMITED

IR
ISPRL
S.No. Directions Auditor's Replies
(iii) | Whether funds (grant/subsidy etc.) received/ | Funds (grant/subsidy etc.) received/ receivable for
receivable for specific schemes from Central/ State | specific schemes from Central/ State Government of
Government of its agencies were properly accounted | its agencies are properly accounted for/ utilized as
for/ utilized as per its term and conditions? List the | pertheirtermsand conditions.
cases of deviation.
for Prasad Azad & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Firm's Registration Number: 001009N

Sd/-

(K. M. Azad)

Partner

Membership No. 005125
UDIN: 23005125BHANKS2483

Place: New Delhi
Date: 11" July, 2023
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"Annexure A" To The Independent Auditors' Report

[Annexure-A referred to in paragraph 1 under 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements' of our Report of
even date to the Members of Indian Strategic Petroleum Reserves Limited, on the financial statements of the Company
for the year ended 31" March, 2023]

On the basis of such checks as we considered appropriate and according to the information and explanations given to us
during the course of our audit, we report that:

i)(a) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and
situation of Property, Plant and Equipment.

(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of Intangible Assets (ROU for Pipelines).

(b)  According to the information and explanations given to us, the Property, Plant and Equipment have been
physically verified by the management in a phased manner through external agency at the Visakhapatnam unit
and internally at Mangalore & Padur units and Head Office, which in our opinion is reasonable having regard to
the size of the Company and nature of its Property, Plant and Equipment. As per information and explanations
given to us, no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

(c) The title deeds of the immovable properties (Right of Use assets) disclosed in Note No. 2 to the Financial
statements are held in the name of the Company except in case of below [Refer Note No. 31(xix) to the financial
statements]:

Special Economic
Zone (104.73
acres)

Mangalore SEZ
Limited and the
Company dated

land to 26"
January, 2060.
Date of Allotment

Description of Gross carrying Held in name of Whether Period held - Reason for not
Property value promoter, indicate range, being held in
(Rs. In Lac) director or their where name of
relative or appropriate company
employee
Right of Use - Rs. 8492.50 Lacs | Lease Agreement No Lease from the As informed to
Land at entered into date of us, the Company
Mangalore between possession of the | is following with

the Mangalore
SEZ Limited for
registration of

7" March,2017 available in lease deed.
not registered in record for 100.02
the name of the acres is

Company.

23.11.2009 and
for 4.71 acres is
11.04.2018.
However,
document for
date of taking of
possession is not
in company
record.
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(d)

(e)

ii)(a)

(b)

ISPRL

According to the information, explanations and management representations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment
(including Right of Use assets) during the year.

According to the information, explanations and management representations given to us, no proceedings have
been initiated during the year or are pending against the Company as at 31" March, 2023 for holding any benami
property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and Rules made thereunder.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the management has conducted physical verification
of Crude Oil inventory held on behalf of Government of India at Cavern B and ADNOC at Cavern A at Mangalore
and on behalf of Government of India at Visakhapatnam and Padur at reasonable intervals through independent
surveyors. In our opinion, having regard to the nature and location of the Crude, the coverage and procedure of
such verification is considered appropriate.

Accordingto the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not been sanctioned working capital
limits in excess of five crore rupees, in aggregate, at any point of time of the year, from banks or financial
institutions on the basis of security of current assets. Accordingly, the provisions of this clause of the Order are
not applicable tothe Company.

iii) (a) to (f) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not made investments in,

v)

vi)

vii) (a)
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provided any guarantee or security or granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured or
unsecured, to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties. Accordingly, provisions of this
clause of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not granted any loans, made
investments or provided guarantees or security which required compliance of the provisions of section 185 and
186 of the Act. Accordingly, provisions of this clause of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not accepted any deposits or
amounts which are deemed to be deposits, during the year to which the directives issued by the Reserve Bank of
India and provisions of Sections 73 to 76 or any other relevant provision of the Act are applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Central Government of India has not specified the
maintenance of cost records under sub-section (1) of section 148 of the Act. Accordingly, provisions of this clause
of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

According to the records of the Company examined and information, explanations and management
representations given to us, the Company has generally been regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues
including Goods and Services Tax, provident fund, employees' state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service
tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and any other statutory dues to the appropriate
authorities. There are no arrears of undisputed outstanding statutory dues as on the last day of the financial
year fora period of more than six months from the date they became payable, except as stated below:
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Statement of Arrears of Statutory Dues Outstanding for More Than Six Months
SI. |Name of the| Nature of | Amount Period to Due Date Date of Remarks, if any
No. Statute dues (Rs.In Lac) | which the Payment
amount
relates
1. | Income Tax | Demand on 117.84 FY 2015-16 |Remarks: Company has already paid the demand
Act, 1961 [ Assessment (AY 2016-17) | under Vivad se Vishwas Scheme during the FY 2020-
made U/s 2021, though adjustment is pending by the Tax
143(3) Department since appearing as outstanding on the
income tax portal.
2. | Income Tax | Demand on 31.70 FY 2016-17 |Remarks: Company has already paid the demand
Act, 1961 [ Assessment (AY 2017-18) | under Vivad se Vishwas Scheme during the FY 2020-
made U/s 2021, though adjustment is pending by the Tax
143(3) Department since appearing as outstanding on the
income tax portal.

(b) According to the information, explanations and management representations given to us, there were no
statutory dues including Goods and Services Tax, provident fund, employees' state insurance, income- tax,
sales-tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and any other statutory dues which
have not been deposited on account of any disputes except as stated below:

Statement of Disputed Dues
SI. Name of the Nature of Amount Period to Forum where Remarks, if
No. Statute dues (Rs. In Lac) which the dispute is any
amount pending
relates
1 Andhra Royalty 11,795.03 Upto Directorate of
Pradesh 31.03.2018 Mines and
Minor Mineral Geology, -
Concession Andhra
Rules 1996 Pradesh
2 Income Tax Demand on 0.29 FY 2017-18 Under appeal
Act, 1961 Assessment with
made U/s 154 Commissioner -
of Income Tax
(Appeals)
3 Karnataka Property Tax 821.68 From 2015-16 Chief
Panchayat Raj to0 2022-23 Executive
Act, 1993 Officer, Zilla -
Panchayat,
Udupi
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viii)

ix)

x)

Xi)

Xii)

xiii)

(a)

ISPRL

As per the information, explanations and management representations given to us, there were no
transactions, not recorded in the books of account which have been surrendered or disclosed asincome during
theyearinthetaxassessments underthe Income Tax Act, 1961.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not defaulted in the repayment
of loans or other borrowings or in the payment of interest thereon to any lender. Accordingly, provisions of this
clause of the Orderis not applicable to the Company.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our audit procedures, the

Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or any other lender.

(c) According to the records of the Company examined and information, explanations and management

(d)

(e)

(f)

(a)

(b)

(a)

(b)

(c)

representations given to us, the Company has not taken any term loans during the year. Accordingly, provisions
of this clause of the Orderis not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and the procedures performed by us and on an
overall examination of the financial statements of the company, we report that no funds have been raised on
short-term basis during the year by the Company. Accordingly, provisions of this clause of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company does not have any subsidiaries,
associate or joint ventures. Accordingly, provisions of this clause of the Orderis not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not raised any loans during the
year. Accordingly, provisions of this clause of the Orderis not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and as per records examined, the Company has not
raised moneys by way of Initial public offer or further public offer (including debt instruments) during the year.
Accordingly, the provisions of this clause of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and as per records examined, the Company has not
made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or convertible debentures (fully, partially or
optionally convertible) during the year. Accordingly, the provisions of this clause of the Order is not applicable
tothe Company.

During the course of our audit, examination of the books and records of the Company carried out in
accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India and to the best of our knowledge & belief
and according to the information, explanation and management representations given to us, no fraud by the
Company or any fraud on the Company has been noticed or reported during the year.

No report under sub section (12) of section 143 of the Act in Form ADT - 4 has been filed with the Central
Government by us.

According to the information, explanations and management representations given to us, there are no whistle
blower complaints received during the year by the Company.

(a) (b) & (c) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a Nidhi Company.

Accordingly, the provisions of this clause of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

According to the information, explanations and management representations given to us, transactions with
related parties are in compliance with Section 177 and 188 of the Act, where applicable, and details of all
related party transactions have been disclosed in the Financial Statements as required by the applicable Indian
Accounting Standards [refer Note 23 to the financial statements].

xiv) (a) According to the records of the Company examined and information, explanations and management

representations given to us, the Company has an internal audit system, however, its scope needs to be
enlarged to make it commensurate with the size and nature of Company's business.
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(b) We have considered the internal audit reports of the Company issued till date and made available to us, for the
year under audit.

Xv) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has entered into non-cash
transactions with its Ex-CEO&MD and one Ex-Director during the year, by transferring of one I-pad to each of
them costing Rs. 1.73 lacs [having book value (WDV) of Rs. 1.44 lacs] free of cost, for which the provisions of
section 192 of the Act have not been complied with.

xvi) (a) Accordingtotheinformationand explanations givento us, the Companyis not required to be registered under
section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act,1934. Accordingly, the provisions of this clause of the Order is
not applicable tothe Company.

(b) According to the records of the Company examined and information, explanations and management
representations given to us, the Company has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance
activities. Accordingly, the provisions of this clause of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(c) & (d) According to the records of the Company examined and information, explanations and management
representations given to us, the Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the
regulations made by the Reserve Bank of India nor the Group has any CIC as part of the Group. Accordingly, the
provisions of these clauses of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

Xvii) The Company has not incurred cash losses during the financial year and the immediately preceding financial
year.
xviii) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors of the Company during the year. Accordingly, the

provisions of this clause of the Orderis not applicable to the Company.

Xix) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and
expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information
accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans and
based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention,
which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that the
Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due
within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to
the future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts upto the date of
the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a
period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company asand when they fall due.

xx) (a) & (b) According to the information and explanations given to us, the provisions of Section 135 of the Act for
Corporate Social Responsibility are not applicable to the Company during the year. Accordingly, the provisions
of this clause of the Orderis not applicable to the Company.

xxi) Reporting under this clause of the Order is not applicable to the Company.
forPrasad Azad & Co.

Chartered Accountants

Firm's Registration Number: 001009N
Sd/-

(K. M. Azad)

Partner

Membership No.005125

UDIN: 23005125BHANKS2483

Place: New Delhi

Date: 11" July, 2023
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“Annexure - B” to the Independent Auditors' Report of even date on the Financial Statements of Indian Strategic
Petroleum Reserves Limited for the year ended 31" March, 2023

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013
(“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Indian Strategic Petroleum Reserves
Limited (“the Company”) as of 31" March, 2023 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the Company
forthe year ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on “the
internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India” (“ICAI”). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient
conduct of its business, including adherence to Company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of
reliable financialinformation, as required under the Act.

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial reporting based on
our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAl and deemed to be prescribed
under section 143 (10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an
audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards
and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and
maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our auditinvolves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls
system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial
reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk
that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control
based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the
risk of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our qualified
audit opinion onthe Company's internal financial controls system over to financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A Company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A Company's internal financial control over financial
reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable
detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in
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accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the Company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the Company's assets that
could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility of
collusion orimproper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not
be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future
periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate
because of changesin conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Qualified Opinion

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our audit, the following material weakness
have been identified as at 31° March, 2023:

(i) The Company has not raised Tax Invoices within the time prescribed by the statutory authorities;

(ii) There is no policy for sale of assets, granting advances to employees, for employee re-imbursements, write off/
write back of Property, Plant & Equipment and old balances;

(iii) Some gaps were reported in testing carried out by the Company (through a consultant) which need to be
addressed by the Company.

A “material weakness” is a deficiency or a combination of deficiencies in the internal control over financial reporting;
such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of a company's annual financial statements will
not be prevented or detected on timely basis.

In our opinion, except for the possible effects of the material weakness described above on the achievement of the
objectives of the control criteria, the Company has in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls
system over financial reporting with reference to these financial statements and such internal financial controls over
financial reporting were operating effectively as at 31" March, 2023, based on the internal control over financial
reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India.

We have considered the material weakness identified and reported above in determining the nature, timing and extent
of audit test applied in our audit of the 31" March, 2023 financial statements of the Company and this material weakness
does not affect our opinion on the financial statements of the Company.

for Prasad Azad & Co.

Chartered Accountants

Firm's Registration Number: 001009N

Sd/-
(K. M. Azad)
Partner

Membership No. 005125
UDIN: 23005125BHANKS2483

Place: New Delhi
Date: 11" July, 2023
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Annexure-C
COMMENTS OF THE COMPTROLLER AND AUDITOR GENERAL OF INDIA UNDER SECTION 143(6) (b) OF THE COMPANIES
ACT, 2013 ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF INDIAN STRATEGIC PETROLEUM RESERVES LIMITED FOR THE YEAR
ENDED 31" MARCH, 2023

The preparation of financial statements of Indian Strategic Petroleum Reserves Limited for the year ended 31
March 2023 in accordance with the financial reporting framework prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013 (Act) is the
responsibility of the management of the company. The statutory auditor appointed by the Comptroller and Auditor
General of India under section 139 (5) of the Act is responsible for expressing opinion on the financial statements under
section 143 of the Act based on independent audit in accordance with the standards on auditing prescribed under
section 143(10) of the Act. This is stated to have been done by them vide their Audit Report dated 11" July, 2023.

I, on behalf of the Comptroller and Auditor General of India, have conducted a supplementary audit of the
financial statements of Indian Strategic Petroleum Reserves Limited for the year ended 31" March, 2023 under section
143(6)(a) of the Act. This supplementary audit has been carried out independently without access to the working papers
of the statutory auditors and is limited primarily to inquiries of the statutory auditors and company personnel and a
selective examination of some of the accounting records.

Based on my supplementary audit, | would like to highlight the following significant matters under section
143(6)(b) of the Act which have come to my attention and which in my view are necessary for enabling a better
understanding of the financial statements and the related audit report.

A. Commentson Profitability
Statement of Profit & Loss for the year ended 31" March, 2023
Expenses
Operation & Maintenance Expenses: ¥ 13,693.03 lakh

The expenditure of ¥13,693.03 lakh incurred by the Company towards Operation and Maintenance (O&M) expenses
has been offset against the recoverable/recovered expenses from Government of India/MoP&NG, ADNOC and/or HPCL,
in contravention to Section 2(13) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Para 32 of Ind AS 01 as well as Memorandum of
Association of ISPRL.

Despite an assurance given by the Company during the audit for the year 2021-22, the opinion of the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) regarding the correct presentation of offsetting of 0& M expenditure against the
receivable/received amount from Government of India/MoPNG, ADNOC and HPCL was not sought by the Company.

B. Commentson Financial Position
Balance Sheet as at 31" March, 2023
Asset
Current Assets: I 5113.85 lakh

ISPRLis making transactions pertaining to procurement and sale of crude oil on behalf of Government of India. ISPRL has
disclosed in notes to accounts the value of 3014333.38 MT of crude oil as ¥5,32,397.96 lakh. Accounting for the
procurement/sale and inventory of crude oil has not been done by ISPRL.
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Despite an assurance given by the Company during the audit for the year 2021-22, the opinion of the ICAIl for accounting
of the samein the financial statements was not sought.

For and on behalf of the

Comptroller & Auditor General of India

sd/-
C. M. Sane
Director General of Commercial Audit, Mumbai
Place: Mumbai

Date: 08" September, 2023
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FORM MR-3 Annexure-E
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31.03.2023
[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No.9 of the Companies (Appointment and
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,

The Members,

Indian Strategic Petroleum Reserves Limited
301 World Trade Centre,

3"Floor, Babar Road,

New Delhi-110001.

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to good
corporate practices by Indian Strategic Petroleum Reserves Limited (hereinafter called “the company”) bearing CIN
No.U63023DL2004G0I1126973, Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for
evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing our opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of the Company's books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records
maintained by the company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized
representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, we hereby report that in our opinion, the Company has, during
the audit period covering the financial year ended on 31" March, 2023, complied with the statutory provisions listed
hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in
the mannerand subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the
Company for the financial year ended on 31% March, 2023 according to the provisions of:

(i)  TheCompaniesAct, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder;
(ii)  TheSecurities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 ('SCRA') and the rules made thereunder;
(iii)  The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder;

(iv)  Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to the extent of Foreign
Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial Borrowings; Not Applicable

(v)  Thefollowing Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 :-

(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations,
2011: NotApplicable

(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 1992: Not
Applicable

(c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2018: Not Applicable

(d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits and Sweat Equity) Regulations,
2021: Not Applicable
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(e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) Regulations,
1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client;

(f) TheSecurities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2021: Not Applicable

(g) TheSecurities and Exchange Board of India (Buy-back of Securities) Regulations, 2018: Not Applicable

(vi) Other applicable laws :

i)  ThePetroleum Act, 1934;

ii) Indian Explosives Act, 1884

iii) Sexual harassment of women at workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal), Act 2013
(vii) Environmental Laws:

i) The Water (Prevention and Control of pollution) Act, 1974

ii)  TheAir(Prevention and Control of pollution) Act, 1981

iii) TheEnvironment (Protection)Act, 1986

iv) Hazardousand Other Wastes (Management and Transboundary Movement) Rules, 2016

We have relied on the representations made by the Company and its officers for systems and mechanism formed by the
Company for compliances under other applicable laws and Regulations to the Company.

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:
(i) Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India.
(ii) The Listing Agreements entered into by the Company with Stock Exchange(s) : Not Applicable

During the period under review the company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines,
Standards, etc. mentioned above subject to:

o The Company received a show cause notice dated 17.05.2022 from the Deputy Registrar of Companies, NCT of
Delhiand Haryana, for contravention of Section 149(1) of the Companies Act, 2013. The Company filed its reply on
10" June, 2022 with all the relevant documents. No further communication has been received from the concerned
authorityinthisregard.

We further report that

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors and Non-Executive
Directors. The changes in the composition of the Board of Directors that took place during the period under review were
carried outin compliance with the provisions of the Act.

During the year under review, some Board Meetings and Committee Meetings were called at shorter notice, agenda
alongwith detailed notes on agenda were sent at shorter notice and consent was taken from the directors. A system
exists for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for
meaningful participation at the meeting.

As per the minutes maintained by the Company for the Board/Committee meetings all the decisions have been carried
out by majority, while the dissenting members’ views are captured and recorded as part of the Minutes.
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We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company commensurate with the size and
operations of the company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

We further report that during the audit period the company has not undertaken events/action having a major bearing on
the company's affairs in pursuance of the above referred laws, rules, regulations, guidelines, standards, etc.

FOR PG & ASSOCIATES
(Company Secretaries)

Sd/-
CS PREETI GROVER
(Proprietor)
FCS: 5862, C.P. No.: 6065
PEER REVIEW NO.: 772/2020
Place : Noida
Date: 18.05.2023
UDIN : F0O05862E000330230
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To, Annexure-A

The Members,

Indian Strategic Petroleum Reserves Limited
301, World Trade Centre

3“Floor, Babar Road

New Delhi-110001.

Auditor's Responsibility

Based on audit, our responsibility is to express an opinion on the compliance with the applicable laws and maintenance
of records by the Company. We conducted our audit in accordance with the auditing standards CSAS 1 to CSAS 4 (“CSAS”)
prescribed by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India (“ICSI”). These standards require that the auditor complies
with statutory and regulatory requirements and plans and performs the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
compliance with applicable laws and maintenance of records.

Due to the inherent limitations of an audit including internal, financial and operating controls, there is an unavoidable
risk that some misstatements or material non-compliances may not be detected, even though the audit is properly
planned and performedinaccordance with the CSAS. Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

1. Maintenance of Secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the Company. Our responsibility is to
express an opinion on the secretarial records based on our audit.

2. We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about the
correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The verification was done on test basis to ensure that
correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. We believe that the processes and practices, we followed provide
areasonable basis for our opinion.

3. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of Accounts of the
company and for which we relied on the report of statutory auditor.

4, Where ever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the compliance of laws, rules and
regulations and happening of events etc.

5. The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards is the
responsibility of management. Our examination was limited to the verification of procedures on test basis.

6. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the company nor of the efficacy or
effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the company.

FOR PG & ASSOCIATES
(Company Secretaries)

Sd/-
CS PREETI GROVER
(Proprietor)
FCS: 5862, C.P. No.: 6065
PEER REVIEW NO.: 772/2020
Place: Noida
Date: 18.05.2023
UDIN : FO05862E000330230
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Annexure-B

List of documents verified

10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

Annual Report for the financial year ending on 31% March, 2022.

Website of the Company for compliances under the Companies Act, 2013 wherever applicable.

Minutes of the meetings of the Board of Directors and Audit Committee of the Board with their respective
attendance registers, held during the financial year under audit.

Minutes of General Body Meeting held during the financial year under the audit.

Statutory Registers viz.

- Register of Directors & KMP

- Register of transfers

- Register of members

Notice and Agenda papers submitted to all the directors/members for the Board Meetings and Committee
Meetings.

Declarations/Intimation received from the Directors of the Company pursuant to the provisions of section 184
and 164(2) of the Companies Act, 2013.

All e-forms filed by the Company, from 1% April, 2022 to 31" March, 2023, under applicable provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 and attachments thereof during the financial year under audit.

License to store LPG gasin pressure vessels for Mangalore, Visakhapatnam and Padur valid upto 30.09.2027.
License to store Liquid Nitrogen gas in pressure vessels for Mangalore and Padur valid upto 30.09.2027 and for
Visakhapatnam valid upto 30.09.2026.

License to store HSD for Mangalore valid upto 31.12.2027, for Padur valid upto 31.12.2025 and for Visakhapatnam
validupto31.12.2024

Consent for discharge of effluents under section 25(4) of Water (Prevention and Control of Pollution) Act, 1974
and emission under section 21 of Air (Prevention and Control of Pollution) Act, 1981 for Mangalore valid till
30.06.2026, Visakhapatnam valid till 31.10.2025.

CCOE Approval for storage of crude for Visakhapatnam valid upto 31.12.2023, for Padur 31.12.2025 and for
Mangalore valid upto 31.12.2025.

Factories Licence for Visakhapatnam valid until cancelled, for Padur valid upto 31.12.2029 and for Mangalore
31.12.2027.

Certificate of Yearly Test of Safety Relief Valve, Internal Valve, Excess Flow Valve issued under Rule 18 of Staticand
Mobile Pressure Vessels (Unfired) Rules, 2016 [SMPV(U) Rules, 2016].

Constitution of IC under the Sexual Harassment of Women at the workplace (Prohibition, Prevention and

Redressal) Act, 2013 and Annual Return filed under the Act for the period 1.1.2022-31.12.2022.
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INDIAN STRATEGIC PETROLEUM RESERVES LIMITED

BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31° MARCH, 2023

CIN :- U63023DL2004G0I126973

Sd/-

(K M Azad)

Partner

Membership No. 005125
Place - New Delhi

Date - 11 July, 2023

Firm Registration Number : 001009N

DIN : 08504560

Sd/-

(Gopeshwar Kumar Singh)
CFO

Place - New Delhi

Date - 03.07.2023

T in lakhs Zin lakhs
Particulars Note | As At 31" March, As At 31" March,
No. 2023 2022
ASSETS
(1) | Non-Current Assets
(A) Property, Plant & Equipment 2 308,106.69 317,996.26
(B) Capital Work in Progress 2.1 - -
(C) Other Intangible Assets 2.2 7,150.39 7,100.95
(D) Financial Assets
(i) Loans 3.1 - -
(ii) Other Financial Assets 3.2 18,611.77 26,010.07
(E) Income tax Assets 4 986.50 900.39
(F) Other Non Current Assets 5 10,294.62 10,197.49
Sub Total 345,149.97 362,205.16
(I | Current Assets
(A) Financial Assets
(i) Cash and cash equivalents 6 1,883.76 2,921.59
(ii) Bank Balances other than above 7 ) )
(iii) Other Financial Assets 8 1,432.48 4,523.08
(B) Other Current Assets 9 1,797.61 2,865.62
Sub Total 5,113.85 10,310.29
TOTAL ASSETS 350,263.82 372,515.45
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
(1) | Equity
(A) Equity Share Capital 10 379,005.47 379,005.47
(B) Other Equity 11 (63,168.45) (53,467.06)
Sub Total 315,837.02 325,538.41
(| LIABILITIES
Non-Current Liabilities
(A) Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings - -
(ia)Lease Liabilities 12.1 554.71 558.72
(ii)Other Financial Liabilities 12.2 17.37 7.73
(B) Provisions 12.3 - 16.42
Sub Total 572.08 582.87
()| Current Liabilities
(A) Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings 13.1 - -
(ia) Lease Liabilities 13.2 3.77 3.49
(i) Trade Payables
(a) Total outstanding dues to Micro Enterprises 14 204.41 224.87
and Small Enterprises
(b) Total outstanding dues of creditors other 14 1,687.20 1,300.63
than Micro Enterprises and Small Enterprises
(iii) Other Financial Liabilities 15 23,793.90 34,333.24
(B) Provisions 16.1 - 0.39
(C) Other Current Liabilities 16.2 8,165.44 10,531.55
Sub Total 33,854.72 46,394.17
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 350,263.82 372,515.45
Significant Accounting Policies 1
Notes on Accounts 2- 31 (xxxxviii)
Notes referred above form an integral part of the Financial Statements For and on behalf of Board of Directors
As per our report of even date attached
sd/- sd/-
For Prasad Azad & Co. (Esha Srivastava) (Lakhpat Rai Jain)
Chartered Accountants Director CEO & MD

DIN : 08505199

Sd/-
(Shilpi Mohanty)
Company Secretary
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INDIAN STRATEGIC PETROLEUM RESERVES LIMITED
STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31" MARCH, 2023
CIN :- U63023DL2004GO0I1126973
T in lakhs T inlakhs
For the Year Ended For the Year Ended
Particulars Note 31" March, 2023 31" March, 2022
No.
Revenue
Revenue from Operations 171 205.81 -
Other Income 17.2 384.02 896.47
Total Income 589.83 896.47
EXPENSES
Depreciation and Amortisation Expenses 18 9,928.03 9,981.77
Finance Cost (Ind AS 116) 19 11.38 11.59
Other Expenses
- - Operation & Maintenance Expenses 20.1| 13,693.03 14,753.98
Less:- Operation & Maintenance Expenses Recoverable/Recovered
from GOI 13,693.03 -| 14,753.98 -
-- Expenses for Phase Il Project 314.15 832.78
- - Miscellaneous Expenses 20.2 37.65 1.66
Total Expenses 10,291.21 10,827.80
Loss Before Tax (9,701.38) (9,931.33)
Tax Expense:
Current Tax - -
Income Tax Paid for Earlier Years (Under Vsv Scheme) - -
Less:- Recovered/Recoverable from GOI/MOP&NG - _
Deferred Tax _ _
Total Tax Expanses _ i
Loss for the year (9,701.38) (9,931.33)
Other Comprehensive Income - -
Total Comprehensive Income for the year (Comprising Profit/(Loss) (9,701.38) (9,031.33)
and Other Comprehensive Income for the year) ’ ’ R
Earning per Equity Share (Par Value of Rs.10/ each) 21
(i) Basic (0.26) (0.26)
(ii) Diluted (0.26) (0.26)
Significant Accounting Policies 1
Notes on Accounts 2- 31 (xxxxviii)
Notes referred above form an integral part of the Financial Statements
As per our report of even date attached For and on behalf of Board of Directors
For Prasad Azad & Co. Sd/- Sd/-
Chartered Accountants (Esha Srivastava) (Lakhpat Rai Jain)
Firm Registration Number : 001009N Director CEO & MD
DIN : 08504560 DIN : 08505199
Sd/-
(KM Azad)
Partner Sd/- Sd/-
Membership No. 005125 (Gopeshwar Kumar Singh) (Shilpi Mohanty)
Place - New Delhi CFO Company Secretary
Date - 11 July, 2023
Place - New Delhi
Date - 03.07.2023
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INDIAN STRATEGIC PETROLEUM RESERVES LIMITED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31° MARCH, 2023
CIN :- U63023DL2004G0I1126973
< in lakhs < in lakhs
Sr. . For the year ended For the year ended
No. Particulars 31" March, 2023 31" March, 2022
(A) CASH FLOW STATEMENT FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net Profit / (Loss) Before Taxation (9,701.38) (9,931.33)
Adjustments for :-
Depreciation and Amortization Expenses 9,943.14 9,996.84
Loss on Write Off of Property, Plant & Equipment 2.08 -
Property, Plant & Equipment charged to expense / Decap 21.00 44.47
Profit on Sale of Property, Plant & Equipment (0.01) -
Finance Cost (Ind AS 116) 11.38 11.59
Interest Income (63.55) (61.37)
Operating Profit Before Working Capital Changes 212.66 60.20
Adjustments for :-
(Increase)/ Decrease in Financial & Other Assets 3,647.82 (8,513.89)
Increase/(Decrease) in Liabilities & Provisions (12,232.34) 3,590.92
Net Increase/(Decrease) in Working Capital (8,584.52) (4,922.97)
Cash Generated from Operations (8,371.86) (4,862.77)
Direct Taxes Paid (Net of Refunds ) (86.11) (730.70)
Total Cash Flow from Operation (A) (8,457.97) (5,593.47)
(B) CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of Property, Plant and Equipment (127.86) (28.47)
Consideration on Sale of Property, Plant and Equipment 1.74 -
Investment in Fixed Deposit (More than 3 months) 6,844.17 (12,186.79)
Interest Received 63.55 61.37
Net Cash Used in Investing Activities (B) 6,781.60 (12,153.89)
(Q) CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from Issue of Equity Share Capital - 1,418.00
Proceeds / (Repayment)from Borrowings - (9,816.17)
Proceeds from Grants for Phase Il from GOl / MoPNG - 21,000.00
Proceeds from Grants (Net of Refund) for Phase Il from OIDB - 803.41
Amortization of Grant from OIDB (314.15) (832.78)
Stamp Duty on Issue of Equtiy Share Capital - (0.07)
Interest Cost (Ind AS 116) (11.38) (11.59)
Lease Liabilities (Ind AS 116) (3.73) (3.23)
Net Cash Flow From Financing Activities (C) (329.26) 12,557.57
(D) Net Increase/ Decrease in Cash & Cash Equivalents (A+B+C) (2,005.63) (5,189.79)
Opening Balance of Cash & Cash Equivalents 2,254.39 7,444.18
Closing Balance of Cash & Cash Equivalents 248.76 2,254.39
Components of Cash & Cash Equivalents
Balance with Banks
--In Current Accounts 248.76 2,252.84
--In Deposit Accounts
-- Fixed Deposits (With Original Maturity upto 3 months) = -
--Cash on Hand - 1.55
Total 248.76 2,254.39

ote :
1 The above Statement of Cash Flows has been prepared under the "Indirect Method" as set out in IND AS 7 on Statement of Cash Flows.

Significant Accounting Policies

Notes on Accounts

Notes referred above form an integral part of the Financial Statements
As per our report of even date attached

For Prasad Azad & Co.

Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration Number : 001009N
Sd/-

(KM Azad)

Partner

Membership No. 005125

Place - New Delhi

Date - 11 July, 2023

1
2- 31 (xxxxviii)

For and on behalf of Board of Directors

Sd/-

(Esha Srivastava)

Director

DIN : 08504560

Sd/-

(Gopeshwar Kumar Singh)

CFO
Place - New Delhi

Date - 03.07.2023

Sd/-

(Lakhpat Rai Jain)
CEO & MD

DIN : 08505199
Sd/-

(Shilpi Mohanty)
Company Secretary
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INDIAN STRATEGIC PETROLEUM RESERVES LIMITED

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31" MARCH, 2023

a. Equity share capital T inlakhs T inlakhs
As at As at
Particulars 31" March, 2023 31" March, 2022
Balance at the beginning of the reporting period (A) 379,005.47 377,587.47
Changes in Equity Share Capital due to prior period errors (B) - -
Reinstated Balance at the Beginning of the reporting period (C) = (A) + (B) 379,005.47 377,587.47
Changes in equity share capital during the year (D) - 1,418.00
Balance at the end of the reporting period (E) = (C) + (D) 379,005.47 379,005.47
b. Other Equity T inlakhs T inlakhs
As at As at
Particulars 31" March, 2023 31" March, 2022
Retained earnings
Balance at the beginning of the reporting period (A) (53,467.07) (43,535.66)
Changes in accounting policy or prior period errors (B) - -
Reinstated balance at the beginning of the reporting period (C ) = (A) + (B) (53,467.07) (43,535.66)
Transferred to Retained Earnings (D) (9,701.38) (9,931.33)
Stamp Duty on Share Issued (E ) = (0.07)
Other comprehensive income for the year (F) - -
Balance at the end of the reporting period (G) = (C) + (D) + (E ) + (F) (63,168.45) (53,467.06)

For Prasad Azad & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number : 001009N

Sd/-

(K M Azad)

Partner

Membership No. 005125

Place - New Delhi
Date - 11 July, 2023

For and on behalf of Board of Directors

Sd/-

(Esha Srivastava)

Director

DIN : 08504560

Sd/-

(Gopeshwar Kumar Singh)
CFO

Place - New Delhi
Date - 03.07.2023

Sd/-

(Lakhpat Rai Jain)
CEO & MD

DIN : 08505199
Sd/-

(Shilpi Mohanty)
Company Secretary
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INDIAN STRATEGIC PETROLEUM RESERVES LIMITED

Notes Forming Part of The Financial Statements

Note No. 2.1 : Capital Work in Progress Z inlakhs Z inlakhs
Particulars As at As at
31* March, 2023 | 31" March, 2022
Total 5 -

Note No. 2.2 : Other Intangible Assets

Intangible Assets (ROU for Pipeline) < inlakhs < in lakhs
Particulars As at As at
31" March, 2023 31" March, 2022

Gross Block as on beginning of the year 7,100.95 7,100.95
Addition/Transfer from other assets during the year 49.44 -
Disposal/Deductions/Transfer/Reclassification - -
Gross Block as at end of the year 7,150.39 7,100.95
Amortization as at beginning of the year - -
Amortization during the year - -
Disposal/Deductions/Transfer/Reclassification - -
Amortization as at end of the year - -
Net Block 7,150.39 7,100.95

Note:- ROU for pipeline are acquired on perpetual basis, hence no amortization is being done.
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Notes Forming Part of The Financial Statements

Note No. 3.1 Loans

< in lakhs < in lakhs
Particulars As at 31" March, As at 31" March,
2023 2022
TOTAL - -
Note No. 3.2 Other Financial Assets - -
< in lakhs < in lakhs
Particulars As at 31% March, As at 31" March,
2023 2022
Security Deposits 689.80 690.05
Recoverable from Entry Tax, Karnataka (against BG Encashment) 74.64 74.64
Fixed Deposits (With Original Maturity more than one year)*
[Includes accrued interest of X 422.45 Lakhs 12,432.97 20,244.92
(Previous Year X 509.85 Lakhs for FY 2021-22)]
* Refer Note No. 31 (xvi) for details of pledged deposits
Deposit with High Court Delhi for Arbitration Case of HCC 5,000.46 5,000.46
[Refer Note No. 31(xxxxii)]
Deposit with Chief Executive Officer, Udupi 410.84 -
Advance to Employees 3.06 -
TOTAL 18,611.77 26,010.07
Note No. 4 Income Tax Assets Z in lakhs Z in lakhs
. As at 31" March, As at 31° March,
Particulars 2023 2022
Income Tax Assets (AY. 2018-19) 14.16 14.16
Income Tax Assets (A.Y. 2019-20) 15.71 15.71
Income Tax Assets (AY. 2020-21) 38.13 38.13
Income Tax Assets (AY. 2021-22) 104.01 104.01
Income Tax Assets (AY. 2022-23) 728.39 728.38
Income Tax Assets (A.Y. 2023-24) 86.10 R
TOTAL 986.50 900.39
Note No. 5 Other Non Current Assets Z in lakhs T in lakhs
. As at 31" March, As at 31" March,
Particulars 2023 2022
(Unsecured considered good at amortised cost)
Capital Advance to KIADB for Land Acquisition of Phase Il project 9,823.55 9,819.38
Capital Advance to MSEZL for Land Acquisition Phase | Extension Land 200.00 -
Prepaid Expenses 271.07 378.11
TOTAL 10,294.62 10,197.49
Note No. 6 Cash & Cash Equivalent
4 < in lakhs < in lakhs
: As at 31" March As at 31" March
Particul ’ 4
articulars 2023 2022
Balances with Banks
In Current Accounts 248.76 2,252.84
In Bank Deposits
Fixed Deposits (With Original Maturity upto three months) - -
Fixed Deposits (With Original Maturity more than three months 1,635.00 667.20
but upto one year)
Cash Balances:
Cash on Hand ) 155
TOTAL 1,883.76 2,921.59
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Notes Forming Part of The Financial Statements

Note No. 7 Bank Balances other than above < in lakhs < inlakhs
Particulars As at 31" March, As at 31% March,
2023 2022
TOTAL - -
Note No. 8 Other Financial Assets T inlakhs T inlakhs
Particulars As at 31" March, As at 31" March,
2023 2022
(Unsecured considered good at amortized cost)
Receivable From HPCL (O&M Expenses) 746.46 1,250.62
Receivable From HPCL (Other than O&M) 1.40 49.44
Receivable from GOl / MoPNG for HCC Arbitration Case = 1,864.08
Vizag [Refer Note No. 31(xxxxiii)]
Operating and Other Expenses recoverable from ADNOC 170.91 1,337.33
Accrued Interest on Security Deposit with electricity companies 12215 17.83
Travel Advance to employees 4.02 3.78
Advance to Employees 5.95 -
Accrued Unbilled Operating Income 170.24 -
Amount Receivable From OIDB(Pre-Project Expense Phase II) 314.15 -
TOTAL 1,432.48 4,523.08
Note No. 9 Other Current Assets
T inlakhs < in lakhs
Particulars As at 31" March, As at 31" March,
2023 2022
(Unsecured considered good)
Recoverable from MRPL for crude sale = 1,159.35
Recoverable from MRPL (Others) = 1.89
Expenses Recoverable from OIDB 0.01 0.16
Advances to Supplier 232.03 8.78
Prepaid Expenses 1,197.36 1,204.82
GST Credit Receivable 368.21 490.62
TOTAL 1,797.61 2,865.62
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Note No.10 : Share Capital

T in lakhs T in lakhs
As at 31" March, 2023 As at 31" March, 2022
Particulars Number of Amount Number of Amount
shares shares
Equity Share Capital
(a) Authorised
Equity shares of Rs.10/- each 3,832,560,000( 383,256.00 3,832,560,000 | 383,256.00
(b) Issued, Subscribed and fully paid up
Equity shares of Rs.10/- each 3,790,054,670 | 379,005.47 3,790,054,670 | 379,005.47

Notes :
(i) Reconcilliation of the number of equity shares :

Particulars

As at 31" March, 2023

As at 31" March, 2022

Equity shares of Rs. 10/- each.
Opening Balance

Equity Shares Issued

Equity Shares bought back
Closing Balance

3,790,054,670

3,790,054,670

3,775,874,670
14,180,000

3,790,054,670

(ii) Shares held by holding company:

As at 31" March, 2023

As at 31" March, 2022

Name of shareholders Number of % holding in| Number of | % holding in
Shares held that class Shares held that class
of shares of shares
Equity shares of Rs.10/- each
Oil Industry Development Board, 3,790,054,670 100% | 3,790,054,670 100%
New Delhi & its nominees
TOTAL 3,790,054,670 100% | 3,790,054,670 100%

(iii) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares :

As at 31" March, 2023

As at 31" March, 2022

Name of shareholders Number of % holdingin| Number of |% holding in
Shares held that class Shares held that class
of shares of shares
Equity shares of Rs.10/- each
Oil Industry Development Board, 3,790,054,670 100% | 3,790,054,670 100%
New Delhi & its nominees
TOTAL 3,790,054,670 100% | 3,790,054,670 100%
(iv) Promoter Shareholding Pattern
Shares held by promoters at the end of the year 2022-23
Promoter Name No. of shares | % of total shares % Change
during the year
Oil Industry Development Board 3,790,054,670 100% NIL
Shares held by promoters at the end of the year 2021-22
Promoter Name No. of shares | % of total shares % Change
during the year
Oil Industry Development Board 3,790,054,670 100% 0.38%

(v) Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to equity shares

The company has only one class of equity shares having par value of Rs. 10 each and is entitled to one vote per share. In
the event of liquidation of the company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive the remaining assets of
the company in proportion to the number of equity shares held.

(vi) For the period of preceding five years as on the Balance Sheet date, the :

(a) Number and class of shares allotted as fully paid up pursuant to NIL
contract (s) without payment being received in cash

(b) Aggregate numbers of class of shares allotted as fully paid up by way of bonus NIL
shares; and

(c ) Aggregate number and class of shares and class of shares bought back NIL
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INDIAN STRATEGIC PETROLEUM RESERVES LIMITED

Note No. 11 Other Equity

T in lakhs T inlakhs
Particulars As at 31% March, As at 31" March,
2023 2022
Balance of Retained Earnings :
Balance Loss brought forward from Last Year's Accounts (53,467.07) (43,535.66)
Changes in Accounting Policy or Prior Period Errors - -
Stamp Duty on Equity Share Issued - (0.07)
Profit/(Loss) for the year (9,701.38) (9,931.33)
TOTAL (63,168.45) (53,467.06)
Note No. 12.1 Lease Liabilities - -
T inlakhs T inlakhs
Particulars As at 31" March, As at 31" March,
2023 2022
Lease Liabilities 554.71 558.72
TOTAL 554.71 558.72
NOTE NO. 12.2 - Other Financial Liabilities
< in lakhs < in lakhs
Particulars As at 31" March, As at 31° March,
2023 2022
Deposits/ Retention from Suppliers/ Contractors 17.37 7.73
TOTAL 17.37 7.73
NOTE NO.12.3 Provisions
< in lakhs < in lakhs
Particulars As at 31" March, As at 31" March,
2023 2022
Provisions for Employee Benefits
(a) Leave Encashment - 10.91
(b) Gratuity - 5.51
TOTAL - 16.42
NOTE NO. 13.1 - Borrowings
188 T inlakhs T inlakhs
Particulars As at 31% March, As at 31% March,
2023 2022
Loans from Related Parties _ -
TOTAL = -
NOTE NO. 13.2 - Lease Liabilities
< inlakhs T inlakhs
Particulars As at 31" March, As at 31* March,
2023 2022
Lease Liabilities 3.77 3.49
TOTAL 3.77 3.49
Note No. 14 Trade Payables Z in lakhs Z in lakhs
Particulars As at 31" March, As at 31" March,
2023 2022
i) Total Outstanding dues of Micro Enterprises and Small Enterprises 204.41 224.87
ii) Total Outstanding dues of creditors other than Micro Enterprises 1,687.20 1,300.63
and Small Enterprises
TOTAL 1,891.61 1,525.50

ANNUAL REPORT 2022-23




Notes Forming Part of The Financial Statements

INDIAN STRATEGIC PETROLEUM RESERVES LIMITED

Trade Payables ageing schedule

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment - FY 2022-23 T inlakhs
Particulars Less than 1 Year 1-2 Years 2-3 Years More than 3 Years Total
(i) MSME 204.41 0.00 0.00 0.00 204.41
(ii) Others 1,687.06 0 0.14 0.00 1,687.20
(iii) Disputed dues — MSME - - - - -
(iv) Disputed dues - Others - - - - -
Trade Payables ageing schedule
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment - FY 2021-22 < in lakhs
Particulars Less than 1 Year 1-2 Years 2-3 Years More than 3 Years Total
(i) MSME 224.87 0.00 0 0 224.87
(ii) Others 1,300.49 0.14 0 0 1,300.63
(iii) Disputed dues — MSME - - - - -
(iv) Disputed dues - Others - - - - -
< inlakhs < in lakhs
Details relating to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises 2022-23 2021-22
(a) Amount due remaining unpaid to any supplier at the end of
each accounting year;
Principal 203.96 224.87
Interest 0.45 0
(b)the amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the Micro, 0 0
Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (27 of 2006), along with
the amount of the payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day
during each accounting year;
(c) the amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making 0 0
payment (which has been paid but beyond the appointed day during the year)
but without adding the interest specified under the Micro, Small and Medium
Enterprises Development Act, 2006;
(d) the amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each 0.45 0
accounting year; and
(e) the amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the 0 0

succeeding years, until such date when the interest dues above are actually
paid to the small enterprise, for the purpose of disallowance of a deductible
expenditure under section 23 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises

Development Act, 2006.
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Note No.15 - Other Financial Liabilities

< inlakhs < inlakhs
Particulars As at 31™ March, As at 31" March,
2023 2022
Others
Payable to ADNOC [Refer Note No. 31(iv)] - 4,776.01
Payable to GOI / MoPNG (ADNOC) [Refer Note No. 31(iv)] - 2,223.99
Grant from GOI / MoPNG for Phase I 21,000.00 21,000.00
Advance Received from GOI / MoPNG against O&M Expenses for Phase | 1,807.64 5,454.83
Deposits from Suppliers/ Contractors 986.26 878.41
TOTAL 23,793.90 34,333.24
Note No.16.1 - Provisions T in lakhs T inlakhs
Particulars As at 31" March, As at 31" March,
2023 2022
Provisions for Employee Benefits
(a) Leave Encashment - 0.38
(b) Gratuity - 0.01
TOTAL - 0.39
Note No.16.2 - Other Current Liabilities T inTakhs T inlakhs
Particulars As at 31% March, As at 31" March,
2023 2022
Statutory Dues 119.09 97.36
Payable to GOl / MoPNG (Crude Oil Sale) - 1,160.41
Payable/Refundable to GOI / MoPNG (Crude Oil Grant and NCCD) - 55.29
Fund from GOI / MoPNG for deposit with High Court Delhi for Arbitration 5,000.46 5,000.46
Case of HCC [Refer Note No. 31(xxxxii)]
Payable for HCC Arbitration Case Vizag [Refer Note No. 31(xxxxiii)] - 1,864.08
Payable to GOl / MoPNG (Padur GST RCM) 140.68 89.04
Payable to GOI / MoPNG (Interest on Grant/Other Fund and TDS thereon) 2,013.55 2,155.02
Payable to HPCL Vizag 97.28 97.28
Fund from GOI / MoPNG for deposit with Udupi Zilla Panchayat for legal case 410.84 -
Amount payable to SLAO Mangalore for Pipeline compensation of ROU 49.44 -
O&M Expenses Payable to GOI (ADNOC Expense) 170.91 R
Payable to GOI (AP Rcm GST) 150.58 -
Others 12.61 12.61
TOTAL 8,165.44 10,531.55
Note No.17.1 Revenue from Operation
< inlakhs < inlakhs

Particulars

For the year ended
31" March, 2023

For the year ended
31" March, 2022

Export of Service

Operating income from ADNOC - unbilled Income 170.24 -
Domestic Revenue
Operating income from MRPL 35.57 -
TOTAL INCOME 205.81 -
Note No.17.2 Other Income
T inlakhs T inlakhs

For the year ended

For the year ended

Particulars b -
31™ March, 2023 31" March, 2022
Interest on Security Deposits with Electricity Companies 21.50 19.80
Interest on Bank Deposits 42.04 41.57
Amortization of Grant from OIDB (Phase Il) 314.15 832.78
Profit on Sale of Property, Plant & Equipment 0.01 -
Rock sale 6.31 -
Interest on Income Tax Refund 0.01 2.32
TOTAL INCOME 384.02 896.47
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Note No. 18 Depreciation and Amortisation Expenses

< inlakhs

< inlakhs

For the year ended

For the year ended

Particulars &= at
31™ March, 2023 31" March, 2022

Depreciation 9,510.76 9,463.82
Amortisation of Lease Rental (Leasehold Land) 432.38 533.03
Less :- Recovery as O&M Expenses from GOI/MoPNG (Ind AS 116) (15.112) (15.08)

Net Depreciation and Amortization Expenses 9,928.03 9,981.77
Note No.19 Finance Cost

< inlakhs < inlakhs

For the year ended

For the year ended

Particulars b "
31" March, 2023 31" March, 2022
Interest on Lease Liabilities 41.12 41.36
Less :- Recovery as O&M Expenses from GOI/MoPNG (Ind AS 116) (29.74) (29.77)
Net Finance Cost 11.38 11.59
Other Expenses
Note No. 20.1 - Operation & Maintenance Expenses T in lakhs T in lakhs

Particulars

For the year ended
31" March, 2023

For the year ended
31" March, 2022

O&M Expenses

Consumable Expense 167.08 311.47
Insurance Premium 3,890.66 3,941.00
Lease Rent 282.80 229.02
Manpower PDF Employee 99.47 64.00
Operating Cost 216.47 178.13
Repairs & Maintanance 565.54 445.81
Festivals Expenses 6.10 8.13
Legal expenses 753.29 257.63
Office expenses 67.03 36.68
Expense for HCC Arbitration case Vizag (Refer Note No. 31(xxxxiii) 22.96 1,864.08
Stationery expenses 3.23 1.69
Telephone Expenses 24.53 16.60
Tours & Training 23.20 2.39
Vehicle hire exp. 138.40 121.74
Electricity Charges 1,358.96 1,507.96
House Keeping Charges 103.52 127.86
Manpower Contractual & Other 1,992.73 2,753.75
MSEZL O&M Expense 237.87 94.91
Officer on Deputation 369.38 289.49
Periodical Statutory Expense 152.52 108.52
Security Charges 1,911.41 1,205.75
Wharfage/ Surveyor Charges 210.28 -
Green Belt Development 42.70 50.35
HO Expense 1,052.90 1,137.02

TOTAL 13,693.03 14,753.98
Detailed Feasibility Report (DFR) Expenses for Phase Il 314.15 832.78

TOTAL 314.15 832.78

Note : The above bifurcation of O&M Expenses in FY 2021-22 has been done on the basis of expense head provided by
locations site on vouchers since no separate head wise general ledger is maintained in accounting software.
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Note No. 20.2 - Miscellaneous Expenses

T inlakhs T inlakhs
Particulars For the year ended | For the year ended
31" March, 2023 31*March, 2022
Rock Related Expenses - 1.65
Write off of Stamp Duty Expenses - 0.01
Other expenses 35.57 -
Loss on Write Off of Property, Plant & Equipment 2.08 -
TOTAL 37.65 1.66
Note No. 21 Disclosures of EPS under Indian Accounting Standards - 33 - -
< inlakhs T inlakhs
. For the year ended | For the year ended
Note Particulars 31" March, 2023 | 31" March, 2022
Earnings per share
(i) | Basic
Profit/(Loss) for the year attributes to the equity shareholders (9,701.38) (9,931.33)
Weighted Average number of equity shares Outstanding 3,790,054,670 3,785,664,697
Par value per share 10.00 10.00
Loss per share from continuing operations - Basic (0.26) (0.26)
(i) | Diluted
Profit/ (Loss) for the year attributable to the equity shareholders (9,701.38) (9,931.33)
Weighted Average number of equity shares Outstanding- For Diluted 3,790,054,670 3,785,664,697
Par value per share 10.00 10.00
Loss per share, from continuing operations - Diluted (0.26) (0.26)

Note No. 22 Leases, Commitments and Contingencies

22.1

Leases

(a)

(b)

(€

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) through Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rule, 2019
and Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Second Amendment Rule, 2019 has notified IND AS 116 Leases
which replaces the existing lease IND AS 17 Lease and other interpretations. IND AS 116 introduces a balance sheet
lease accounting module for Leases.

Effective 1" April, 2019, the Company has adopted IND AS 116 to its leases using modified retrospective transitions
method. The lease liability is measured at the present value of remaining lease payments discounted using
incremental borrowing rate at the date of initial application and right of use asset has been recognized at an
amount equal to the lease liability plus prepaid rentals recognized in the balance sheet before the date of initial
application, if any. The company has adopted OIDB's (being 100% shareholder) interest rate for April 2019. Further,
the Company has exercised the following expedient:-

i. Company has not reassessed whether a contract is, or contains, a lease at the date of initial application i.e. the
contracts classified as leases on March 31,2019 as per IND AS 17

ii. Treated as leases under IND AS 116 and not applying the standard to contracts that were not previously
identified as containing alease applyingINDAS 17

iii. Leases for which the lease terms ends within 12 months of the date of initial application have been accounted as
shorttime leases.

The Company has entered into lease arrangements related to land. There is no sale and lease back transactions
arrangement under the reporting period.

Details of significant leases for Leasehold Lands are as under:-

Arrangement with Visakhapatnam Port Trust for a period of 30 Years (upto 14.05.2038) for 37 acres of land at
Vishakapatnam (Refer Note No. 31(xvi)).

Arrangement with Mangalore Special Economic Zone for a period of 50 Years (upto 26.01.2060) for 104.73 acres of
land at Mangalore including green beltarea of 33.0066 acre (Refer Note No. 31(xvi)).

Arrangement with Karnataka Industrial Areas Development Board (KIADB) for a period of 20 years (101.815 acre
upto 28.05.2030 & 36.775 acre upto 18.12.2031) towards 138.57 acres of land at Padur.

Arrangement with Karnataka Industrial Areas Development Board (KIADB) for a period of 15 years (upto
14.11.2032) towards 37.35 acres of land at Padur.
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(ii)

(ii)

(i)

(iv)

(v)

Amount recognised in the statement of Profit and Loss Account or Carrying Amount of Right of Use:

Xin lakhs Xin lakhs

2022-23 2021-22
- Prepaid Lease Rental capitalised as Right of Use NA NA
- Increase of Right of Use and Lease Obligation NIL 0.26
- Depreciation Recognized on increased Right of Use 15.11 15.08
- Depreciation Recognized on Prepaid Lease Rental 417.27 517.95
- Interest on Lease Obligation 41.08 41.36
- Incremental Borrowing Rate 7.94% 7.94%
- Lease Rental Payment 44.85 44.85

The Details of Right of Use included in PPE held as leases by class of underlying assets is presented below:

Xin lakhs Xin lakhs Xin lakhs
Asset Class Gross Block Accumulated Depreciation| Net Carrying Value
as on 31" March, 2023 Upto 31" March, 2023 | as on 31" March, 2023
Right of Use 13270.09 2031.55 11238.54

Gross Block as on 31 March, 2023 includes operating leases entered before 01™ April, 2019 on net carrying value of
% 12698.11 Lakhs which had been reclassified to Right to Use as on 01* April, 2019 (on implementation of Ind AS
116).

Details of item of future cash outflows which the company is exposed as lease but are not reflected in the
measurements of lease liabilities are as under:

Variable Lease Payments

Variable lease payments that depends on an index or a rate to be included in the measurement of lease liability
although not paid at the commencement date. As per general industry practice, the company incurs various
variable lease payment which are not based any index or rate (variable based on KMS covered or % of sales etc.)
andarerecognized in profit or lossand notincluded in the measurement of lease liability.

Extension and Termination Options

The company lease arrangement includes extension option only to provide operational flexibility. Company
assesses at every lease commencement whether it is reasonably certain to exercise the extension options and
further reassesses whether it is reasonably certain to exercise the option if there is a significant change in
circumstances within its control, However, where company has the solo discretion to extend the contract such
lease termisincluded for the purpose of calculation of lease liabilities.

Residual value Guarantees

There are no Residual value guarantees.

Committed lease which are yet to commence

Thereis no committed lease which is yet to commence.

The difference between the future minimum lease rental commitment towards non-cancellable operating lease
reported as at 31" March, 2019 compared to the lease liability as accounted as at 1™ April, 2019 is primarily due to
inclusion of present value of the lease payment for the cancellable term of the leases. Reduction due to
discounting of the lease liabilities as per the requirement of IND AS 116 and exclusion of the commitments for the
leases to which the company has chosen to apply the practical expedient as perthe standard.
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(vi)

Application of this standard has resulted a net increase in loss before Tax for the year by 11.38 Lakhs (Previous
Year :- 11.59 Lakhs) (increase in Depreciation & Amortization expenses and Finance cost) by 56.19 Lakhs
(Previous Year X56.44 Lakhs) respectively and decrease in office, Administration, Selling & other Expenses by
%44.85 Lakhs(Previous Year X44.85 Lakhs).

22.2

Contingent Liabilities, Contingent Assets and Commitments (to the extent not provided for)
Particulars

(A) Contingent Liabilities

Claims against the company not acknowledged as debts amounting to %93,414.22 lakhs (Previous Year :
X43,364.05 lakhs) comprising of -

a) Disputed Demand of Royalty by Department Of Mines and Geology at Vizag X11,795.03 Lakhs (Previous Year :
X11,794.95 Lakhs)

b) Disputed claims by the contractors for 80,752.13 Lakhs (Previous Year : X 31,112.88 Lakhs ) rejected by EIL on
account of projects undertaken on various sites for which cases are pending before the Arbitral Tribunal/High
Court.

c) Disputed demands of Entry Tax X74.64 Lakhs (Previous Year : X74.64 Lakhs). The Company has availed Kar
Samadhan Scheme promulgated by Government of Karnataka for resolution of dispute of Entry Tax. As per
Company there is no liability and the Company has filed writ petition against the coercive recovery of X74.64 lakhs
toward entry taxand the matter is pending before honourable Karnataka High Court.

d) Disputed demands by Panchayat Development Officer (Padur) X410.84 Lakhs ( Previous Year : NIL) on account of
building, land and misc taxes for which the case is pending before appellate authority. Total demand raised is
%821.68 lakh, out of which 410.84 lakhs (being 50% amount) has been deposited with appellate authority.

e) Disputed demands with respect to pipeline at mangalore X381.58 Lakhs ( Previous Year : 381.58) for which the
cases are pending before District Court, Mangalore.

(B) Contingent Assets - XNIL (Previous Year : XNIL)

(C) Capital Commitments

1. Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided for Phase 1
extension land at Mangalore X22,950.38 lakhs (Previous Year : Nil)

2. Final gazette notification for land acquisition for 214.79 acre land at padur has been issued by Government of
Karnataka on 22™ Feb 2023. Capital Commitment on account of payment for land will arise after decision of
Price fixation committee and Rehabilitation committee.

(D) Other Commitments - X 544.21 Lakhs (Previous Year : X NIL) towards work awarded to EIL for preparation
of DFR for Cavern storage and assocaited facilities for Phase 1 extension at MSEZL Area, Mangalore.
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INDIAN STRATEGIC PETROLEUM RESERVES LIMITED
Notes Forming Part of The Financial Statements
Note No. 23 : Related Party Transactions
Related party disclosure, as required by Ind AS 24, is as below :
Particulars
Details of related Parties :
Description of relationship Names of related parties
Holding Company Qil Industry Development Board (OIDB) holding 100% equity in the Company
Key Management Personnel| 1. Shri L. R. Jain, CEO & MD, ISPRL (w.e.f. 31.10.2022)
(KMP) 2. Shri Ajay Dashore, Dy CEO/CEO & MD (Add. Charge)
(w.e.f. 17.06.2022 till 30.10.2022)
3. Shri HPS Ahuja, CEO & MD, ISPRL (till 01.06.2022)
4. Shri G. K. Singh, CFO, ISPRL
5. Shri Arun Talwar, Company Secretary, ISPRL (till 15.05.2023)
6. Ms. Shilpi Mohanty, Company Secretary, ISPRL (w.e.f. 06.06.2023)
Board of Directors (Ex-Officio)
1. Shri Pankaj Jain, Chairman (w.e.f. 20.01.2022)
2. Shri Praveen Mal Khanooja, Director (w.e.f. 17.02.2023)
3. Ms. Kamini Chauhan Ratan, Director (w.e.f. 21.12.2022)
4. Ms. Esha Srivastava, Director (w.e.f. 22.12.2021)
5. Ms. Varsha Sinha, Director (w.e.f. 15.12.2022)
6. Ms. Yatinder Prasad, Director (w.e.f. 11.10.2022 till 21.11.2022)
7. Shri Gudey Srinivas, Director (w.e.f. 03.11.2021 till 26.09.2022)
8. Dr. Navneet Mohan Kothari, Director (w.e.f. 03.11.2021 till 30.11.2022)
Key Management Personnel (Zin lakhs) (Zin lakhs)

Remunerations

For year ending on

For year ending on

31" March, 2023 31" March, 2022
CEO & MD*# 83.98 47.29
CFO* 84.77 93.90
Company Secretary * 85.56 72.39
TOTAL 254.31 213.58

*Including debit notes received from respective parent company.

# The above amount doesn't include perquisite value of Rs. 86,251/-
(Previous Year : NIL) as per Income tax act with respect to Property,
Plant & Equipment transferred during the year.

Sale consideration from Property, Plant & Equipment

For year ending on

For year ending on

31" March, 2023 31" March, 2022
Shri HPS Ahuja 2.04 NIL
TOTAL 2.04 0.00

Transfer of Property, Plant & Equipment

For year ending on
31" March, 2023**

For year ending on
31" March, 2022**

Shri HPS Ahuja 0.79 NIL
Ms. Yatinder Prasad 0.66 NIL
TOTAL 1.44 0.00

** Amount of WDV as per books on the date of transfer of asset.
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Notes Forming Part of The Financial Statements

(T in lakhs) (Zin lakhs)
As on 31" March, As on 31" March,
. 2023 2022
(ii) | Holding Company (OIDB)
Allotment of Equity Shares/Share application Money - 1,418.00
Reimbursement of expenses to OIDB 25.20 21.78
Grant for Phase Il expenditures 314.15 804.87
Expenditure incurred on behalf of OIDB 0.25 0.16
Return of unutilized Grant for Phase Il - 1.46
Balances outstanding with related parties : (Zin lakhs) (Zin lakhs)
As on 31% March, As on 31" March,
2023 2022
(i) | Key Management Personnel
TDS on Salary recoverable from Shri L. R. Jain, CEO & MD, ISPRL 0.63 -
(Zin lakhs) (Zin lakhs)
As on 31" March, As on 31" March,
2023 2022
(ii) | Holding company (OIDB)
Recoverable from OIDB for expenditure incurred on their behalf 0.01 0.16
Payable to OIDB for Reimbursement of expenses 25.20 21.78
Grant receiviable for Phase Il 314.15 -

Note No. 24 : SEGMENT REPORTING

2.  Geographicalinformationis notapplicable as all operations of the Company are within India.

1. Company is creating storage assets for sovereign reserves of crude oil for the Government of India and is also
maintaining such assets. This is considered to constitute one single primary segment.

Note No. 25 : FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Financial instruments by category

3) Considering above disclosure with regard to the Fair Value Hierarchy is not applicable.

1) The management assessed that Fair Value of Cash & Cash Equivalents, Other Current Financial Assets, Trade
Payables, Short Term Borrowings and Other Current Financial Liabilities approximate their carrying amounts.

2)  The fairvalue of the financial assets and liabilities is included at the amount at which the instrument could be
exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale.
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Note No. 26 : FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

1) Financial risk factors

The Company's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company's primary
focus is to foresee the unpredictability of financial markets and seek to minimize potential adverse effects on its financial
performance. The primary market risk to the Company is Interest Rate risk. O& M expenses of the company are met with GBS
henceitis not exposed to any material Interest rate risk.

The Company’s principal financial liabilities comprise trade and other payables & security deposits. The main purpose of these
financial liabilities is to finance the Company’s operations. The Company’s principal financial assets include other receivables,
Other Financial Assets and cash / cash equivalents that derive directly from its operations.

Presently Company is not exposed to a number of any financial risks arising from natural business exposures as well as its use of
financial instruments including market risk relating to interest rate, foreign currency exchange rates. Senior management
oversees the management of these risks with appropriate financial risk governance framework for the Company.

2) Market risk

Market risk is the risk where the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in
market prices. Market prices comprise three types of risk: currency rate risk, interest rate risk and other price risks. Financial
instruments affected by market risk include loans and borrowings, deposits, investments, and derivative financial instruments.
Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes
in foreign exchange rates. Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market interest rates. Presently company's financial instrument is not exposed to any material market
risk.

3) Credit risk

Customer credit risk is managed by each business unit subject to the Company’s established policy, procedures and control
relating to customer credit risk management. Credit quality of a customer is assessed based on an extensive analysis and
outstanding customer receivables are regularly monitored. Presently there are no trade receivables.

4) Liquidity risk

Company monitors its risk of a shortage of funds diligently. The Company seeks to manage its liquidity requirement by
maintaining access to short term borrowings from holding Company.

The table below provides details regarding the contractual maturities of significant financial liabilities as of 31" March, 2023:

 in lakhs
Particulars Less that 1 year 1-2 years 2-4 years More than 4 yrs Total
Borrowings - - - - -
Trade payables 1,891.61 - - - 1,891.61
Other financial liabilities 23,793.90 17.10 0.27 - 23,811.27
Total 25,685.51 17.10 0.27 - 25,702.88
The table below provides details regarding the contractual maturities of significant financial liabilities as of 31" March, 2022:

 in lakhs
Particulars Less that 1 year 1-2 years 2-4 years More than 4 yrs Total
Borrowings - - - - -
Trade payables 1,525.50 - - - 1,525.50
Other financial liabilities 34,333.24 6.90 0.83 - 34,340.97
Total 35,858.74 6.90 0.83 - 35,866.47

Note No. 27 : CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

Forthe purpose of the Company’s capital management

Under Phase I- Capital includes issued equity capital and all other equity reserves attributable to the equity holders. The primary
objective of the Company’s capital management is to maximize the shareholder value.

Under Phase | extension- Capital for Land Acquisition for Phase 1 extension at Mangalore will be managed through GBS from GOI
/ MoPNG.

Under Phase Il Project- Capital for Land Acquisition are being managed through GBS from GOl / MoPNG.
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Note No. 28 - Payment in Foreign Currency (Equivalent INR)

T inlakhs T inlakhs
. For the year ending | For the year ending
Particulars 31" March, 2023 | 31" March, 2022
Travelling 6.72 6.98
Payment for Goods and Services 4,775.67 29.93
Total 4,782.39 36.91
Note No. 29 - Receipts in foreign currency
T inlakhs T inlakhs

Particulars

For the year ending
31" March, 2023

For the year ending
31" March, 2022

Receipt from ADNOC

1,454.56

NIL

Note No. 30 - Employee Benefits Disclosure

(i) Gratuity Disclosure Statement as per Indian Accounting Standard 19 (Ind AS 19)

A. Actuarial assumptions provided by the company and employed for the calculations are tabulated:

Period

As on: 31-03-2023

As on: 31-03-2022

Discount rate

7.50 % per annum

7.25 % per annum

Salary Growth Rate

10.00 % per annum

10.00 % per annum

Mortality IALM 2012-14 IALM 2012-14
Expected rate of return 0 0
Withdrawal rate (Per Annum) 5.00% p.a. 5.00% p.a.

B. Benefits valued:

Period As on: 31-03-2023 As on: 31-03-2022
Normal Retirement Age 60 Years 60 Years
Salary Last drawn qualifying salary Last drawn qualifying salary

Vesting Period

5 Years of service

5 Years of service

Benefits on Normal Retirement

15/26 * Salary * Past Service (yr).

15/26 * Salary * Past Service (yr).

Benefit on early exit due to death
and disability

As above except that no
vesting conditions apply

As above except that no
vesting conditions apply

Limit

2000000

2000000

0

. Current Liability (*Expected payout in next year as per schedule Ill of the Companies Act, 2013) :

Period As on: 31-03-2023 (Funded) As on: 31-03-2022
Current Liability (Short Term)* 1,402 X824
Non Current Liability (Long Term) X9,22,854 X 5,50,532
Total Liability X9,24,256 X5,51,356

Note:- Company has taken LIC Group Gratutity Scheme during the year for Gratuity payable to employees. As against
Gratutity liability of Rs. 9,24,256/-as on 31.03.2023 as per Acturial Valuation, balance of LIC Group Gratutity Scheme fund
ason 31.03.2023isRs. 12,14,340.24/-, hence no provision is required to be made for Employee benefit.
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(ii) Leave Disclosure Statement as per Indian Accounting Standard 19 (Ind AS 19)

A. Actuarial assumptions provided by the company and employed for the calculations are tabulated:

Period

As on: 31-03-2023

As on: 31-03-2022

Discount rate

7.50 % per annum

7.25 % per annum

Salary Growth Rate

10.00 % per annum

10.00 % per annum

Mortality IALM 2012-14 IALM 2012-14
Expected rate of return 0 0
Withdrawal rate (Per Annum) 5.00% p.a. 5.00% p.a.

B. Benefits valued:

Period As on: 31-03-2023 As on: 31-03-2022
Normal Retirement Age 60 Years 60 Years
Salary As per rules of the company As per rules of the company

Benefits on Normal Retirement

1/30 * Salary * Number of leaves.

1/30 * Salary * Number of leaves.

Benefit on early exit

As above, subject to rules
of the company.

As above, subject to rules
of the company.

Benefit on death

As above, subject to rules
of the company.

As above, subject to rules
of the company.

C. Current Liability (*Expected payout in next year as per schedule Il of the Companies Act, 2013) :
Period As on: 31-03-2023 (Funded) As on: 31-03-2022
Current Liability (Short Term)* X52,852 237,577
Non Current Liability (Long Term) X14,43,615 % 10,90,606
Total Liability % 14,96,467 %11,28,183

Note:- Company has taken LIC Group Leave Encashment Scheme during the year for Leave Encashment payable to
employees. As against Leave encashment liability of Rs. 14,96,467/- as on 31.03.2023 as per Acturial Valuation, balance of
LIC Group Leave Encashment scheme fund as on 31.03.2023 is 21,34,663.27, hence no provision is required to be made

for Employee benefit.
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Note No. 31 : OTHER NOTES

31

Others Notes

(i)

Cases settled under Vivad se Vishwas:-

The company had availed the benefit under Vivad se Vishwas Act, 2020 for financial year 2012-13 to 2016-17 and tax of
X663.47 lakhs has been paid in earlier years. The demand has been settled and Form-5 has been issued by department,
consequently all the cases have been closed. Letter giving effect of Form 5 is awaited from competent authority.

For AY 2016-17 and AY 2017-18, aggregate demand of Rs. 1.5 crore is reflecting on Income Tax Site which is neither
enforceable nor correctin light of Form 5 issued by department which in itself concludes the matter and no further action
ordemand can be held by the department.

Other demand as per Income tax site:-

For AY 2018-19, demand of Rs. 29,310/~ is reflecting on Income tax site u/s 154. AO has issued order u/s 143(3) and ISPRL is
under appeal before the CIT(Appeal) against the said order.

For AY 2022-23 ademand of Rs 4,210/- is reflecting on Income tax site, whereas the substantial refund has not been issued
by the Income Tax Department vide intimation u/s 143(1) dated 02.03.2023. ISPRL has filed rectification but the CPC has
again erred in processing of Income tax return. This discrepancy is due to failure from CPC to allow full credit of TDS as
claimed in the tax return. ISPRL will be again filing rectification through online as well as with the Assessing Officer to get
the order corrected.

(ii)(a)

The Sovereign Crude Oil Reserves have been kept at three sites Padur, Mangalore and Visakhapatnam of the company as a
custodian on behalf of Government of India. Cavern B at Visakhapatnam is used by HPCL for its operation and property in
crude oil is purely owned by HPCL. Cavern A at Mangalore is used by ADNOC for storage of its own Crude QOil under
agreement with ISPRL.

Accounting of crude oil is not being done in Financial statement of ISPRL, only disclosure of the Crude Oil Inventory is being
done in Notes to accounts. An assurance was given to C&AG during the audit for FY 2020-21 for seeking clarification from
Ministry of Petroleum and Natural Gas regarding accounting of crude oil transaction and disclosure of Inventory in books
of accounts of ISPRL. The company wrote a letter to MoPNG on 01st December 2021, seeking clarification regarding
accounting of crude oil transactions and disclosure of inventory. The reply from MoPNG is still awaited.

During the supplementary audit of FY 2021-22, ISPRL has given assurance to CAG that oipinion from "Expert Advisory
committee" of ICAI would be obatined on the subject matter. ISPRL appriased this assurance to Audit committee and
sought directions from the Ministry, the ministry provided relevant documents with regard to accounting of Soverign
Crude Oil reserve and directed ISPRL to appraise CAG. ISPRL has written to CAG intimating about the procedure issued by
Office of Comptroller & Auditor General of India with regard to accounting of Soverign Crude Oil reserve and preferred not
to seek Expert Advisory Qipinion from ICAL.

Company has continued to disclose only the below quantitative details of Soverign crude oil reserves as done in earlier
years.

GOVERNMENT OF INDIA- CRUDE OIL

Particulars 31" March, 2023 | 31" March, 2022
(Qty. in MT) (Qty. in MT)
Opening Stock of Crude Oil ( As per Surveyor Report) (a) 3,010,938.75 4,213,678.99

Add:- Procured during the year :
As per Bill of lading (b) - -
Actual as per Surveyor Report (c) - -

Add:- Dead Stock in Carvern A at Mangalore (d) 3,394.63 -
Less:- Sale/Transferred during the year (e) - 1,198,816.99
Net Quantity as per actual as on close of the year (a+c+d)-(e) 3,014,333.38 3,014,862.00
Total quantity under Custody as at close of the year (As per Surveyor Report) 3,016,903.67 3,010,938.75

(including deadstock of 3,394.63 MT in Cavern A at Mangalore)

ANNUAL REPORT 2022-23




INDIAN STRATEGIC PETROLEUM RESERVES LIMITED

(ii)(b)

IR
ISPRL
INDIAN STRATEGIC PETROLEUM RESERVES LIMITED
Notes Forming Part of The Financial Statements
ADNOC- CRUDE OIL T in lakhs < in lakhs
Particulars 31" March, 2023 | 31* March, 2022
(Qty. in MT) (Qty. in MT)
Opening Stock of Crude Oil (As per Surveyor Report) (a) 3,512.61 517,387.96
Add:- Procured during the year :
As per Bill of lading (b) 433,099.00 -
Actual as per Surveyor Report (c) 422,602.24 -
Less:- Dead Stock in Cavern A at Mangalore (d) 3,394.63 -
Less:- Transfer by ADNOC during the year (e ) - 510,767.87
Net Quantity as per actual as on close of the year (a+c)-(d+e) 422,720.22 6,620.09
Total quantity under Custody as at close of the year(As per Surveyor Report) 421,775.48 3,512.61
(Excluding dead stock of 3,394.63 MT)
Note : Losses, in case any, are within the acceptable industry norms.
< inlakhs T inlakhs
PAYABLE TO GOI / MoPNG ( CRUDE OIL GRANT) 2022-23 2021-22
Payable/Refundable to GOI / MoPNG as at beginning of the period 84.61 4,182.15
Add:-Amount received for Crude Oil during the year - -
Add:- Interest, other receipts and adjustments - 1,258.94
Less:-Crude Oil Procured (Net of Transfer) (Including Clearing and Other Expenses) - -
during the year
Less:- Amount refunded to GOI/MoPNG - 356.02
Less:- Amount apportioned as temporary loan for HCC Arbitration Case of ISPRL - 5,000.46
Payable/Refundable to GOI / MoPNG as at end of the period 84.61 84.61
Note : The amount of Payable/Refundable to GOl / MoPNG as at 31" March, 2022
& 31" March, 2023 represents TDS receivable from Income Tax Department.

During the supplementary audit of FY 2021-22, ISPRL had given assurance to C&AG that oipinion from "Expert Advisory
committee" of Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) would be obatined on "Accounting of O&M grant of Phase - |

from MoPNG / GOI" and "Accounting of Pre-project expenses for Phase - lI". Accordingly, ISPRL has writeen a letter to ICAI

seeking opinion on the subject matter. Expert Advisory Opinion from ICAIl is yet to be received by company and necessary
accounting / presenation shall be done in line with opinion of the ICAI. Till receipt of opinion from ICAIl, Company has continue to
offset the O&M grant of Phase - | and corresponding O&M expenses in the profit & Loss statement (in Note No. 20.1) and the
Cashflow statementasdonein earlier years.

(iii)

(A) Phasell:-

1. The Union Cabinet of India, on 27" June 2018, accorded in-principle approval for the establishment of additional 6.5MMT of
storage facilities for crude oil in underground rock caverns at Padur-I1, Karnataka (2.5MMT) and Chandikhol, Odisha (4.0MMT)
including the construction of dedicated Single Point Mooring (SPM) and pipelines for the two Strategic Petroleum Reserves
(SPR). Phase-Il project of ISPRL was approved in the cabinet meeting in PPP mode on 08.07.2021.

2. Application for Land allotment for Chandikhol project was submitted to Government of Odisha, a clear ASI survey report was
also submitted to government. The odisha government has suggested ISPRL to search for alternate land. ISPRL has approched
ElLfor suggesting alternate land.

3. ElA studies were started for Phase Il by NEERI during the FY 2019-20 and draft report was received from NEERI. After review,
the observations of ISPRL has been provided to NEERI for issue of Final report.

4. The DFR for construction of SPM and associated pipeline at Padur was awarded to M/S Engineers India Limited. EIL has
completed survey job for SPM.
5. GOl / MoPNG had allocated X 210 Crores for land acquisition for Phase Il project, X 98.24 crores was paid to KIADB for land

acquisition of Padur project and other incidental charges. The final notification for land acquisition has been issued by state
governmenton 14.02.2023. The balance available with ISPRLas on 31st March 2023isX111.76 Crores.
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(iii)

6. In addition to earlier approved and disbursed Rs.19 crore for Pre-project expenses by OIDB, during the year OIDB board has
approved additonal fund of Rs.4.5 crore toward pre-project expenses for Phase Il project after instruction from Ministry.
During the year ISPRL has booked expenses of Rs.3.14 crore toward pre-project expenses, which were receiviable from OIDB
ason 31.03.2023 and received from OIDB ason 03.04.2023.

(B) Phase | Extension:-

1. ISPRLis exploring expansion of storage capicity at 3 locations at Manglore (near existing facility of ISPRL- Manglore), Bikaner &
Bina under Phase-1 extension.

2. In an endavor to explore additional capacity, ISPRL discussed with MSEZL and MSEZL offered 154.90 acre of land to ISPRL on
payment of one time non-refundable lease premium of Rs.226.94 crores, out of which 126.79 acre is leasable land and
remaining 28.11 acreis to be maintained as green belt.

3. The proposal has been approved by Delegated Investment Board (DIP) on 17th Febreuary 2023. The decision was convyed to
ISPRL vide OEM number 1C22011/6/2017-IC-2 dated 22" February 2023. Communication for approval of approving authority
has been received on 26" June 2023.

4. ISPRL has signed MOU with MSEZL on 17.03.2023 for allotment of 154.90 acre of land on lease basis at Mangalore and token
amount of Rs. 2 crore has been paid to MSEZL till 31.03.2023.

5. ISPRL has appointed ElL as project consultant for pre project studies for Mangalore project under Phase-l extension.

(iv)

At Mangalore site of ISPRL, there are 2 caverns namely cavern A&B. For Cavern "A", a tripartite agreement for Oil storage
and management was signed on 10-02-2018 with Abu Dhabi National Oil Company and ADNOC Marketing International
(India) RSC Limited(AMI India). As per the agreement, value of 1,20,000 US barrels (15831 MT) was to be paid to AMI
India(ADNOC) towards dead stock loss/commissioning loss and the value of dead stock to be funded by GOl / MoPNG. The
GOI / MoPNG had allocated X 7,000 lakhs for reimbursement of dead stock. On an actual evacuation of product the dead
stock/commissioning loss is determined to be 75,923 barrels due to operational efficiency and a side letter to the original
agreement to this effect has been signed on dated 18-04-2022. Payment for 75,923 barrels amounting to £4,776.01 lakhs
has been made on 15-06-2022 by the company to ADNOC and remaining balance of £2,223.99 lakhs has been returned to
MoPNG duringthe year.

The Parties acknowledge and agree that ISPRL, will, at all times, continue to retain an ownership interest in the AMI India
(ADNOC) oil equal to the Dead Stock quantity (3,394.63 MT).

Provision for liability, if any, towards the storage loss and operational loss relating to agreement with AMI India (ADNOC)
will be made after quantification by parties to the agreement. No loss has been quantified during the year.

(v)

As on 31st March 2023, the Company’s day to day work is handled by 16 personnel on deputation from various oil
companies and CEO&MD appointed by the Board. In addition, the company has 12 employees on regular rolls of ISPRL on
OIDB Pay scales. The process of formulation of Employee Policies forregularemployees of ISPRLis under deliberation.

(vi)

Advance recoverable in cash or kind for value to be received including amount due from other companies in which any
Directorisa Director or Memberis NIL (Previous Year-Rs. 1,165.59 lakhs).

(vii)

The company has adhered to all applicable government guidelines / SOPs during the lockdown for safety of its employees
and business partners.

(viii)

During FY 2021-22, cabinet has allowed ISPRL for commercialization of facilities and crude oil in following manner:-
a.Leasing / Renting of 30% of overall storage capacity to Indian or foreign companies. and

b.Sale / Purchase of 20% of overall storage capacity of crude oil to Indian companies.

c.Remaining 50% of overall storage capacity will remain straetgic.

As per cabinet approval release of commercial stock through leasing renting upto 30% and sale purchase of crude oil upto
20% would be handled by a Management committee as determined by ISPRL's Board from time to time.The authority for
release of stock in the strategic portion of 50% of crude oil will continue to vest with the interministerial Empowered
committee.
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The proceeds from sale of crude oil for 30% storage capacity which is to be leased out shall be returned to Government of
India and the revenue from sale of 20% crude oil would form part of income of ISPRL.

The company has neither entered into any agreement/transaction relating to leasing/renting nor any transaction related
tosale/purchase of 20% of crude oil till 31" March 2023

ISPRL has sold 1.199 MMT crude oil till March 2022 from 30% capacity and returned the proceeds to GOl / MoPNG and no
Crude oil hasbeen sold by ISPRL during the current year.

Details of Crude Sales and Payments

Xin lakhs
Amount payable to GOl / MoPNG as on 31" March, 2022 (TDS deducted by oil companies 490.56
on crude sales)
Add: Realization received during the year out of sale made to MRPL in March 2022 1,159.80
Less : Amount refunded to the GOI / MoPNG during the year 2022-23 1,158.64
Amount payable to GOl / MoPNG as on 31" March 2023 (TDS deducted by oil companies on crude sales) 491.72

Note : Apart from above, pumping charges of £ 0.61 Lakhs (net of taxes) received from MRPL on crude sales made in
March 2022 and transferred to GOl / MoPNG. Amount of X 3.76 Lakhs on account of TDS deducted by oil company on
pumping charges till 31" March 2023 is payable to GOl / MoPNG.

(ix) Rocks excavated from Mangalore and Padur are lying at sites. E-auction for Rock Debris at Padur was conducted through
Mineral State Trading Corporation (MSTC). The successful bidder has quoted price of X 106 /MT for lifting 2 lakh MT and
X 108/MT for 10 lakh MT of Rock debris from Padur. Out of these tenders, 5,882.22 MT quantity of Rock has been sold till

31.03.2023.
Xin Lakhs
(x) Details of O & M Expenditure 2022-23 2021-22
0&M Expenditure Claimed from GOI / MoPNG during the year (as per UC) 15,667.90 13,865.10
Less:- O&M Expenditure booked in previous year but claimed during the year 3,413.65 1,367.87
Add:- O0&M Expenditure for the period not claimed during the year, to be claimed 1,791.10 1,549.57
Less:- O&M Expenditure Extra Claimed/ Prepaid Expenses (Net of Previous Year) 307.46 1,112.05
Add :- Payable for HCC Arbitration Case Vizag [Refer Note No. 31(xxxxiii)] - 1,864.08
Net O&M Expenditure incurred during the year (Inclusive of Depreciation, 13,737.88 14,798.83
Finance Cost and Tax Expenses)
Xin lakhs
2022-23 2021-22
Particulars GOI/MoPNG HPCL ADNOC Total GOI/MoPNG HPCL ADNOC Total
Amount Recoverable (Received in Advance) as at beginning of the period|  (5454.83) 1,250.62 616.35 (3,587.85) (6,209.81) 2,015.94 377.03 (3,816.84)
O & M Expenditure for the year 13,737.88 - - 13,737.88 14,798.84 - - 14,798.84
Oth'er Income/Receipt of previous year refunded to GOI/MoPNG (13.00) . . (13.00)
during the year
Interest surrendered (net of TDS) to GOl / MoPNG during the year (49.38) R _ (49.38) (26.51) R R (26.51)
on O&M Fund
Received / Recoverable from GOI / MoPNG for HCC Arbitration Case 1,864.08 - - 1,864.08 (1,864.08) - - (1,864.08)
Vizag / Provisional Expense for HCC (Refer Note No. 31(xxxxiii))
Amount payable to HPCL for Auxillary Service (Other than crude - (17.03) - (17.03) - (313.13) - (313.13)
and Manpower)
Invoice issued during the year to HPCL JADNOC (1,743.04) 2,134.45 1,381.67 1,773.08 (1,864.32) | 225898 - 394.66
Foreign Exchange Gain / (Loss) (Net of bank charges) - - 72.68 72.68
Amount Recovered during the year* (12,327.04) (1,548.34) (1,454.34) (15,329.72) (12,949.00) (2,238.23) - (15,187.23)
Provision for O&M Expenses as on begning of period reversed 1,805.82 (1,189.47) (616.35) - 2,351.12 (1,974.09) (377.03)
Provision for O&M Expenses as on end of period (99.20) 99.20 - - (1,805.82) 1,189.47 616.35
Other amounts refundable to GOl / MoPNG (1,307.01) (1,307.01)
Amount refunded to GOl / MoPNG during the year 1,765.07 - - 1,765.07 2,127.76 - - 2,127.76
Amount paid to HPCL for Auxiliary Service (Other than crude and Manpower) - 17.03 - 17.03 - 311.69 - 311.69
Amount Recoverable (Received in advance) at the end of the period (1,807.64) 746.46 - (1,061.18) (5,454.83) 1,250.62 616.35 (3,587.85)

* Amount given in financial year 2021-22 includes X 2447 lakhs for grant of O&M Expenditure for financial year 2022-23.
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Deferred Tax

In the absence of Taxable Income, no provision for income tax has been considered necessary. Further, Deferred Tax Asset
has also not been recognized as there is no reasonable certainty with convincing evidence that sufficient future taxable
income will be available against which such Deferred Tax Asset can be adjusted.

(xii)

Dues to Micro Enterprises and Small Enterprises have been determined as X 204.41 lakhs as on 31st March 2023 (Previous
year X 224.87 Lakhs) to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of information available on records in
termsof ‘The Micro, Smalland Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006’.

(xiii)

Amount payable / recoverable from Vendors/Contractors/service providers are subject to confirmation, reconciliation
and consequential adjustments thereof, if any.

(xiv)

All consumables/stores/spares parts are booked in 0&M expenses at the time of purchases.

(xv)

Royalty payment on rock removal from Mangalore SEZ/Padur is to be borne by MSEZL/Contractor appointed by MSEZL or
ISPRL.

As per MSEZL contract with Contractor, any statutory payment on account of rock removal is to be borne by Contractor.
Further, in case contractor fails to deposit any statutory payment, the liability of same would arise on MSEZL as per section
30 of SEZ Act, 2005 and there will be no liability on ISPRL on account of any default on payment of custom duty by
Contractor / MSEZL. Matter for payment of custom duty on removal of Rock from Mangalore SEZ area to Domestic Tariff
Area (DTA) isunder litigation.

(xvi)

a. The company has given BG of X 50,000/- (Previous year : X 50,000/-) in favor of ACCT, LGSTO-260 (GST Authorities) for
obtaining KST/CST Registration Certificate from Commercial Tax Office. The BG was given against FD pledged by company
amounting to X50,000/-.

b. The company has pledged FD of X 1,45,000/- (Previous year : X 1,45,000/-) in favor of Deputy Director, DMG, Mangalore
towards financial assurance related to stone mines contract.

¢. Bond Cum Legal undertaking has been given by ISPRL to Development Commissioner, MSEZ Mangalore amounting to X
100.80 crore during the year with respect to benefits of exemptions, drawback, cess and concessions availed on account
of goods and services in terms of provisions of rule 25 of Special Economic Zones Rules 2006.

(xvii)

(A) Total land of 104.73 acre was allocated by MSEZL to ISPRL consist of following:-
(1)67.0134 acre land for proceesing area with in SEZ.

(ii) 33.0066 acre land for green belt development with in SEZ.

(iii) 4.71 acre of land for setting up Booster pumping station outside SEZ.

Out of total land as mentioned above, 33.0066 acre was handed over by MSEZL free of cost for development of green belt.

(B) Licence/ permission to Build and maintain Underground rock Cavern (URC) oil storage facility under the surface of 30
acre land situated at Dolphin Hill area at or near Vishakpatnam was provided by Eastern Naval Command (ENC) at token
amount of Rs. 1.00 per annum for a period of 99 years vide MOU dated 01* May 2007 between ENC and ISPRL.

The ownership and possession of the land and its surface and aerial right of land remains with ENC. No right, title or
interestinlandis conveyed to ISPRL.
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January, 2060.

TR
ISPRL
(xviii) | As required under additional information pertaining to general instructions for preparation of statement of Profit & loss
(Giveninthe schedule lll of companies Act, 2013) related to expenditure incurred for audit and other items are as follows:
Xin Lakhs Xin Lakhs
2022-23 2021-22
Payment to Statutory Auditor
Audit Fees (Incl. GST) 2.09 1.77
Certification (Incl. GST) 0.59 0.06
Out of Pocket Expenses 0.20 -
Payment to Internal Auditor
Audit Fees (Incl. GST) 0.23 0.35
Other Services 2.24 Nil
Payment to Secretarial Auditor
Audit Fees 0.10 0.10
(xix) [ Title deeds of Inmovable Property not held in name of the Company -
Relevant line | Description of | Gross carrying Title/Lease Whether title Property held Reason for
item in the item of value deeds held in | deed holder is since which not being
Balance sheet property (X In Lakhs) the name of a promoter, date held in the
director or name of the
relative# of company
promoter*/
director or
employee of
promoter/
director
Right of Use Leasehold Land 8492.5 | Indian No Date of Lease Deed isin
(Ind AS 116) at Mangalore Strategic allotment letter | the name of
Special Petroleum are as follows : company but
Economic Zone Reserves a. for 100.02 not yet
(104.73 Acres) Limited acres date is registered. The
23.11.2009 company is
b. for. 4.71 acres following up
date is with lessor for
11'04'2918 . registration of
Possession till
] 0 lease deed.
date is 26

Vide letter date
06" April 2023
from Directorate
of Industries and
Commerce,
ISPRL has
obtained 100%
stamp duty
exemption
certificate for
lease deed
registration with
MSEZL.
Registration of
lease deed in
under process.
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(xx) Valuation of PP&E, intangible asset and investment property -
The company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment during the year.
(xxi) Loans from Banks or Financial Institutions -
The company has not received any borrowings from banks or financial institutions during the year.
(xxii) | Capital-Work-in Progress (CWIP) -
Thereis no capital workin progressason 31.03.2023.
(xxiii) Intangible assets under development -
There are nointangible assets under developmentason 31.03.2023.
(xxiv) | Details of BenamiProperty held -
No proceedings have been initiated on or are pending against the company for holding benami property under the
Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and Rules made thereunder.
(xxv) Loans and advance on security of current assets -
There are noloans and advances on security of current assets ason 31.03.2023.
(xxvi) | Willful Defaulter-
Company has not been declared Willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or any government
authority.
(xxvii) [ Registration of charges or satisfaction with Registrar of Companies -
There are no charges or satisfaction which are yet to be registered with the Registrar of Companies beyond the statutory
period.
(xxviii) | Compliance with number of layers of companies -
The company is 100% subsidiary of OIDB and further company doesn’t have any subsidiary hence compliance prescribed
under the Companies Act, 2013 is not applicable onthe company.
(xxix) | Compliance with approved scheme(s) of arrangements -
The company has not entered into any scheme of arrangement which has an accounting impact on current or previous
financial year.
(xxx) Utilization of borrowed funds and share premium -
A. The company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign
entities (Intermediaries) with the understanding that the Intermediary shall:
a. directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on
behalf of the company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or
b. provideanyguarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries.
B. The company has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party)
with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the company shall:
a. directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on
behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or
b.  provideanyguarantee, security or the like on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries.
(xxxi) | Undisclosedincome -
There is no income surrendered or disclosed as income during the current or previous year in the tax assessments under
the Income Tax Act, 1961, that has not been recorded in the books of account.
(xxxii) | Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)-
The company has notincurred any CSR Expenditure during the year.
(xxxiii) [ Details of Crypto currency or Virtual currency -
The company has not traded orinvested in crypto currency or virtual currency during the year.
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Loans or Advances in the nature of loans are granted to promoters, directors, KMPs and the related parties (as defined

Act1956-—

XXXiV
) under Companies Act, 2013,) either severally or jointly with any other person, that are:
repayable on demand or without specifying any terms or period of repayment
Type of Borrower Amount of loan or advance in the | Percentage to the total Loans and Advances
nature of loan outstanding in the nature of loans
Promoters NIL NIL
Directors NIL NIL
KMPs NIL NIL
Related Parties NIL NIL
(xxxv) Details of transactions with Companies Struck off u/s 248 of the Companies Act 2013 or Section 560 of the Companies

X in Lakhs

Name of struck

Nature of transactions

Balance outstanding

Balance outstanding

Relationship with the

off Company with struck- as on 31.03.2023 as on 31.03.2022 Struck off company
off Company if any, to be disclosed
Investments NIL NIL NA
in securities
Receivables NIL NIL NA
Payables NIL NIL NA
Shares held by NIL NIL NA
struck off company
Other outstanding NIL NIL NA

balances
(to be specified)
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XXXVii)

Impairment of Asset -
In compliance of IND AS 36 "Impairment of Asset", the company has reviewed the assets at year end for indication of

impairment loss, if any, as per accounting policy of the company. As there is no indication of impairment, no impairment
loss has been recognised during the year.

XXXViii)

In the opinion of the management, the value of assets other than Property, Plant and Equipment, on realisation in
ordinary course of Business, will not be less than the value at which these are stated in the Balance Sheet.

XXXiX)

The company does not have any long term contracts including derivative contracts for which there could be any material
foreseeable losses.

XXXX)

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the
company.

XXXXi)

Certain changes have been made in Accounting Policies which doesn't have any impact on the financial statements for the
period except following:-

1. Other accounting policy regarding "fixing of financial limit of amount exceeding X 50,000/- (including taxes) on each
case basis for creating provision of expenses" as adopted and approved in 84th Board meeting dated 17th November 2022
for the period from FY 2022-23 onwards. Changes mentioned will reduce the "Operation and Maintenance expenses" in
P&L by X 14 lakh (approx), Capital advance to KIADB for Land Acquisition of Phase Il project (Note 5 of Financial statement)
by 0.35lakhsand "Trade payable" in Balance sheet by X14.35 lakh (approx).

2. From FY 2022-23, ISPRL has recognized operating income from ADNOC, MRPL, etc in its Financial statement after
obtaining approval from Board. The same has resulted in increase in revenue from operation by X 205.81 Lakhs, expenses
byX35.57 lakhsand thereby resulted inincrease in net profit of the company by X170.24 Lakhs

3. ISPRL has modified its accounting policy from FY 2022-23 onwards for charging property, Plant and Equipment
individually costing upto . 5,000/- to revenue expense / O&M expense in the year of acquisition. Change in this policy
doesn't have any impact on Financial statement of ISPRL.

XXXXii)

The company has deposited out of funds provided by MoPNG amounting to X5000.46 Lakhs as pre-deposit with Registrar
General, High Court, New Delhi for appeal filed against arbitration award in case of HCC Arbitration Case, Padur. The
amountisreturnable to MoPNG from earnings of ISPRL from commercialization of Phase .

XXXXiii)

The Arbitration award in case of Hindustan Construction Co. (HCC) V/s ISPRL has been awarded by Arbitrator on 26th April,
2022 at New Delhi. The company has accepted the arbitration award and deposited the amount of X 1887.04 lakhs with
High Court on 11th October 2022 after receipt of O& M Grant from MoPNG.

XXXXiV)

Company has acquired 179.2 acre of land at Padur out of which 175.92 acre of land at Padur has been registered in the
name of ISPRL. Company is unable to register the remaining land being a forest land and transfer is not allowed by
Government of Karnataka.

XXXXV)

Manpower expenses for phase Il has been charged to O&M grant with the approval of competent authority.

XXXXVi)

The company has fixed a limit of X 15 Crores on aggregate basis for adjustment/rectification of prior period items of the
previous years for preparation of IND AS compliant financial statements.

XXXXVii)

Previous year's figures have been regrouped/reclassified wherever necessary to correspond with the current year's
classification/disclosure and figures have been rounded off nearest to lakhs.
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XXXXViii)

The financial statements have been approved for by the Board of directors on 30" June, 2023.

For Prasad Azad & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number : 001009N

Sd/-

(K M Azad)

Partner

Membership No. 005125

Place - New Delhi
Date - 11 July, 2023

For and on behalf of Board of Directors

Sd/- Sd/-

(Esha Srivastava) (Lakhpat Rai Jain)
Director CEO & MD

DIN : 08504560 DIN : 08505199

Sd/- Sd/-
(Gopeshwar Kumar Singh) (Shilpi Mohanty)
CFO Company Secretary

Place - New Delhi
Date - 03.07.23
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Note No. 1 : Significant Accounting Policies

1.

1A:

1.1

Corporate Information and Significant Accounting Policies

CORPORATE INFORMATION

Indian Strategic Petroleum Reserves Limited was incorporated on 16" June, 2004 by IOCL as its subsidiary. The
entire shareholding of the Company was taken over by Oil Industry Development Board(“OIDB”) and its
nominees on 9" May, 2006.

Indian Strategic Petroleum Reserves Limited (the Company), an unlisted wholly owned subsidiary of OIDB is a
Public Limited Company and incorporated in India having its registered office at 301, World Trade Centre, 3"
Floor, Babar Road, New Delhi-110001 and operational/ functional office is at OIDB Bhawan, Plot No. 2, 3" Floor,
Sector-73, Noida-201301, Uttar Pradesh.

The main objects of the Company are:-

1. To store core critical sovereign reserve of crude oil of the Government of India or crude oil of such other
entity as Government of India may decide, subject to and in compliance of the following:

The release of core critical sovereign reserves of crude oil from caverns and its replenishment will be done
through an Empowered Committee constituted by the Government. Provided that the core critical
sovereign reserves of crude oil of Government of India may also drawn for crude circulation on account of
quality requirement or repair and maintenance.

2. To lease/rent of 30% overall oil storage capacity of caverns to Indian or foreign companies with the
condition that in case of any exigency, the GOl will have the first right on the entire crude oil stored in the

caverns.
3. Tosale/purchase of 20% overall oil storage capacity of caverns to Indian companies.

4. To carry on the business of storage, handling, treatment, carriage, transport, dispatch, supply, market,
research, advise, consultancy, service providers, brokers and agents, engineering and civil designers,
contracts wharfingers, warehouseman, producers, dealers of Oil and Oil products, gas and gas products,
petroleum and petroleum products, fuels, spirits, chemicals, liquid of all types and kinds and the
compounds, derivatives, mixtures, preparations and products thereof.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements

The Financial statements are prepared in accordance with Ind AS notified under the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standard) Rules, 2015 as amended and comply in all material aspects with the relevant provisions of
the Companies Act, 2013.

The Financial Statements have been prepared on a going concern basis following accrual system of accounting.
The company has adopted the historical cost basis for assets and liabilities. Historical cost is generally based on
the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for goods and services at the date of respective
transactions.
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Accounting policies have been consistently applied except where a newly issued accounting standard is initially
adopted or a revision to an existing accounting standard requires a change in the accounting policy hitherto in
use.

The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees ('INR') which is the presentation and functional
currency of the Company and all values are rounded to the nearest lakhs (up to two decimals) except otherwise
indicated.

1.2 Currentand non-current classification—

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the Balance Sheet based on current/ non-current classification. An
assetistreated ascurrent whenitis:-

° Expected to berealized orintended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle
° Held primarily for the purpose of trading

° Expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting period, or

° Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a

liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period.
The Company classifies all other assets as non-current.

Aliability is current when:

° Itis expected to be settled in normal operating cycle.

° Itis held primarily for the purpose of trading.

° Itisdue to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

° Thereis no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the

reporting period. The Company classifies all other liabilities as non current.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realization in cash and
cash equivalents.

The Company has ascertained its normal operating cycle as twelve months for the purpose of current and non-
current classification of assets and liabilities.

1.3 Revenue Recognition
Measurement of Revenue

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognized when control of the goods are transferred or services are
rendered to the customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company expects to be
entitled in exchange for those goods or services.
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1.4

ISPRL

Revenue is measured based on the transaction price, which is the consideration, adjusted for discounts,
incentive schemes, if any, as per contracts with customers. Taxes collected from customers on behalf of
Government are not treated as Revenue.

Sale of Products

Revenue from sale of products is recognized at the point of time when control of the products is transferred to
the customer, generally on delivery of the products. The Company considers whether there are other promises
inthe contract that are separate performance obligations to which a portion of the transaction price needs to be
allocated (e.g., Freight and Incentive schemes). In determining the transaction price for the sale of products, the
Company considers the effects of variable consideration and consideration payable to the customer (if any).

For contracts that are CIF (Cost Insurance Freight) contracts, the revenue is recognized when the goods reached
at final destination. For contracts that are FOB (Free on Board) contracts, revenue is recognized when company
deliversthe goodsto anindependent carrier.

Revenue from operating services

Revenue from operating services is recognized on satisfaction of performance obligation upon transfer of
control of promised services to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration the company expects to
receive in exchange for those services, excluding amounts collected on behalf of third parties (for example taxes
and duties collected on behalf of the government). Consideration is generally due upon satisfaction of
performance obligations and a receivable is recognized when it becomes unconditional.

Leasing/Rental income from cavern is recognized as income on accrual basis.
OtherIncome

Dividend, Other income and Other claims including Insurance Claims are accounted for when there is virtual
certainty of ultimate collection.

Interest Income
Interestincome is recognized on accrual basis using the Effective Interest Rate (EIR) method
Property, Plant and Equipment & Intangible Assets:

i) Properties, Plant & Equipment are carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment loss, if
any. The cost of Property, Plant and Equipment includes cost of acquisition and directly attributable cost
for bringing the Property, Plant and Equipmentin an operational condition for theirintended use.

ii) An intangible asset is recognized where it is probable that the future economic benefit attributable to
the asset will flow to the Company and the cost of the asset can be measured reliably. Such assets are
stated at cost less accumulated amortization.

iii) Capital work- in-progress

Capital work - in-progress is carried at cost. Revenue expenses exclusively attributable to projects &
incurred during construction period are capitalized.
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Depreciation / Amortization

i) Depreciation is provided on Straight Line Method as per the useful life specified in Schedule Il to the
Companies Act, 2013 except for, underground cavern the useful life of which is considered as 60 years
based on certification by independent expert.

ii) Property, Plant and Equipment individually costing up to Rs. 5,000/- are not being capitalized and
directly forms part of revenue expense / O&M expense in the year of acquisition.

iiii) Right of use (ROU) with indefinite useful lives are not amortized, but are tested for impairment annually
at the cash-generating unit level. The assessment of indefinite life is reviewed annually to determine
whether the indefinite life continues to be supportable. If not, the change in useful life from indefinite to
finite ismade on a prospective basis.

iv) Right of use (ROU) with definite useful lives isamortized over a period of lease.
Impairment of Assets

Management periodically assesses using external and internal sources whether there is an indication that an
asset may be impaired. Impairment occurs where the carrying value exceeds the present value of the future cash
flows expected to arise from the continuing use of the asset and its eventual disposal. An impairment loss is
recognized in the statement of profit and loss to the extent, asset's carrying amount exceeds its recoverable
amount. The recoverable amount is higher of an asset's fair value less cost of disposal and value in use. Value in
use is based on the estimated future cash flows, discounted to their present value using pre-tax discount rate
thatreflects current market assessment of the time value of the money and risk specific to the assets.

Foreign Currency Transactions

i) The Company's financial statements are presented in Indian Rupee (INR) which is also functional
currency of the Company.
ii) Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded at the exchange rates prevailing on the date of

transaction.

iii) Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at functional
currencies closing rate of exchange at the reporting date.

iv) Non-Monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in foreign currency are recorded at
the exchange rates at the date of transactions.

V) Any gains or losses arising due to differences in exchange rates at the time of translation or settlement
are accounted for in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Financial instruments

i) Financial assets
Allfinancial assets are recognized initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortized cost.
ii) Financial Liabilities
Allfinancial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortized cost.
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1.9

1.10

1.11

iiii) De-recognition
Financial asset is derecognized when right to receive cash flow from the asset expires, or at transfer of
the financial asset and such transfers qualify for de-recognition. Financial liability is derecognized when
the obligation under the liability is discharged or expires.

TaxesonlIncome

Income tax comprises current tax and deferred tax. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the
future tax consequences of timing differences, subject to the consideration of prudence. Deferred tax assets
and liabilities are measured using the tax rates enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date.
Deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against
whichis deductible temporary differences can be utilized.

Grants

Government Grants (Revenue) are recognized in profit or loss on a systematic basis over the periods in which the
Company recognizes as expenses, the related costs for which the grants are intended to compensate.

Government Grants (Capital) are initially recorded as liability in books of accounts and advance against related
assets to be acquired from capital grant are recognized as Assets. On accomplishment of purpose of grant, the
grantand related assets are shown netin the financial statements.

Financial Support for Viability Gap Funding (VGF) can be either in the form of Capital Grant or Operational
Revenue Grant depending upon the scheme for financial support of the project. VGF is recognized in the books
of accounts as per the scheme either as Revenue or Capital as described above.

Benefit on account of any Interest Subvention scheme can be either loan for capital expenditure or Revenue
expenditure. The same will be recognized in the books of accounts as per the use of fund either as Revenue or
Capital.

Grants received from Shareholder are recognized in profit or loss on a systematic basis over the periods in which
the Company recognizes as expenses the related costs for which the grants are intended to compensate.

Leases

Ind AS 116 requires lessees to determine the lease term as the non-cancellable period of a lease adjusted with
any option to extend or terminate the lease, if the use of such option is reasonably certain. The Company makes
an assessment on the expected lease term on a lease-by-lease basis and thereby assesses whether it is
reasonably certain that any options to extend or terminate the contract will be exercised. The lease term in
future periodsis reassessed to ensure that the lease term reflects the current economic circumstances.

Companyasalessee

a) The company recognizes a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the lease commencement date. The
right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability
adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the commencement date, plus any initial direct costs
incurred and an estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to restore the underlying
assetorthesite on whichitis located, less any lease incentives received.
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b) Theright-of-use assetis subsequently depreciated using the straight-line method from the commencement
date to the earlier of the end of the useful life of the right-of-use asset or the end of the lease term. The
estimated useful lives of right-of-use assets are determined on the same basis as those of property, plant
and equipment. In addition, the right-of-use asset is periodically reduced by impairment losses, if any, and
adjusted for certain re-measurements of the lease liability.

c) The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the
commencement date, discounted using the interest rate implicitin the lease or, if that rate cannot be readily
determined, holding company's incremental borrowing rate. Generally, the company uses its holding
company'sincremental borrowing rate as the discount rate.

d) Leasepaymentsincludedinthe measurement of the lease liability comprise the following:

* Fixed payments, including in-substance fixed payments;

* Variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, initially measured using the index or rate as
atthe commencement date;

* Amounts expected to be payable under aresidual value guarantee; and

* The exercise price under a purchase option that the company is reasonably certain to exercise, lease
payments in an optional renewal period if the company is reasonably certain to exercise an extension
option, and penalties for early termination of a lease unless the company is reasonably certain not to
terminate early.

e) Thelease liability is measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method. It is remeasured when
thereisachangeinfuture lease payments arising from a change inanindex or rate, if there isa change in the
company's estimate of the amount expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee, or if company
changesits assessment of whether it will exercise a purchase, extension or termination option.

f)  When the lease liability is re-measured in this way, a corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying
amount of the right-of-use asset or is recorded in profit or loss if the carrying amount of the right-of-use
asset has been reduced to zero.

Short Term Leases and Leases of Low Value Assets

The company has elected not to recognize right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for short- term leases of real
estate properties that have a lease term upto 12 months. The company recognizes the lease payments
associated with these leases as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

CompanyasaLessor

Leases for which the Company is a lessor is classified as a finance or operating lease as per IND AS. For operating
leases, rental income is recognized as per agreed terms of the lease. A lessor initially measures a finance lease
receivable at the present value of the future lease payments plus any unguaranteed residual value accruing to
the lessor. The lessor discounts these amounts using the rate implicitin the lease or, if that rate cannot be readily
determined, holding company'sincremental borrowing rate. Generally, the company uses its holding company's
incremental borrowing rate as the discount rate.
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1.12

1.13

Employee benefits

Short-term obligations

Liabilities for wages and salaries including non-monetary benefits that are expected to be settled within the
operating cycle after the end of the period in which the employees render the related services are
recognised in the period in which the related services are rendered and are measured at the undiscounted
amount expected to be paid.

Defined Contribution Plans

Company's contribution paid/payable during the year to national pension scheme (NPS) fund are
recognized as an employee benefit expense as operation and maintenance expense recoverable /
recovered from GOl / MoP&NG under 'O & M Expense'.

Defined benefit plans

The liability recognized in respect of gratuity is the present value of defined benefit obligation at the end of
the reporting period less the fair value of plan assets. The defined benefit obligation is calculated annually
by actuary using the Projected Unit Credit Method. Re-measurement comprising actuarial gains and losses
and return on plan assets (excluding net interest) are recognized as operation and maintenance expense
recoverable / recovered from GOl / MoP&NG under 'O & M Expense'.

Leave Encashment & Compensated absences

Liabilities for leave encashment and compensated absences which are not expected to be settled wholly
within the operating cycle after the end of the period in which the employees render the related service are
measured annually by the actuary at the present value of the estimated future cash outflows which is
expected to be paid using the projected unit credit method. Actuarial gains and losses are recognised as
operation and maintenance expense recoverable / recovered from GOI / MoP&NG under 'O & M Expense'
whenthey occur.

Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets (Ind AS-37)

The Company recognizes a provision when there is present obligation as a result of past event and it is more likely
than not that there will be an outflow of resources to settle such obligation and the amount of such obligation

can bereliably estimated. Provisions are not discounted to their present value and are determined based on the

management's best estimate of the amount of obligation at the year-end. These are reviewed at each balance

sheet date and adjusted to reflect management's best estimates.

Contingent liabilities are disclosed in respect of possible obligations that have arisen from past events and the

existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of future events not wholly

within the control of the Company. Contingent liabilities are also disclosed for present obligations in respect of
which it is not probable that there will be an outflow of resources or a reliable estimate of the amount of

obligation cannot be made.
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When there is a possible obligation or a present obligation where the likelihood of an outflow of resources is
remote, nodisclosure or provisionis made.

Contingent Assets are not recognized and is disclosed, where an inflow of economic benefitis probable.
Earnings per Share

Basic Earnings per Share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity
shareholders by the weighted average number of equity share outstanding during the period.

For the purpose of calculating Diluted Earnings per Share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to
equity shareholders and the number of shares outstanding during the period will be adjusted for the effects of
all dilutive potential equity shares.

Inventory

Inventory of crude oil is valued at cost determined on 'First in First Out' basis or net realizable value, whichever is
lower. Cost comprises all costs of purchases, cost of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the
inventory to the presentlocation and condition.

Head Office Expenses Allocation
The head office expenses are allocated equally among all commissioned units/sites.
Recent Amendments in Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) notifies new standard or amendment to the existing standards. There is
no such notification which would have been applicable from 01 April, 2023.
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